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LETTER OF DECLARATION

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Taiwan Financial Holding
Co., Ltd. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of
Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10 endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission,
"Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements." In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the
combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Taiwan
Financial Holding Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Truthfully yours,

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLBDING CO.,LTD.
By

Joseph Jye-Cherng Lyu
Chairman

March 30, 2020
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company™)
and its subsidiaries (“the Company and subsidiaries™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the years then ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Company and subsidiaries as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated
operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Praparation of Financial Reports of Financial Holding Companies and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“1ASs”), International Financial Reporting
interpretations (“1FRICS™), and the Standing Interpretations Committee (*SICs™) as well as related guidelines
endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China (“FSC™) .

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements of Financial Institutions by Certified Public Accountants, Ruling No. 10802731571 issued by the
FSC and the auditing standards generally accepted in Republic of China in 2019 and in accordance with the
Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial Statements of Financial Institutions by Certified
Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China in 2018. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Taiwan Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd. in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the
Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained, inclusive of the report from other auditors, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis of our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

In accordance with the Audit Act and other governmental regulations of Taiwan, the financial statements of the
Company and subsidiaries are required to be examined and certified by the Ministry of Audit (“MoA™). The
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries as of, and for year ended December 31, 2018 were
restated to reflect the adjustments made by the MoA. For further information, please see Note 16(b). Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ('KPMG International’), a Swiss entity.
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Other Matter

As stated in Note 6(j), we have not audited the financial statements of Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.
and Tai Yi Real Estate Co., Ltd. The Company and subsidiaries recognized its investments in Hua Nan
Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. and Tai Yi Real Estate Co., Ltd. under equity method amounting to $47,328,265
thousand and $43,681,863 thousand respectively, constituting 0.86% and 0.81% of the consolidated total assets
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively; and its shares of investment profits in associates accounted for
using equity method amounting to $4,004,347 thousand and $3,669,837 thousand, respectively. constituting
3.16% and 7.22% of the related consolidated net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our review, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those companies, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

1. The valuation of financial instruments

Please refer to Note 4(f) “Financial instruments”™ for related accounting policy, Note 5(a) “The fair value of
non-active market or non-quoted financial instruments” for the uncertainty of the assumptions and
estimations, and Note 7 “The fair value and fair value hierarchy of the financial instruments™ for the details
of valuation of financial instruments.

Description of key audit matters

Of the financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss and other comprehensive income
held by the Company and subsidiaries, fair value of the financial instruments, other than those that the fair
value can be observed in an open market, shall be calculated via models. The parameters of modeling inputs
often involved the exercise of judgment and may have significant impact on the results. The financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value held by the Bank as of December 31, 2019 are material to the Company
and subsidiaries. Therefore, the valuation of financial instruments has been identified as a key audit matter in
our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included (i) testing the controls over the investment cycle and related
financial reporting process, including initial recognition, subsequent measurement and disclosure; (ii)
sampling to test whether the fair values of the financial instruments measured at fair value with an active
market are appropriate; (iii) sampling to test whether the fair value of the financial instruments measured at
fair value without an active market are appropriate by re-calculating and obtaining the quoted price from
counter parties or independent third parties, as well as appointing our valuation specialists to assess the
reasonableness of the models and parameters the Company used when deemed necessary; (iv) assessing
whether the fair value information is disclosed in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards.
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2. The assessment of impairment of financial assets

Please refer to Note 4(p) “Impairment of assets™ for related accounting policy, Note 5(b) “The evaluation of
financial asset impairments” for the uncertainty of accounting assumptions and estimations, and Note 8
“Financial Risk Management” for the details of evaluation of financial asset impairments.

Description of key audit matters

When assessing whether there is any indication that the financial assets other than measured at fair value
through profit or loss may be impaired, the Company and subsidiaries rely on management for considering
all kinds of observable data and using the expected credit loss model, including probability of default, loss of
default, exposure at default and prospective economic factors, to calculate the impairment loss. The
calculation process is complicated and involves the exercise of judgment. Furthermore, the financial assets
that require impairment testing as of December 31, 2019 are material to the Company and subsidiaries.
Therefore, the assessment of impairment of financial assets has been identified as a key audit matter in our
audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included (i) inspecting the internal guidelines of impairment assessment,
understanding the Company's and subsidiaries' procedures of the assessment of impairment of financial
assets, and testing related internal control procedures; (ii) performing analytical procedures; (iii) assessing
the reasonableness of the Company's and subsidiaries' assessment of impairment of financial assets and, if
necessary, acquiring assistance from internal specialists; (iv) verifying the accuracy of loan loss provision
based on “Regulations Governing the Procedures for Enterprises Engaging in Insurance to Evaluate Assets
and Deal with Non performing/Non accrual Loans™; (v) assessing whether the impairment of financial assets
is presented and disclosed fairly.

3. The assessment of insurance liabilities

Please refer to Note 4(t) “Insurance liabilities™ for related accounting polices. Note 5(c) “Insurance liabilities
and reserves of insurance policy with financial instrument nature” for the uncertainty of accounting
estimation and assumptions, and Note 6(aa) “Insurance contracts and financial products with discretionary
participation feature™ for the details of assessment of insurance liabilities.

Description of key audit matters

The major business activity of Bank Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd.(“"BTLI") is to provide life insurance.
To strengthen its financial structure and the capability of fulfilling future obligation, BTLI is required to set
aside various statutory reserves calculated based on each product’ s characteristic and its undue risk in
accordance with the Insurance Act and “Regulations Governing Insurance Enterprises for Setting Aside
Various Reserves”. The evaluation of the adequacy of insurance liabilities involved the assumptions of
morbidity rate, expense rate, discount rate, default rate, future cash flows, etc., which all rely on the
judgment and experiences of the management and may cause a significant impact on the recognition of
insurance liability. Therefore, the assessment of the insurance liability has been identified as a key audit
matter in our audit.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included (i) testing the internal process of the provision of statutory reserves;
(ii) inspecting the related minutes of BTLI’ s Board of Directors and the committee of asset-liability
management; (iii) obtaining BTLI’s s liability adequacy test report prepared by a third party and assessing
the qualification of the actuaries; (iv) appointing KPMG’ s actuaries to re-assess the reasonableness of
significant assumptions and the conformity of the regulations; (v) assessing whether the disclosures of the
reserves of BTLI are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards and guidelines.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Budget Law, Account Settlement Law, Uniform Regulations on Accounting Systems for
Banks Governed by the Ministry of Finance, the Regulations Governing the Praparation of Financial Reports of
Financial Holding Companies and with the IFRSs, 1ASs, IFRICs, and SICs as well as related guidelines
endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's and
subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company and
subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Company's
and subsidiaries' financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended December 31. 2019
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors™ report are Feng-Hui Lee and Lin
Wu.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 30, 2020

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards. procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

2019 2018 Change
Amgunt Y A t Y Yo
Revenue and income:
Interest income (note G{ai) and 10} 3 76,585405 61 74,006,749 146 3
Less;Interest expense (note 6(ai)) 39340093 _ 31 _38250221 _ 75 3
Net income of interest (note 6(ai}) 37,245,312 30 35,756,528 71 4
Non-interest income, net
Service fees, net (note 6(aj) and 10) 4,032,553 3 4,321,686 : (6)
Gains (lesses) on real esiate investment, net (note 6(1}) 109,726 - 101,093 - 9
Share of profits (losses) of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method {note 6(3)) 4,007,543 3 3,361,751 7 19
Premium gains (Josses) (note 6(ar)) 30,025,311 24 1,877,061 4 1,500
Gains (losses) on financial assets er liabilities measured at fair valve through profit or loss {note 6(c) and (ak)) 53,531.2569 42 (11,909,252) (23) 549
Realised gains (losses) from financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (note 6(al) 4,069,574 3 3,288,163 [ 24
and 10)
Net gains (losses) from devecognition of financial assets measured at amonized cost (note 6(i)) 197,707 - 356,362 1 (45)
Foreign exchange pains (losses) (5,179,588} (4) 10,844082 21 {148)
Impaimment gain and reversal {impairment loss) of assets (note 6{q)) {2.835) - {88,565y - 97
Profits {losses) reclassified to other comprehensive income using overlay approach (note 6(c)) (2,654,314) (2) 1,620,030 3 (264)
Nei other non-interest income (losses)
Inventory sales income {note 6(p) and (am)} 500,387 - 366,662 1 36
Subsidized income from government (note 6(am)) 8,774,387 7 8,892,009 17 (N
Other miscellaneous income (note 6(am)) 812,741 I 1,707,533 3 (52)
Excess interest expenses (nete 6(g) and (am}) (8.856.111} _ (7) _(9.640.527) _(19) 3
Net Revenue 126.633.662 _100 _50.854.61¢ _100 149
Bad debt expense and reserve for puarantees (note 6(h}} (7.340.443} _ (6) _(2.297.710) _(14) 1
Provisions for policybholder's reserve premium (85.760.846) _(68) (12.014.671) _(24) 614
Expenses:
Empleyee benefits expenses (ote 6(ac){an) and 10) (14,147,983} (11) (13.575334) (27) q
Depreciation and amortization expenses (nate 6(ao)) (1.676,822 (B) (1.043995) (2) 61
Other general and adiministrative expenses (note 6(ap)) (7.201.369) __ (6) _{7437.177)y _(19) (3}
Total Expenses (23.026.174) _{18) (22.056.506) _td44) 4
Profit from continuing operations before tax 10,506,199 8 9.485.729 18 11
Less: Income Tax Expenses {note 6(ag)) 1.701.990 ___ 1 391369 _ 1 135
Net profit 3804209 _ 7 _ 9.094.360 _ (7 (3}
Other comprehensive income:
Componeats of other comprehensive income that witl not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains {Josses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note G{ac)} (1,641.306) (1) (L072,950) () {53)
Change in fair value of financial liability attribuable to change in credit risk of liability (299.554) - 239502 - (225)
Unrealized gains from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value throuph other comprehensive 16,512,211 13 4375114 9 N
Sh;::zn;:ther comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method, 981,218 1 (136,651) - 8i8
companents of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (nowe (07289 _ - 16.330 _ - (206)
gssstgonenls of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 15.569.858 K] 3388685 _ 7 359
Components of otbier comprehensive income {loss) that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements (447,303) - 576.186 1 (178)
Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in debt instruments imeasured at fair value through other comprehensive 873,761 I} (569427 (I} 253
Sh;?:{;?zther comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method, 252,530 - (208,703) - 221
components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income on reclassification under the overlay approach {note 6(c)) 2,654,314 2 (1,620,030) (3) 264
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified wo profit or loss (note 274391 _ - (235.998) _ - 216
?:sa)}gonems of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss 3058911 _ 3 _(1.585.976) _ (3) 293
Other comprehensive income 18.628.769 _ 16 1.802.70% __ 4 933
Total comprehensive income, net of tax for the year § 27432.978 _ 23 _10,897.069 =_2_I_ 152
Basic earnings per share (In dollars) (note ¢{aq)) 1) 0.93 1.01

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of C lidated Financial Stat ts and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)
TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Fiows
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2019 2018
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Income before income tax $ 10,506,19% 9,485,729
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expenses 1,468,018 870,724
Amortization expenses 330,174 201,345
Allowance on bad debts 7,281,170 7,304,564
Interest expense 39,340,093 38,250,221
Interest income (76,585,405) (74,006,744)
Dividend income (9,719,217} (9,043,459)
Net change in provisions for guarantee reserves 59,273 (6.854)
Net change in other reserves 85,086,529 13,287,138
Inventory falling price loss - (59)
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method (4,007,543) (3,361,751)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 58,426 62,805
Gain on disposal of investments (197,707 (356,362)
Impaivment loss on financial assets 504 6,973
Tmpairment loss on non-financial assets 2.331 81.592
Subtotal of income of non-cash activities 43.116.646 (26.619.867)
Changes in operating assets and liabilifies:
Changes in operating assets:
(Increase) decrease in due from the central bank and call loans to banks (1,445,740) 27,816,799
(Increase) decrease in financial assets meagured at fair vatue through profit or loss (25,139,292} 2,335,202
Decrease (increase) in financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 142,126,574 (53,088,661)
Increase in investments in debt instruments measured at amortized cost (23,817,546) (25,149,579}
Decrease (increase) in financial assets for hedging 40,622 (18,934)
(Increase) decrease in securities purchased under agreements to resell (650.035) 510,359
Decrease in receivables and current tax assets [,208,365 3929122
Increase in discounts and Joans (126,627.673) (269.606,882)
Decrease in other financial assets 7,073,626 2,635,374
(Increase) decrease in other assets (3.005,890) 5,451,963
Increase in due 10 the central bank and banks 7,497,394 2,734,755
Increase in financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 8,966,786 15,725,581
Increase {decrease} in financial labilities for hedging 12,564 (47,507
Decrease in securities sold under repurchase agreement (2,065,044) (10,140,174)
Decrease in payable and current tax liabilities (1,623,789) (12,572,351)
(Decrease) increase in deposits (58,255,938) 90,224,764
Increase {decrease) in provisions for employee benefits 1,486,448 {1,196,696)
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities (435.661) 314.850
Subtotal of all adjustments (31.557.585) (246.741.882)
Cash outflow generated from operations (21,031,386) (237,256,153)
Interest received 76,585,405 74,006,744
Dividends received 8,947,206 8,255,883
Interest paid (38,380,904) (36,594,173)
Income taxes (paid) refund (1.097.340) 13.551
Net Cash flows from (used in) operating activities 25022981 (191.570.148)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



{English Translatien of Consolidated Financizal Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2019 2018
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of investment properties - $ {1,105,674) -
Acquisition of property and equipment (1,125,914) (834,127}
Increase in refundable deposits (5,237,347 (6,279,229}
Acquisition of intangible assets (455.312) (372,445}
Net cash flows used in investing activities {7.924.247) (7.485,801)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in comimercial papers issued 735,000 -
Decrease in commercial papers payable - (9060,000)
Increase in guarantee deposits received 3,129,111 -
Decrease in guarantee deposits received - {985,624)
Payment of lease liabilities (569,136} -
Increase in other financial liabilities 1,702,438 -
Decrease in other financial liabilities - (164.886)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 4.997.413 (2.050.510)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents (749,606) 285,995
Net inerease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21,346,541 (200,820,464)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 917.445.741 1.118.266.205
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peried 5 938,792,282 917,445,741
Composition of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents reported in the statement of financial position s 153,888,000 172,694,828
Due from the central bank and call loans to banks qualifying for cash and cash equivalems under the definition of IAS 7 186,167,478 162,126,076
Securities purchased under resell agreements qualifying for cash and cash equivalents under the definition of IAS 7 508.736.804 582.624.837
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of period 3 938,792,282 917,445,741

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements and Report Originally Issued in Chinese)

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

Organization and Business Scope

(@)

(b)

Taiwan Financial Holdings

On January 1, 2008, Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (the Company) was incorporated in
accordance with the Act of Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd. and has three investee companies:
"Bank of Taiwan" (*BOT"), "BankTaiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd." (*BTLI”) and "BankTaiwan
Securities Co., Ltd." (*BTS”). Taiwan Financial Holdings became a public company on November
17, 2009.

The government approved $90 billion as the Company’ s capital while it was established, and
$103.125 billion in September 2019. The Company engages mainly in investing and managing
investee companies. The investing business complies with the Financial Holding Company Act.

Subsidiaries' activities

Bank of Taiwan (“BOT”) was established on May 20, 1946. BOT became a legal entity in 1985 in
accordance with the Banking Act of the Republic of China, and transformed into a corporate entity
since July 1, 2003. BOT hecame a public company on September 16, 2004,

BOT merged with the Central Trust of China effective on July I, 2007. The Central Trust of China
was the dissolved company, and BOT was the surviving company. BOT is primarily involved in:

(i) all commercial banking operations allowed under the Banking Law;

(i) foreign exchange operations allowed under the Foreign Regulation Act;

(iii) operations of offshore banking unit allowed under the Offshore Banking Act;

(iv) savings and trust operations;

(v) overseas branch operations authorized by the respective foreign governments; and
(vi) other operations authorized by the central competent authority in charge.

The assets of BOT have continuously increased through revaluations of its legal and special reserve
over the period since the Government provided the capital for the establishment of BOT. After the
currency revolution in June 1949, the Government approved $5 million as the Bank’s capital in May
1950; $100 million in May 1954; $300 million in August 1963; $600 million in September 1967; §1
billion in May 1973; $2 billion in September 1977; $4 billion in September 1980; $8 billion in
November 1982; $12 billion in May 1990; $16 billion in April 1992; $22 billion in December 1994,
$32 billion in August 1998; $48 billion in September 2002; $53 billion in July 2007; $45 billion in
January 2008; $70 billion in November 2010 and $95 billion in October 2014 and $109 billion in
September 2019.

{Continued)
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TAITWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT invested $20 million dollars to set up a subsidiary, BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers, which was
approved on January 23, 2013 and officially set up on February 6, 2013. The subsidiary mainly
engages in life insurance and property insurance brokerage.

BankTaiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (“BTLI™) was the life insurance department of BOT and was
separated from BOT on January 2, 2008, with net assets $5 billion yield by BOT as its owner's
equity. BTLI has increased its capital by $2 billion, $4 billion, $6 billion, $5.5 billion and $10 billion
on June 30, 2009, June 30, 2010, June 28, 2013, September 30, 2015 and June 29, 2018,
respectively. BTLI's capital is currently $32.5 billion. BTLI became a public company on November
18, 2013. Its main businesses are life insurance and related businesses.

BankTaiwan Securities, Co., Ltd. (“BTS”) was the securities department of BOT and separated from
BOT on January 2, 2008, with net assets $3 billion yielded by BOT as its owner's equity.

BTS became a public company on October 21, 2013. BTS's main businesses include the following:
1. Securities trading brokerage. 2. Providing margin purchases and short sales for securities
transactions. 3. Securities dealing and underwriting. 4. Operating as futures introducing brokers.

(2) Financial statements authorization date and autherization process:

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the temporary Audit Committee as well as
temporary Board of Directors on March 30, 2020 and then published.

(3) New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Adopféd:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.Q.C. (“FSC*) which have already been adopted.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
[FRS 16 “Leases” Janvary 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treaiments” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with negative compensation” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures” January 1, 2019

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019

{Continued)
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"TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Except for the following items, the Company and subsidiaries believe that the adoption of the above
IFRSs would not have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and
impact of signification changes are as follows:

(i) IFRS 16“Leases™

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases —~ Incentives and S1C-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Company and subsidiaries applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach,
under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognized in retained earnings on
January 1, 2019. The details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed below,

1)  Definition of a lease

Previously, the Company and subsidiaries determined at contract inception whether an
arrangement is or contains a lease under IFRIC 4. Under IFRS 16, the Company and
subsidiaries assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition of a
lease, as explained in Note 4(n).

On ftransition to IFRS 16, the Company and subsidiaries elected to apply the practical
expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. The Company
and subsidiaries applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified as
leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not
reassessed for whether there is a lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16
was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after January 1, 2019.

2) Asalessee

As a lessee, the Company and subsidiaries previously classified leases as operating or
finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Company and
subsidiaries, Under 1IFRS 16, the Company and subsidiaries recognizes right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.

The Company and subsidiaries decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-term
leases of machinery and leases of IT equipment.

e  Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the Company and subsidiaries’ s incremental
borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments — the Company and subsidiaries applied this approach to all
other lease.

(Continued)
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

3)

4)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

In addition, the Company and subsidiaries used the following practical expedients '
when applying IFRS 16 to leases.

—  Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

—  Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for
leases with less than 12 months of lease term.

—  Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application.

—  Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

As alessor

The Company and subsidiaries are not required to make any adjustments on
transition to IFRS 16 for leases in which it acts as a lessor, except for a sub-lease.
The Company and subsidiaries accounted for its leases in accordance with IFRS 16
from the date of initial application.

Impacts on financial statements

On transition to IFRS 16, the Company and subsidiaries recognised additional
$1,578,836 thousands of lease liabilities, $128,628 thousands of prepaid rents, and
$1,707,464 thousands of right-of-use assets, with no difference in retained earnings.
When measuring lease liabilities, the Company and subsidiaries discounted lease
payments using its incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019. The weighted-average
rate applied is 0.815%, 1.165%, 0.746% and 0.815% for the Company, BOT, BTLI and
BTS, respectively.

{Continued)
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The explanation of differences between operating lease commitments disclosed at the
end of the annual reporting period immediately preceding the date of initial application,
and lease liabilities recognized in the statement of financial position at the date of initial
application disclosed as follows:

January 1, 2019
Operating lease commitment at December 31, 2018 as disclosed in $ 991,050
the Group’s consolidated financial statements
Recognition exemption for:
short-term leases | (892)
leases of low-value assets (3,463)
Extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised 241,978
Variable lease payment based on an index or a rate 412.799
§ 1,641,472
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019 § 1,578,836
Finance lease liabilities recognized as at December 31, 2018 -
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 1.578.836

(b) The impact of IFRS endorsed by the FSC but not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 in accordance with Ruling No.
1080323028 issued by the FSC on July 29, 2019:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS39 and IFRS7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform™ January 1, 2020
Amendments to JAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020

Except for the following items, the Company and subsidiaries believe that the adoption of the above
IFRSs would not have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and
impact of significant changes are as follows:

(i) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39 and IFRS7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”

The amendments provide targeted relief for financial instruments qualifying for hedge
accounting in the lead up to IBOR reform. They are mandatory and apply to all hedging
relationships directly affected by uncertainties related to 1BOR reform. For example, the
entities are required to assume that the interest rate benchmark on which hedged cash flows are
based is not altered as a result of IBOR reform when assessing whether the future cash flows
are highly probable.

(Continued)
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) The impact of IFRS issued by the IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

As of the date, the following IFRSs that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“]IASB”), but have yet to be endorsed by the FSC:

Effective date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per JASB
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between Effective date to
an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” be determined
by IASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™ January 1, 2021

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”  January 1, 2022
Those which may be relevant to the Company and subsidiaries are set out below:

Issuance / Release Standards or
Dates Interpretations Content of amendment
September 11,2014 Amendments to IFRS 10and  The amendments address an acknowledged
IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution  inconsistency between the requirements in
of Assets Between an Investor IFRS 10 and those in 1AS 28 (2011) in

and Its Associate or Joint dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
Venture” between an investor and its associate or joint
venture.

The main consequence of the amendments is
that a full gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction involves a business (whether it is
housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain
or loss is recognized when a transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a
subsidiary.

{Continued)
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLBING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Issuance / Release Standards or
Dates Interpretations Content of amendment
May 18, 2017 IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts® The new standard of accounting for

insurance contracis contain recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts issued, and the main
amendments are as follows:

e Recognition: the beginning of the
coverage period of the group of contracts,
the date when the first payment from a
policyholder in the group becomes due
and when the group becomes onerous
shall recognize a group of insurance
contracts it issues from the earliest.

¢ Measurement: on initial recognition, an
entity shall measure a group of insurance
contracts at the total of the fulfilment cash
flows and the contractual service margin.
For subsequent measurement, the entity
shall estimate the cash flows, discount
rates and the adjustment for non-financial
risk.

e Presentation and  disclosure:  the
presentation of insurance revenue is based
on the provision of service pattern and
investment components excluded from
insurance revenue.

The Company and subsidiaries are evaluating the impact of their initial adoption of the
abovementioned standards or interpretations on its consolidated financial position and consolidated
financial performance. The results thereof will be disclosed when the Company and subsidiaries
complete their evaluation.

(4) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The adopted significant accounting policies are summarized as follows. Except for those with
interpretations, the following policies have been applied consistently to all reporting periods of these
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with relevant government
regulatory. The Company and subsidiaries set up their accounting policies and prepare the financial
statements according to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Financial
Holding Companies, and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards and, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Committee, ROC.

(Continued)
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company and subsidiaries are government-owned enterprises, so its accounting practices mainly
follow the Budget Law, Budget Settlement Law and Uniform Regulations on Accounting Systems
for Banks Governed by the Ministry of Finance (“MoF”). The annual financial statements are
examined by the Ministry of Audit (“MoA”) to ensure that the Company and are subsidiaries comply
with the budget approved by the Legislative Yuan, the parliament of ROC Taiwan. The financial
statements become final only after such an endorsement by the MoA.

The financial statements of 2018 was certified by the MoA, and the opening balances of retained
earnings of 2019 are the same as those certified in the closing balances of 2018. Please refer to Note
16(b) for the government audit adjustments.

{(b) Basis of preparation
(i) Basis of Measurement

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following items.

1)  Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss (including derivative
financial instruments);

2)  Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;
3)  Derivative financial instruments designated as hedges which are measured at fair value;

4)  The defined benefit assets which is the net amount of the pension fund less the present
value of the defined benefit obligation;

5)  Some property, equipment and investments property of which the revaluation value is
used are deemed as cost on revaluation date in accordance with the ROC GAAP;

6) Reinsurance assets, insurance liabilities and foreign exchange volatility reserve which
are accounted in accordance with the Regulations Governing Insurance Enterprises for
Setting Aside Various Reserves.

(i) Preparing the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs requires not only the use of some
critical accounting estimates in the application of the Company's accounting policies but also
the management's judgment on significant assumptions and estimates of the financial
statements. Please refer to note 5 for further information.

(iii) The consolidated financial statements are composed of the consolidated balance sheet, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, the consolidated statement of cash flow and the related notes.

(iv) Functional currency and presentation currency

The functional currency of each entity of the Company and subsidiaries are based on the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which also the functional currency of the
Company and subsidiaries. All financial information represented in New Taiwan dollars has
been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(Continued)
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TATWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) Basis of consolidation

(©

(i)

Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and subsidiaries. The financial
statements of its subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-
controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if the
non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements

Shareholdings
December December
Name of Investor Name of Subsidiary Principal activities 31,2019 31,2018
The Company Bank of Taiwan (“BOT™) Banking 100 % 100 %
The Company BankTaiwan Life Insurance Life Insurance 100 % 100 %
(“BTL}”)
‘The Company BankTaiwan Securities (“BTS™) Broker 100 % 100 %
Bank of Taiwan BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers Life and Property 100 % 100 %
(“BTIB™) insurance broker

{(d) Foreign currency

®

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functionat currencies of the
Company and subsidiaries at the exchange rates of the dates of the transactions. At the end of
cach subsequent reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies of the
reporting date are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate of that date.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
translated into the functional currencies using the exchange rate of the date that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of translation.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for the following
differences which are recognized in other comprehensive income arising on the retranslation:

1)  equity investment measured at fair vajue through other comprehensive income;

2)  afinancial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to
the extent that the hedge is effective; or

3) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent the hedges is effective.

(Continuved)
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TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair vatue adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into the Company's and subsidiaries' functional currency
at the exchange rates of the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations,
excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated into the Company's
and subsidiaries' functional currency at average rate. Foreign currency differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign currency translation
reserve (translation reserve) in equity.

However, if the foreign operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant
proportion of the translation difference is allocated to non-controlling interests. When a
foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost,
the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Company and subsidiaries
dispose of any part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while
retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-
controlling interest. When the Company and subsidiaries dispose of only part of investment in
an associate of joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant or
joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is
neither planed nor likely in the foreseeable future, exchange differences arising from such
items are considered to form part of a net investment in the foreign operation and are
recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

For consolidated balance sheets, Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, due from banks,
demand deposits and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amount of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. The aforementioned time
deposits which are held for short-term cash commitment rather than investment or other purposes are
recognized as cash equivalents.

For consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents refer to cash and cash
equivalents presented in consolidated statement of balance sheet, deposit in the central bank, call
loans to banks, and investments which are in accordance with the definition of cash and cash
equivalents in the International Accounting Standards 7 accepted by the FSC.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company and
subsidiaries becomes a party to the contractval provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless
it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(Continued)
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Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial assets are classified into the following categories: measured
at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The Company and subsidiaries shall reclassify all affected financial assets only when it
changes its business model for managing its financial assets.

1)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalent,
placement with central bank and call loans to banks, discounts and loans, receivables,
other financial assets and margins or security deposits)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

If the credit risk of debt instruments measured at amortized cost has not increased
significantly since initial recognized, the Company and subsidiaries should measure the
loss allowance for financial instruments at 12 months expected credit loss at the
reporting date; if the credit risk of financial instruments has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company and subsidiaries should measure the loss allowance for
debt instruments at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date. Expected credit loss (or reversal} amount should be recognized in profit or loss as
impairment loss or profit.

(Continued)



20

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

2)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Credit maturing less than one year is calied short-term loan; credit maturing more than
one year but less than seven years is called medium-term loan; credit maturing more than
seven years is called long-term loan. Loans against insurance policy is policy loan, and
advance payment for insurance premium according to insurance contract is premium
loan. Loans with collateral, pledged assets and qualified guarantees to secure credit are
secured loans. Non-performing loans refer to those loans for which interests and
principal payments has been in arrears for three months or more, and those loans which
the principal or interest has not yet been in arrears for more than three months, but with
regards to which the creditor has sought payment from primary/subordinate debtors or
has disposed of collateral. All non-performing loans shall be transferred to non-accrual
loans within six months after the end of the payment period expect for the loans repaid in
installments by agreements. Interest shall not be accrued to non-performing loans that are
transferred to non-accrual loans account. However, loan collection shall continue as per
the terms of the relevant agreement, and accrued interest shall continue to be posted to
the interest column of the non-accrual loans account for each borrower, or a notation of
such shall be made.

The write-off of non-performing loans and non-accrual loans of BOT shall be discussed
by the related committee, reviewed by the general manager and approved by a resolution
passed by the board of directors or the board of managing directors and the audit
committee shall be notified of the write-off. The board of directors shall be notified if the
write-off case is passed by the board of the managing directors. Collections after write~
off shall be reversed from the allowance for bad debt.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both coliecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company
and subsidiaries may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument by
instrument basis.

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(Continued)
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Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company and
subsidiaries’s right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss {“FVTPL”)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets and accounts receivables
(except for those presented as accounts receivables but measured at FVTPL). On initial
recognition, the Company and subsidiaries may irrevocably designate a financial asset,
which meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Business model assessment

The Company and subsidiaries make an assessment of the objective of the business
model in which a financial asset is held at portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes :

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies
in practice. These include whether management’ s strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching
the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, and are consistent with the
Company and subsidiaries’ continuing recognition of the assets.

(Continued)
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Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘ principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial assets on initial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company and subsidiaries consider the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Company and subsidiaries consider:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;'
prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company's and subsidiaries' claim to cash flows from specified
assets (e.g. non recourse features)

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assets expire, or when the Company and subsidiarjes transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Company
and subsidiaries neither transfer nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a debt instrument in its entirety, the Company and subsidiaries
recognize the difference between its carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received or receivable and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented in “ other equity — unrealized gains or losses on
fair value through other comprehensive income™, in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a debt instrument other than in its entirety, the Company and
subsidiaries allocate the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part
that continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part that is
derecognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part derecognized
and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognized and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is
recognized in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and
the part that is derecognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

{Continued)
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Overlay approach

The subsidiary, BTLI, has applied IFRS 9 since 2018. To reduce the impact caused by
different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming IFRS 17, the Company and
subsidiaries simultaneously adopted overlay approach under IFRS 4 to present profit or
loss of designated financial assets.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1)

2)

3)

4)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company and subsidiaries are classified as
financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the
amount of consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company and subsidiaries comprise
convertible bonds denominated in NTD that can be converted to ordinary shares at the
option of the holder, when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary
with changes in fair value.

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognized at the
fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is initially recognized at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss. On conversion at
maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss.

(Continued)
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Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

5)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company and subsidiaries derecognize a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company and subsidiaries also
derecognize a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

6) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company and subsidiaries currently
have a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

7y  Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if
not designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of an asset, are measured
subsequently at the higher of: (a) the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and (b) the amount recognized initially less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the revenue recognition policies
set out below.

(ii1) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company and subsidiaries hold derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency and interest rate exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host
contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain
criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

The Company and subsidiaries choose to continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements
of IAS 39.

(Continued)
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The Company and subsidiaries designate certain hedging instruments as either fair value
hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations. Hedges of
foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At initial designated hedging relationships, the Company and subsidiaries document the risk
management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company and subsidiaries
also document the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument,
including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged items and hedging instrument are
expected to offset each other.

Pecuniary and securities financing and refinancing

Pecuniary finance represents loans extended to securities investors for the purchase of securities and
is accounted as receivables from pecuniary finance. Such loans are secured by the securities
purchased by the investors. These securities are not reflected in the financial statements of the
subsidiary, BTS. The investors may redeem the collateral securities upon repayment of the loans.

Securities finance represents securities lent to investors and is affected by lending to securities
investors securities in custody that are received from pecuniary finance or borrowed from securities
finance companies when necessary. Such securities finance is not reflected in the financial
statements of the subsidiary, BTS. The investors’ deposits for borrowing securities are held by the
subsidiary, BTS, as collateral and recorded under securities finance margin deposits received. In
addition, investors are required to deposit the proceeds from sales of borrowed securities. Such
deposits are accounted for as payables for securities financing.

Pecuniary refinancing represents loans from securities finance companies when the subsidiary, BTS,
lacks sufficient funds to perform pecuniary financing. These loans are recorded as refinance
borrowings.

Securities refinancing represents securities borrowed from securities finance companies when the
subsidiary, BTS, does not have sufficient securities to perform securities financing. For securities
refinancing, the subsidiary, BTS, pays margin deposits to securities finance companies. These
margin deposits are recorded as refinance margin deposits. The subsidiary, BTS, also provides
securities investors' proceeds from selling borrowed securities to securities finance companies as
collateral and records them under receivables from securities refinance.

Repo and reverse repo transactions involving bill and bond investment or debt

Repo and reverse repo bond transactions are the sale or purchase of a bond coupled with an
agreement to repurchase or resell the same or substantially identical bond at a stated price. Such
transactions are treated as collateral for financing transactions and not as the sale or purchase of
trading securities. When conducting such transactions, the actual attained amount are recognized as
“Bills and Bonds Sold under Repurchase Agreement”, and the actual lend amount are recognized as
“Bills and Bonds Purchased under Resell Agreement™.

The related interest revenue or expenses are calculated by agreed interest rates.

(Continued)
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Investments in associates

" Associate refers to an entity in which the Company and subsidiaries have hold 20% of the voting

power or less than 20% of the voting power but have significant influence. If the Company and
subsidiaries have rights on the finance and operating policy decisions but not control or joint control
these decisions, it is presumed that the company and subsidiaries have significant influence.

The Company and subsidiaries use equity method for investments in associates. Under the equity
method, an equity investment is initially recorded at cost. In the subsequent period, the carrying
amount of the investments is adjusted by the share of the profit or loss of the associate and the
distributions received. Besides, the Company and subsidiaries recognize the changes according to
the holding shares.

If the Company and subsidiaries dispose the investment and loss significant influence, the residual
investments shall be remeasured at fair value of the disposal date. The difference between the fair
value of the residual investment, plus, the disposal price and the carrying amount of the investment
at that date is recognized in income statement. The related other comprehensive income is
reclassified as profit or loss.

The associate issues additional share capital, but the Company and subsidiaries do not participate in
the share issue on a pro-rata basis. It will lead to change in holding, but the Company and
subsidiaries still have significant influence. As a result, the Company and subsidiaries shall adjust
the APIC and investments in equity method accounts according to the changes in net assets of the
assoclate.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the The Company and subsidiaries and an
associate are recognized only to the extent of unrelated the Company and subsidiaries’s interests in
the associate.

When the Company and subsidiaries' share of losses exceeds its interest in associates, the carrying
amount of the investment, including any long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced to
zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company and
subsidiaries have an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

Investment property

Investment property is the property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost including costs
and expenses are directly attributed to the acquisition of the investment property on initial
recognition and subsequently. The depreciation is computed along with the depreciable amount. The
method, the useful life and the residual amount are the same with those of property and equipment.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly aftributable to the acquisition of the investment property.

When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, the
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

(Continued)
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(k) Property, plant and equipment

M

®

(ii}

Giii)

(iv)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

1f significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

Reclassification to investment property

When there is a change in use, the Company and subsidiaries treat the owner-occupied
property as investment property; the property shall be reclassified to investment property at
carrying amount from then on.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and subsidiaries.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 8 to 55 years
Machinery and equipment 2 10 20 years
Transportation equipment 2 to 15 yeais
Miscellaneous equipment 2 10 25 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Reinsurance assets

To limit the potential damage of the exposure events, the insurance subsidiaries follows Insurance

Act

to process reinsurance contract. Even the reinsurer not perform obligation, the insurance

subsidiaries can not reject to fulfill the contract obligation for the insured.

(Continued)
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The insurance subsidiaries have the following rights over reinsurer: ceded unearned premium
reserve, ceded claim reserve, claims recoverable from reinsurers, and due from reinsurers and ceding
companies, net. The method used for estimating claims recoverable from reinsurers should be the
same as the method used for estimating the claim reserve liabilities.

The insurance subsidiaries should not offset reinsurance assets against the related insurance
liabilities, or income or expense from reinsurance contracts against the expense or income from the
related insurance contracts.

If there is evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance
asset, that the insurance subsidiary may not receive all amounts regulated under the terms of the
contract, and that event has a measurable amounts in terms of the influence of the event, the
insurance subsidiary shall recognize the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying
amount of the previously stated right as impairment loss.

In addition, in determining the classification of a reinsurance contract, insurance subsidiary
considers whether a significant insurance risk should be transferred to the reinsurer. If there is no
significant risk that are being transferred, the contract shall be recognized and measured in
accordance with deposit accounting and the consideration received or paid for reinsurance contracts
shall be treated as a financial liability or a financial asset, rather than as revenue or expense.

if a reinsurance contract on the ceded date or balance sheet date is deemed unqualified ceded
reinsurance under the Regulation Governing Insurance Enterprises Engaging in Operating
Reinsurance and Other Risk Spreading Mechanisms, the Company utilizes the Provision of
Unqualified Reinsurance Reserve to evaluate the effect of unqualified reinsurance in supervision
reports, and the results are disclosed in its financial statements. The Company has no unqualified
reinsurance so far.

Insurance coniracts

The insurance subsidiary classifies a contract as an insurance contract is when the insurance
subsidiary accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholder. The insurance risks refer to the risks that policyholder transfer to the
contract issuer excluding financial risks. Financial risks refer to the risk resulting from possible
changes in specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange
rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable in the future. If the
previously stated variables are non-financial variables, then the variables do not belong to any
specific side of the contract. Insurance contract may possibly transfer part of the financial risks.

The insurance subsidiary identifies the significant insurance risk if, and only if, an insured event
could cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario but excluding the
situation of lack of commercial substance. A contract that qualified as an “insurance contract”
remains an “insurance contract” until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired. The
insurance contract of which the significant insurance risks are not transferred are classified as
insurance contract with financial instrument features. However, if an insurance contract with
financial instrument features transfers significant insurance risk to the insurance subsidiary in
subsequent periods, it will be reclassified as "insurance contract”.

(Continued)



(m)

29

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Insurance contracts and insurance contracts with financial instrument features can be further divided
into 2 categories, which are insurance with discretionary participation feature or without
discretionary participation feature.

A discretionary participation feature is a contractual right to receive both the guaranteed benefits and
also the additional benefits:

(i) that are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;

(ii) whose amount or timing of distribution of additional benefit is contractually at the discretion
of the company; and

(iii) the additional benefit are contractually based on:
1)  the performance of a specified pool of the contracts or a specified type contract;
2y the rate of return of a specific asset portfolio, or
3)  the profit or loss of the company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.

If the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, it is required to be separated from the host
contract and the value embedded derivate shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss, and
the change shall be recognized as current gains or losses. If the embedded derivate is itself an
insurance contract or in the case of an insurer need not separate it and is able to measure it at fair
value through profit or loss, the company does not need to separate the embedded derivate and the
insurance contract in terms of recognition.

Lease

Applicable from January 1. 2019

(i) Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract, the Company and subsidiaries assess whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company and
subsidiaries assess whether: '

1)  the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity
of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the
asset is not identified; and

2)  the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset throughout the period of use; and

{Continued)
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3)  the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset throughout the period of use only
if either:

e the customer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used
throughout the period of use; or

e the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asset is used are
predetermined and:

~  the customer has the right to operate the asset throughout the period of use,
without the supplier having the right to change those operating instructions;
or

—  the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be?used throughout the period of use.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
and subsidiaries allocate the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone prices.

As a leasee

The Company and subsidiaries recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company and subsidiaries’s incremental borrowing
rate. Generally, the Company and subsidiaries use their incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

—  amounts expecied to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

—  payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.
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The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

—  there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

—  there is a change in the Company and subsidiaries’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee; or

—  there is a change of its assessment on whether it wiil exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option; or

—  there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company and subsidiaries account
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss
any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Company and subsidiaries present right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of
investment and lease liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial
position.

The Company and subsidiaries have elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for short-term leases. The Company and subsidiaries recognize the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(iii) As a leasor

When the Company and subsidiaries act as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the
Company and subsidiaries make an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers to the
lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an
operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Company and subsidiaries consider certain
indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

If an arrangement contains Jease and non-lease components, the Company and subsidiaries
apply 1IFRS15 to allocate the consideration in the contract.
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Applicable before January 1. 2019

®

(i)

Lessor

A finance lease asset is recognized on a net basis as lease receivable. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the net investment in the
leased asset. The finance income is allocated to each period during the Jease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the receivable.

Lease income from an operating lease is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and recognized as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the lease income. Incentives granted to the lessee to enter into the
operating lease are spread over the lease term on a straight-line basis so that the lease income
received is reduced accordingly.

Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period when the lease adjustments are
confirmed.

Lessee

Leases in which the Company and subsidiaries assume substantiaily all of the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. On initial recognition, the lease asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value or the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to the asset. -

Minimum lease payments made under finance Jeases are apportioned between the finance cost
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance cost is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognized in the Company and subsidiaries’
balance sheets.

Payments made under operating leases (excluding insurance and maintenance expenses) are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Contingent rent is recognized as expense in the period in which it is incurred. Recognition of
income arising from a sale and leaseback transaction depends upon the type of lease involved.
If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over
the carrying amount is deferred and amortized over the lease term. If a sale and leaseback
transaction results in an operating lease, and it is clear that the transaction is established at fair
value, any profit or loss is recognized immediately. If the sales price is below fair value, any
profit or loss shall be recognized immediately except that if the loss is compensated for by
future lease payments at below-market price, it is deferred and amortized in proportion to the
lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to be used. If the sales price is
above fair value, the excess over fair value is deferred and amortized over the period for which
the asset is expected to be used.
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For operating leases, if the fair value at the time of a sale and leaseback transaction is less than
the carrying amount of the asset, a loss equal to the amount of the difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value shall be recognized immediately.

(o) Intangible assets

()

(i)

(i)

Computer Software

The Company and subsidiaries measure the computer software at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated loss.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill and intangible assets with all indefinite useful
life, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Computer software 5 years

The residual value, amortization period, and amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life shall be reviewed at least annually at each fiscal year-end. Any change shall
be accounted for as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible asset is derecognized when disposed or expected that the usage or disposal will not
generate economic benefit in the future. The resulted gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement.

(p) Impairment of assets

®

Impairment of financial assets

The Company and subsidiaries recognize loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, placement
with central bank and call loans to banks, amortized costs, discounts and loans, receivables,
loans, margins or security deposits, and other financial assets) and debt investments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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At each reporting date, the Company and subsidiaries assess whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition or the financial assets are credit impaired, the
Company and subsidiaries should measure loss allowance for financial assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL at each reporting date; if the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company and subsidiaries measure loss allowance for financial
assets as 12 month ECL at reporting date.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that resuit from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

12 month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company and subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company and subsidiaries in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company and subsidiaries expect to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate
of the financial asset.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognized
in other comprehensive income instead of reducing the carrying amount of the asset. The
Company and subsidiaries recognize the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) in profit
or loss, as an impairment gain or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company and subsidiaries determine that the debtor does not have assets or sources of incomne
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in
order to comply with the Company's and subsidiaries’ procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment loss of non financial assets

For non financial assets except for the deferred tax asset and asset caused by the employee
benefit, the Company and subsidiaries shall assess at the end of each reporting date whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company and subsidiaries shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the asset individually, they shall determine the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced to its recoverable amount. That
reduction is an impairment loss which shall be recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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The Company and subsidiaries assess at the end of each reporting date whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss recognized in prior years for an asset other than goodwill
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity shall
estimate the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an asset other than goodwiil shall be
reverse if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset shall be increased to its recoverable
amount, but the increased carrying amount of an asset or an cash generating unit other than
goodwill attributable to a reversal of the impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset or the cash generating unit in prior years.

Notwithstanding whether indicators exist, recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives or those not yet in use are required to be tested at least annually.
Impairment loss is recognized if the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount,

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination shall, from
the acquisition date, be allocated to each of the acquirer’s cash generating units, or groups of
cash generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units or
group of units.

If the carrying amount of the cash generating uniis exceeds the recoverable amount of the unit,
the entity shall recognize the impairment loss, and the impairment loss shall be allocated to
reduce the carrving amount of each asset in the unit.

Reversal of an impairment loss for goodwiil is prohibited.

(@) Provision

0]

(i)

(i)

The Company and subsidiaries must recognize a provision if, and only if:

13 There is a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past event, and
2)  Payment is probable, and

3) The amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision should be the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date .In reaching its best estimate, the
Company and subsidiaries shall take into account the risks, uncertainties that surround the
underlying events and the time value of the currency.

The Company and subsidiaries evaluate the provision at every end of the reporting date, and
adjust the carrying amount according to the best estimation.
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Other reserves

Provision for civil servants’, teachers’ and labor’s insurance: The bank subsidiary recognizes the
surplus of the insurance as provision and withdraws when there is a deficit according to the Civil
Servant and Teacher Insurance Act and the Guidelines for Management and Employment of Public
Servants and Teachers Insurance Reserve.

Separate account — insurance instrument assets

The insurance subsidiary is engaged in selling investment linked products. The payment of
premiums (net of administrative expense) is recorded in a separate account which shall only be used
in a way agreed by the proposer. The assets of separate accounts are valued at market price on the
valuation date, and the insurance subsidiary follows the related rules and financial accounting
standards in the IFRS to determine the nef asset value.

In accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Insurance
Companies, the assets and liabilities are recorded as "Assets on insurance product, separated
account” and "Liabilities on insurance product, separated account”, no matter it is caused by a
insurance contract or the insurance contract with financial instrument feature. The revenue and
expenses in accordance with the definition of IFRS No.4 (including insurance products, separated
account with discretionary participating features) are recorded as "Income on insurance product,
separated account" and "Disbursements on insurance product, separated account", respectively.

Insurance liabilities

Reserves for insurance contracts are provided in accordance with the Regulations Governing
Insurance Enterprises for Setting Aside Various Reserves and are also certified by an appointed
actuary approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission, Executive Yuan, R.O.C. (“FSC”).
Except the reserves for short-term group insurance, the reserve basis shall be based on the greater
amount of actual premium income or the premium income as calculated under the Tai Tsai Pao No.
852367814 and other reserve basis listed below:

In addition, partial insurance contracts contain a discretionary participation feature as well as a
guaranteed element; the insurance subsidiary classifies the whole contract as a liability rather than
recording them separately.

(i) Unearned premium reserve

The unearned premium reserve should be provided based on the unexpired risk for the in force
policies with an insurance term of less than one year, the accident insurance with an insurance
term of more than one year, and the investment linked insurance and universal insurance
agreed to collecting fees periodically based on the calculation in accordance with one year
term insurance cost method.

(Continued)
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Claims Reserve:

1)  Claim reserves for businesses with less than one year insurance term and for accident
insurance with more than one year insurance term shall be provided as follows:

Claim reserves provided for health and life insurance which became effective after
January 1, 2010, and accident insurance are set aside using the loss development triangle
method based on the previous claim experience. The reserves are respectively provided
for "Reported but Not Paid Claims" and "Not Reported and Not Paid". For "Reported but
Not Paid Claims", a reserve has been provided on a per policy claim report basis for each
type of insurance.

2)  Claim reserves provided for "Reported but Not Paid claims" derived from investment-
linked insurance, universal insurance, and life insurance, health insurance, and annuity
insurance with insurance terms more than one year are determined in accordance with
actual information on a per-policy-claim-report basis and are respectively set aside for
each type of insurance.

Policy reserve

The provision for policy reserves is- based on mortality tables and prescribed interest rates
approved by the FSC and calculated based on the modified reserve method in accordance with
the Article 12 of the Regulations Governing Insurance Enterprises for Setting Aside Various
Reserves and other regulations and approved calculation instructions filed with the FSC.

Since 2003, if the dividends of in-force policies are calculated in accordance with Tai Tsai Pao
No. 800484251, then the reduction in dividends resulting from the offsetting of mortality
margin and interest loss should be provided as long-term policy reserve.

Starting from 2012, the insurance subsidiary should provide the provision of policy reserve for
in-force policies to comply with Jin Guan Pao Tsai No. 10102500530 on January 19, 2012.
Calculated based on the terms of the Regulations Governing Insurance Enterprises for Setting
Aside Various Reserves, the recovery of the special catastrophe reserve should be provided as
policy reserve of life insurance-reversed catastrophe reserve. However, to comply with Jin
Guan Pao Tsai No. 10202124790 on November 21, 2013, the insurance subsidiary no longer
has to provide the new reserve since 2013.

Starting from 2012, in accordance with the Jin Guan Pao Tsai No. 10102500530 on January
19, 2012 and Aricle 11 of Value-added and Non-value-added Business Tax Act, a liability
reserve based on 3% of sales is provided for purposes of writing off overdue loans or providing
allowance for bad debts when the percentage of overdue loans is lower than 1%.
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(iv} Special reserve

1)

For retained business with an insurance period of one year or less, the insurance
subsidiary shall set aside the following catastrophe reserve and special risk volatlity
reserve in accordance with the following provisions:

a)

b)

Special catastrophe reserve:

i)  a special catastrophe reserve shall be set aside at the reserve ratio prescribed
by the competent authority. '

i}  upon the occurrence of a catastrophic event, actual retained losses in excess
of NT$30 million may be withdrawn from special catastrophe reserve and
shall be reported to the competent authority for recordation.

iii)y a special catastrophe reserve that has been set aside for more than 15 years
can be released based on the evaluation by actuary and -calculation
methodology approved by the competent authority.

Special risk-volatility reserve:

i)  For each type of insurance, when the balance of actual losses minus the
amount reversed from a special catastrophe reserve is lower than expected
losses, a special risk-volatility reserve shall be provided at 15 percent of the
difference.

ii)  When the balance of actual losses minus the amount reversed from a special
catastrophe reserve is greater than expected losses, the amount in excess of
expected losses may be reversed from the special risk-volatility reserve
previously provided. If the reserve for special risk-volatility reserve for a
particular type of insurance is insufficient to cover losses, the losses may be
reversed from the special risk-volatility reserve previously provided for
another type of insurance and shall be reported to the competent authority.

iiiy When cumulative provisions for the special risk-volatility reserve exceed 30
percent of the amount of retained earned premiums for the current year, that
portion in excess shall be released and treated as income.

Special reserves shall be set aside every year while the newly provided special
reserves {(net of taxes determined in accordance with IAS 12 — “Income Taxes™)
shall be recognized as special reserve under shareholders’ equity each year. Also,
the withdrawal or the released amount of special reserve (net of taxes determined in
accordance with IAS 12 — “Income Taxes”) based on the above-mentioned
regulations shall offset with special reserves of Special surplus recorded under
shareholders’ equity.

In addition, according to the Tai Tsai Pao No.0910074195, the insurance subsidiary
should provide the special reserve for the withdrawal amount of special risk-
volatility reserve (net of taxes), and should be authorized by the competent
authority before distributing or using those reserve for other purpose.
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2) According to the Tai Tsai Pac No.0910712459, BTLI should recognize the special
reserves for the participating insurance policy and write off the reserves when the
bonuses are declared.

3) According to the Jin Guan Pao Shou No.10302125060, if the result of the insurance
profit testing is negative, BTLI should recognize the special reserves according to the
related operating principles.

Premium deficiency reserve

For life insurance, health insurance, or annuities with an insurance term over one year, and
polices issued after January 1, 2001, a deficiency reserve is provided when the actual premium
written is less than the premium on the policy reserve prescribed by the competent authority.

In addition, the Company shall evaluate expected future claims and expenses for in-force
contracts with contract term less than one year and for accident insurance contracts with terms
over one year, and if the amount exceeds unearned premium reserve and expected future
premium income, a premium deficiency reserve should be provided for the difference.

Liability adequacy reserve

BTL] shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether its recognized insurance
liabilities recognized by BTLI are adequate are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
flows under its insurance contracts.

BTLI’s liability adequacy test is based on all insurance contracts that BTLI issues and adheres
to Actuarial Practice Guidance of IFRS 4 *Contracts Classification and Liability Adequacy
Test™” and its related regulations issued by The Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China.
The test is conducted on each balance sheet date by comparing the net carrying amount of its
insurance liabilities less related acquisition costs and intangible assets and current estimates of
future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If the assessment shows that the net carrying
amount is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency shall
be recognized in loss as liability adequacy reserve.

Policy reserve and premium deficiency reserve are discounted using the pre-decided rate,
liability adequacy reserve are discounted using the best-estimate for the return on investment,
based on current information. However, unearned premium reserve, claim reserve and special
reserve are not discounted.

Reserve for foreign exchange valuation

In accordance with the Regulations Governing the Setting Aside of Various Reserves by Insurance
Enterprises, starting on March 1, 2012, BTLI should set up a reserve for foreign exchange valuation
under liabilities for their foreign investments. In addition, BTLI transfers some of the special reserve
to the reserve for foreign exchange valuation as the opening balance. The maximum amount may not
exceed half of the special reserve for significant incidents and the special reserve for risk volatility
of various insurance types recorded under the liabilities as of December 31, 2011.
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The accumulated limit, provision, and offsetting of the reserve are as follows:

(i) Limit of provision: the total amount of its foreign investments at the end of current month
times the exposure ratio and fixed provision ratio to calculate the provision. In addition, the
foreign exchange gain from non-hedged foreign currency assets, if any, should time additional
provision ratio to calculate additional provision. '

(i) Limit of offsetting: The foreign exchange loss from non-hedged foreign currency assets, if any,
times additional offsetting ratio to calculate the offsetting amount for the current month. The
balance of this reserve at the end of each month shall not be lower than 20% of the higher of
the accumulated balabce of the reserve last year and the average amount of the accumulated
balances from 2002 through last year.

(ili) Life insurance business can increase the provision of the reserve after approved by the
authority, if necessary.

(iv) If the current balance of the reserve decreased to the lower limit and last for more than 3
months, the ratio of setting aside non-hedging foreign assets profit shall increase to 70% until
the balance bounces back to three times as high as the lower limit.

The exposure ratio mentioned in (i) referes to the ratio of total amount of foreign investments minus
traditional hedge premium and then divided by total amount of foreign investments. Traditional
hedging includes forward exchange agreement, FX swap, cross currency swap and non-deliverable
forward.

Exchange gains and losses of non-hedged foreign assets in (i) and (ii) refer to the gains and losses
generated from volatility of exchange rates, excluding the portion of hedged foreign investments.

The requirements for monthly fixed provision ratio, additional provision ratio and additional
offsetting ratio mentioned in (i) and (ii) are as follows:

(i) Fixed provision ratio is 0.05%. When it meets the condition, however, the ratio becomes
0.06%.

(i) Additional provision ratio and additional offsetting ratio are both 50%. When they meet the
condition, however, the ratio becomes 60%.

The conditions mentioned above are applicable only when the average hedge cost of NTD/USD
currency swaps from December of last year to November of the current year is greater than or equal
to 2%.

Future trader's equity

The future trader's equity is the future's margin and premium from future traders, plus, the daily
market value of the future. It is allowed to offset accounts, if, and only if, they belong to the same
client and same type . If the margin account is a debit balance, then a margin call is made and the
account owner must replenish the margin account.
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{w) Revenue and operating expense recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company and subsidiaries expect to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company and subsidiaries
recognize revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a
service to a customer.

() Subsidiary, BOT:

1)

2)

4

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising in the course
of the ordinary operating activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in
equity, other than increase relating to contributions from equity participants.

The amount of revenue arising on a transaction is usually determined by agreement
between the entity and the buyer or user of the asset. It is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of any trade
discounts and volume rebates allowed by the entity. Revenue shall be recognized when
all of the following criteria have been satisfied:

a) the seller has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of

ownership.

b) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the seller

¢) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably,

d) the seller retains neither continuing managerial involvement to degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and

e) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Except for the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, the
interest revenue and interest expense caused by the interest-bearing financial assets or
liabilities are calculated by effective interest method. For loans and receivables, the
Company and subsidiaries shall consider the materiality principle to decide to measure
the interest by agreed interest rate or effective interest rate.

Service fee income

i}  The service fee income arising from offering loan service or other services
shall be recognized in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

ii)  The service fee or expense arising from the loan service shall be amortized in
the service period or taken into account for calculating the effective interest
of loans and receivables in accordance with the materiality principle.
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5)  Dividend revenue: it shall be recognized if and only if the Company and subsidiaries
have right to receive the dividend revenue.

6)  According to the Civil Servant and Teacher Insurance Act, if GESSI experiences a loss,
the loss before May 31, 1999, would be covered by the Ministry of Finance; and the loss
after that date would be covered by an adjustment of the insurance premium.

7) Revenue and expense that relate to the same transaction or other event are recognized
simultaneously; this process is commonly referred to as the matching of revenue and
expense.

Subsidiary, BTLL

1)  Premium revenue recognition and policy acquisition costs

First-year and renewal premiums of insurance contract and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features are respectively recognized as income when
premiums are received and the policies are approved or due. Acquisition costs, including
commissions and other costs related to acquiring new business, are recognized as
expenses as incurred.

Premiums collected from the financial instruments without discretionary participation
features under insurance product, separated account shafl be recognized as premium
income to the extent of insurance component. The remaining, after being subtracted by
other revenues, including upfront fee or investment management service fee income,
shall be fully recognized as "Liabilities on insurance product, separated account” on the
balance sheet.

Investment management service fee income is recognized as revenue when received.
However, under the circumstance that the Company is obligated to provide future
services for the service fee received (such as up-front fee) the revenue recognition shall
be deferred as “unearned revenue liability™ until the services are provided and amortized
using the straight-line method over the passage of service period as “fee income.”
Furthermore, the incremental transaction coslt paid due to investment management
services provided for these insurance contracts (including commission fee and
overriding) shall be deferred to match its corresponding uneamed revenue liability as
“deferred acquisition cost” and amortized using the straight-line method over the passage
of service period as other operating costs.

In accordance with the recognition and calculation principles provided in the “Life
Insurance Industry Accounting System Guidance,” the Company determines whether to
recognize the unearned revenue liability and the deferred acquisition cost based on the
design of the insurance products and the comparison of service revenue received and
service cost incurred.
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Interest revenue

The interest revenue derived from bank deposit, loans, and bonds investments are
accounted on an accrual basis. For the over-due receivables, the interest will not be
recognized as revenue until they are received.

Lease income

Lease income from operating lease is recognized in profit or loss on a straight basis over
lease term. Incentives granted to the lessee to enter into the operating lease are spread
over the lease term on a straight-line basis so that the lease income received is reduced
accordingly.

(iii) The Subsidiary, BTS

1)

2)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

Brokerage commissions, profit or loss from the sale of securities, and the relevant
charges are recognized on the trade date.

Interest income or expenses of margin loans, securities financing and refinancing and
bonds purchased under agreement to resell and sold under agreement to repurchase are
recognized during the transaction periods on an accrual basis.

Consulting revenue and underwriting business revenue and expense are recognized
according to agreements on an accrual basis.

While offering future exchange supporting business, the future comuinission revenues
received from futures commission merchants are recognized during transaction period on
accrual basis.

The disposal profit and loss of equity investments measured through fair value are
recognized on transaction date.

Profit or loss of future: The future margin is recognized at cost. Futures are measured
through market price method every day. The valuation and disposal profit or loss shall be
recognized in the income statement. The related brokerage fees shall be recognized at the
trading date.

The profit or loss of options: The margin is recorded at cost. Options are evaluated using
market price method every month before they are exercised. The valuation profit or loss
and the disposal profit or loss shall be recognized in the income statement.

Interest revenue is calculated using the effective interest rate method.

(x) Employee benefit

@

Short-term employee benefit

The payroll, annual bonus, paid annual leave, interest expense arising from preferential interest
rate and non-monetary benefit are recognized in the accounting year in which the services are
rendered by employees.

(Continued)
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(ii) Pension

1y

2)

3)

Employee pension:

The grant of employees’ pension compromise: a) the contributions made by the Bank at
the rate from 4% to 8.5% of the employee’s monthly wage (depending on the employee’s
‘salary point’ and service period before the Labor Standards Act was applied) and the
contributions made by the employee at the rate of 3% of his or her monthly wage under
Article 9 and Article 8, respectively, of the aforementioned regulations. (The Bank
ceased to continue the contributions mentioned above after the Labor Standards Act was
applied.) The Bank also contributed 3% of the total amount of the wages as reserve. ;b)
the contributions calculated based on the employee’s monthly wage and service period
(after May 1, 1997) in accordance with Article 41 and the related regulations set forth in
the Labor Standards Act. All the contributions are made to the fund managed by the
Pension Supervision Committee for future payments.

I.abor pension:

Labor Pension is a defined contribution pension plan. The grant of labors® pension is
conducted under the Bank’s Work Rules before the Labor Standards Act was applied.
Under the Article 73 of the Rules, the service period before and after May 1, 1997 is
accumulated in accordance with the Rules and the Labor Standard Act, respectively. The
contributions calculated at a certain rate under Labor Pension are made to a designated
Labor Retirement Reserve Account for future payments. In addition, the Bank is required
to allocate 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the labor pension personal account
at the Bureau of the Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Pension Act, effective July 1, 2005.

For defined contribution plan, the employer has no further legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions in accordance with the Labor Pension Act.

(Continued)



45

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

4)

3)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the definite benefit plan, the independent actuary of the Company and subsidiaries
use the projected unit credit method to calculate the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the current service cost. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is the projected future cash flow discounted by the market yields at the end of
the reporting period on the bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
obligation and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are
expected to be paid. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) include
(a) actuarial gains or losses, (b) return on plan assets, excluding the amounts included in
the net interest on the net defined benefit liability {(asset), and {(c) any change in the effect
of the asset ceiling, excluding the amounts included in the net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset). The amounts recognized in other comprehensive income will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss. The Company and subsidiaries could
transfer the amounts recognized in other comprehensive income to equity. The Company
and subsidiaries decided to recognize the remeasurements of the defined benefit plan to
retained earnings; actuarial gains or losses for practical experience or actuarial
assumptions changes are recognized to other comprehensive income immediately. Prior
period servicing costs should be recognized in profit or loss immediately. The defined
benefit plan pension for the period adopts the pension cost rate determined by using the
actuarial assumptions prior to the reporting date and is calculated based on the fiscal
year. The pension also makes the adjustments to reflect significant market volatility,
significant curtailment and settlement, or other significant non-recurring matter after the
reporting date.

The oversea branches of the bank subsidiary follow the foreign government’ s
regulations.

(iii} Preferential interest deposits

1y

2)

3)

The Company and subsidiaries provide their employees the preferential interest deposits,
inchuding that for current employees and retired employees. The difference between the
preferential interest rate and the market rate are the employee benefit.

In accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
the Financial Holding Companies, if the preferential interest rate for retired employees
exceeds the market rate, the Company and subsidiaries shall calculate the excess interest
using the actuarial method by adopting the IAS 19 when the employees retire. However,
the actuarial assumptions shall follow the government’s related regulations. For the
preferential interest deposits paid for current employees, the Company and subsidiaries
shall calculate the interest monthly on accrual basis. The different amount of the
preferential interest rate and market interest rate is recognized under the preferential
interest account in the comprehensive Income statement.

As from July 1, 2018, the Company and subsidiaries terminate the preferential interest
deposits for retired employees, in accordance with the rule Tai Tsai Ku No.10700624450
issued by the Ministry of Finance.

(Continued)
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(iv) Civil servant and teacher insurance excess annuity benefit plans

)

According to the Civil Servant and Teacher Insurance Act (the CSTI Act) that took effect on
May 29, 2015 and Tui Yi Zi No. 10440257582 issued by the Ministry of Finance, the
Company’s employees who are not qualified for preferential interest deposits are entitled to
receive annuity when retiring or getting laid off if they meet the requirements prescribed in
Article 16 and 18 of the CSTI Act. The sum of the monthly payments from this annuity and the
total amount of the defined benefit plan shall not exceed 80% of twice the amount of the
employee’s salary at the time of retirement. Moreover, if the payment rate of the annuity is
lower than the basic rate of annuity (0.75%), the annuity will be calculated using the latter rate.
However, if the payment rate is higher than the upper limit (1.3%), the annuity is calculated
based on 1.3%.

The Company is responsible for the portion of the annuity payments that exceeds 0.75% and
the calculation is reviewed by the insurance carrier (Department of Government Employees'
Insurance, Bank of Taiwan) on a monthly basis in accordance with the CSTI Act.

Other employee's retirement benefits

1) Include three Chinese festival gifts, survivors benefit, and special benefits to retired
employees who were paid pension in early times.

2) It belongs to the definite benefit plan, and the independent actuary uses the projected unit
credit method to calculate the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the
current service cost. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is the projected
future cash flow discounted by the market yields at the end of the reporting period on the
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the obligation and that are
denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The
actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the other comprehensive income when they
oceur.

Income tax

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

®

Current income tax

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses)
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

(Continued)
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Deferred Tax

When measuring the deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability, the Company and subsidiaries
shall use the enacted tax rate for the periods in which deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability
are expected to be seftled or realized. Due to the temporary difference between the carrying
amount of the asset or liability in the consolidated financial report and the tax basis, the
deferred income tax is recognized. The main temporary differences are resulted from the
valuation of part financial instruments (including derivatives), pension and the reserves of
other retirement benefits. If the temporary differences are arising from goodwill or original
recognition of other assets and liabilities (excluding the merger) and the transaction does not
affect the taxable income and the accounting income, it will not be recognized as deferred tax
asset or deferred tax liabilities.

The deferred tax liability shall be recognized for all taxable temporary differences. But the
deferred tax asset can only be recognized when there is enough taxable income for deductable
temporary differences.

The temporary difference related to the investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates
shall be recognized as deferred income liability. If the parent company can control the time to
reverse the temporary difference and the temporary difference will probably not be reversed in
the foreseeable future, the temporary difference is not recognized.

Combined corporate income tax return

In accordance with the Article 49 of the Financial Holding Company Act, the Company and
domestic subsidiaries, in which over 90% of issued shares was held for 12 months within the
same taxation year, may adopt the linked-tax system for income tax filing. Other tax matters
should be conducted separately.

The measurement of income tax is treated in accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” when
adopting the linked-tax system for income tax filing. However, the excess or deficit payment of
income tax due to a combined corporate income tax filing is charged to current tax assets
(liabilities) in reasonable and consistent way.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share: The earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income or loss by
the weighted average number of common stocks outstanding over the reporting term.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company and subsidiaries that engage in business

activities that can generate revenues and expenses (including the revenues and expenses arising from
inter-company transactions). The segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the
Company's and subsidiaries' chief operating officer in order to decide the resource allocation and
assess the segments’ performance. Each segment has separate financial information.

(Continued)
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(ab) Due from Representative Organization

According to Military Insurance Act, the BTLI engages in the military insurance business and the
related transactions are recorded in due from representative organization based on military insurance
accounting requirement. Charges from military insurance business are recorded as fee income, and
the agent fee from other institutions on behaif of the company to collect premiums and to release of
benefit payments are recorded as expenses. Moreover, funding for military insurance is kept by
BTLI, and the interest is paid and recorded as interest expense.

However, according to the amendment of Military Insurance Act and the official letters issued by
Ministry of National Defense on March 19, 2018, the military reserve which was kept by the BTLI is
now returned to Ministry of National Defense and is transmitted to military insurance reserve
account on April 2, 2018,

(5) Significant Accounting Assumptions and Judgments, and Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation
of Financial Reports by Financial Holding Companies, and the International Financial Reporting
Standards, the International Accounting Standards and IFRS interpretation endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission R.O.C. (* FSC”), requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continued to monitor the accounting assumptions, estimates and judgments. It
recognized the changes in the accounting estimates during the period and the impact of the changes in the
accounting estimates in the next period.

Determination of the book value of the assets and the liabilities were influenced by the accounting
estimations and judgments that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. Actual results may significantly differ from the followings due to the
changes in accounting assumptions and judgments.

(a) The fair value valuation of non-active market or non-quoted financial instruments

The fair value of non-active market or non-quoted financial instruments is determined using
valuation techniques. Such fair value is based on observable data of similar financial instruments or
valuation model. If there are no observable market parameters, the fair value of financial instruments
is evaluated based on appropriate assumptions. If fair value is determined by the valuation model,
the model is calibrated to ensure that all output data and the results reflect the actual market price.

This valuation model use only observable data as much as possible. But for credit risk (both our own
and the contracting parties credit risk), the managements shall estimate the relation and the variation.

(Continued)
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The evaluation of financial asset impairments

The financial asset impairments of the Company and subsidiaries (including guarantees and loan
commitiments off balance sheet), measuring the loss allowance at an amount equal t0 12 month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, are determined by whether the credit risk of
the financial instruments have increased significantly since initial recognition. In order to measure
expected credit losses, the Company and subsidiaries consider the probability of default (“PD™) of
financial asset, issuer or counterparty, and include loss given defauli (* LGD”} multiplied by
exposure at default (“EAD™). Meanwhile, it also considers the impact of the time value of money to
calculate the expected credit losses for 12 month and lifetime, respectively. At every reporting date
the historical experience, current market situation and forward looking estimates, etc. are considered
by the Company and subsidiaries to determine the adopted assumptions and parameters when
calculating impairment.

Insurance liabilities and reserves of insurance policy with {inancial instrument nature

BTLI measures insurance liabilities based on the Regulations Governing Insurance Enterprises for
Setting Aside Various Reserves.

Reserves for life insurance are accrued using the lock in interest rate assumptions at issue for
reserves provision instead of the current market rate.

Unearned premium reserves are calculated by each insurance unexpired risk. The methods of reserve
provision are determined by actuaries about each insurance characteristic.

Claims reserve is estimated based on the loss of accrued triangie method. The major assumptions are
loss development factors and expected claims rate; hence, it results in ultimate claims costs. The loss
development factors and expected loss rates are based on BTLI's historical claims experiences, and it
also considers expense rates, claims management and other corporation’s policy adjustments.

Liability Adequacy Test is estimated based on the Code of Conduct of Actuarial Practice Under the
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No 40 — Contracts Classification and Liability
Adequacy Test announced by the Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China. BTLI evaluates
liability adequacy test using future insurance benefits, premiums, related fees and other reasonable
estimates for the current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts.

During the assessment process of liabilities, the use of professional judgment will affect the financial
statements regarding the net change in claim liability, insurance contract reserves net change with
the nature of financial, and the recognized amounts of the aforementioned.

Income taxes

The Company and subsidiaries need to pay income tax for various countries. When estimating the
globe income tax, the Company and subsidiaries rely on significant accounting estimations.
Determine the final tax amount need to go through numerous transactions and calculations. The
additional recognition of income tax liability which is related to the tax issue is based on deliberate
evaluation of the affection by the issue. The difference between the amount of original estimation
and the final amount will affect current income tax and deferred tax.

(Continued)
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Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans

The present value of retirement benefit obligation is based on several actuarial assumptions
(including the decisions made by Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C.). Any changes on these
assumptions will influence the fair value of the retirement benefit obligations. One of the
assumptions used to determine net pension cost (income) is the discount rate. The Company and
subsidiaries determined the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year, and used the rate to
calculate the present value of future cash flows on estimated payment of retirement benefit
obligation. To determine the appropriate discount rate, the Company and subsidiaries should
consider the followings: (1) interest rate of high quality corporate bonds or government bonds, (2}
the currency used for the corporate bonds or government bonds should be inconsistent with the
currency used for retirement benefit payments, (3) and the maturity period should be inconsistent
with related pension Hability periods.

The major assumptions of retirement benefit obligation were based on the actuarial assumptions of
prior year and adjusted according to current market conditions or regulations.

Classification of insurance policy and significant risk transfer test

BTLI is required to recognize insurance risks, other risks and other elements of the issued insurance
policies, and determine whether the elements of these contracts can be split and separately calculated
and whether the results will affect the classification of insurance contracts. In addition, BTLI shall
determine whether the insurance transfer insurance risk exists and contains a nature of business, as
well as whether the transfer of insurance risk is materially significant. BTLI also makes a significant
insurance risk transfer test and the judgments of the test results will affect the classification of
insurance contracts.

Identification and separation of the insurance contracts elements and the classification of the
insurance contracts will affect BTLI's revenue recognition, liabilities measurements and presentation
of the financial statements. '

Reinsurance reserves

Reinsurance reserve assets include ceded unearned premium reserve, ceded Claims reserve, ceded
Premium deficiency reserve and ceded Liability adequacy reserve. They shall be estimated according
to the Regulations Governing Insurance Enterprises for Setting Aside Various Reserves and the
Directions Concerning Compliance with Application of Reinsurance Business with Over One Year
by Life Insurance Enterprises which Recognize Receded Liability Reserves at the Balance Sheet.

The actuary uses the actuarial principles and related assumptions to estimate the reinsurance
reserves. The actuarial assumptions include the characteristics of insurances, the historical claims,
the loss development factors, the expected claim rate and the estimated future cash flow. The
actuary’s professional judgments will affect the recognized amount of the net change of insurance
liabilities and reinsurance reserves.
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(6) Explanation of Significant Accounts:

(a)

(b)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Cash on hand b 12,143,189 12,838,229
Foreign currency on hand 13,515,714 12,744,005
Bank deposits 9,555,192 6,808,334
Cash in transit 178,426 -
Notes and checks for clearing 4,456,443 9,914,126
Placement with banks 114,038,219 130,389,598
Cash equivalents 19,970 21,504
Less: Allowance for bad debts —placement with banks (19.153) {20.968)
Total $ 153,888,000 172,694,828

The balance of cash and cash equivalents presented in the statements of cash flows were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated balance sheets b 153,888,000 172,694,828
Placement with Central Bank of R.O.C. and other banks that 186,167,478 162,126,076
meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents under the
definition of IAS 7
Investments qualifying cash and cash equivalents under the 598,736,804 582,624,837
definition of IAS 7
Total $ 938,792,282 917.445,741

The Company and subsidiaries assess the loss allowance for cash and cash equivalents by using the
expected credit loss model. Due to the low credit risk of cash and cash equivalents, loss allowance is
recognized based on 12 month expected credit loss.

Placement with Central Bank and Call Loans to Banks

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Call loans to banks $ 164,756,870 130,191,705
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts —call loans to banks (88,767) (55,833)
Deposit reserve —account A and account B 97,220,751 108,000,510
Deposit reserve — foreign— currency deposits 696,546 720,060
Deposits in Central Bank — oversea branches 4,513,352 2,779,045
Deposits in Central Bank 293.488.120 293.495.362
Total $ 560,586,872 535,130,849

(Continued)
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According to the Central Bank of the Republic of China Act and the Banking Act, the deposit
reserves are determined monthly at prescribed rates based on the average balances of
customers’ New Taiwan Dollar denominated deposits. The account B deposit reserve is
subject to withdrawal restrictions, but reserve for account A and foreign currency denominated

deposit may be withdrawn anytime and are non interest earning.

Additionally, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, 60% of the reserve deposits coliected by the
subsidiary, BOT, on behalf of a government institution amounting to $4,288,120 thousand and
$4,295,362 thousand, respectively, were deposited in the Central Bank and their use is

restricted according to the regulations.

(c) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

(@

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit  §$ 18,906,332 15,556,919
or loss
Add: Valuation adjustment 455.136 (91.199)
Subtotal 19.361.468 15.465.720
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 218,332,332 239,757,898
through profit or loss
Add: Valuation adjustment 55.908.250 15.419.152
Subtotal 274.240.582 255.177.050
Total $ 293,602,050 270,642,770

Details of Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds  § 18,906,332 15,556,919
and others
Add: Valuation adjustment 455.136 (91.199)
Total 5 19.361.,468 15,465,720

(Continued)
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(iii) Detaiis of Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss were as

follows:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Commercial papers 3 29,557,348 38,969,252
Stocks and beneficiary certificates 174,348,483 171,275,762
Corporate bonds 1,194,938 946,597
Convertible bonds 2,152,504 3,969,775
Financial bonds 8,071,500 5,941,500
Negotiable certificates of deposits - 15,502,549
Foreign bonds 2,947,802 3,061,372
Foreign exchange call options 3,063 1,843
Bond futures margin - 21,913
Currency futures 5,154 5,611
Commodity futures margin 51,540 61,724
Add: Valuation adjustment — Non derivative financial 43,864,379 8,886,161
instruments
Valuation adjustment —Cross currency swaps 29,767 -
Valuation adjustment— Swaps 10,416,172 5,964,877
Valuation adjustment — Interest rate swaps 51,026 384,341
Valuation adjustiment —Forward foreign 305,761 157,825
exchange
Valuation adjustment — Asset swaps (note) 1,240,176 25,483
Valuation adjustment— Foreign exchange call 3,790 537
options
Valuation adjustment— Fixed rate commercial (3,148) -
paper
Valuation adjustment — Commodity futures 327 (72)
Total $ 274,240,582 255,177,050
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"(iv) Details of unexpired derivative financial instruments (Notional principal amount) were as

follows:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Foreign exchange call options 3 980,913 378,906
Swaps 593,909,780 740,244,839
Interest rate swaps 15,173,142 19,032,894
Forward foreign exchange 41,734,738 26,611,032
Fixed rate commercial paper 200,000 -

Asset swaps 43,366,828 4,702,455
Cross currency swaps 1,086,400 -
Commodity futures 240.207 4.207
Total $ 696,692,008 790,974,333

(v) For details of the valuation of the financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss,
please see note 7, “The Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of the Financial Instruments”.

(vi) Profitand loss on investments, please refer to note 6(ak).

(vii) As of December 31, 2019, the Company's and subsidiaries' financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss neither served as a guarantee or collateral, nor were they pledged.

(viii) The financial assets related to the investing activities of the issued insurance contracts to which
BTLI designates to apply the overlay approach are listed as follows:

December 31, December 31,

. 2019 2018
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
TSEC and TPEX stocks b 12,854,508 9,591,574
Exchange Traded Funds 12,005,595 4,045,091
Beneficiary certificates 297,080 2,500,259
Real estate securitization 1,949,335 1,483,897
Foreign stocks 174,134 694,263
Foreign exchange traded funds 4,486,177 5,229,266
Foreign mutual funds 714,115 856,168
Financial bonds 8,420,906 6,115,685
Foreign bonds 2.797.387 2.541.346

$_ 43,699,237 33.057,549
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The amount reclassified between profit or loss and other comprehensive income of these
designated financial assets applying the overlay approach is as follows:

2019 2018
Profits (Losses) reported in profit or loss for applying $ 4,590,532 (258,950)
IFRS 9
Less: profits reported in profit or loss if applied [AS 1,936,218 1.361.080
39
Profits (Losses) on reclassification under the overlay  § 2,654,314 (1,620,030)
approach

Due to the overlay approach adjustments, profits (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss adjust from $4,069,574 and $3,288,163 thousands to
$1,415,260 and $4,908,193 thousands.

(d) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
Negotiable certificates deposits 3 718,770,000 852,920,000
Government bonds 54,402,969 57,276,878
Financial bonds 18,982,698 10,270,982
Corporate bonds 47,003,693 41,915,570
Financial asset securitization beneficiary certificates 250,716 500,000
Foreign government bonds, corporate bonds, financial 80,794,075 80,415,018
bonds, and NCDs
Add: Valuation adjustment , 1.602.823 731.930
Subtotal 921,806,974 1.044.034,378
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
TSEC and TPEX stocks 45,232,631 43,115,063
Add: Valuation adjustment 56.800.055 40,652,566
Subtotal 102.032.686 83.767.629
Total $  1,023,839.660 1.127.802,007
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Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company and subsidiaries have assessed that the securities shown above are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting the contractual cash flows and
selling securities; therefore, they have been classified as debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income on January 1, 2018.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company and subsidiaries designated the investments shown above as equity securities as
at fair value through other comprehensive income because these equity securities represent
those investments that the Company and subsidiaries intend to hold for long term for strategic
purposes.

1)

2)

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018 , the dividends of $3,555,239 and $3,318,374
thousand, related to equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
held on December 31, 2019 and 2018 -separately were recognized. In addition, the
dividends of $111,187 and $5,253 thousand, related to the investments derecognized
was recognized in 2019 and 2018.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company and subsidiaries sold its equity
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as a result of
adjustment in investment position and portfolio management. The equity instruments
sold had a fair value of $4,193,426 and $1,592,311 thousand ,and the Company and
subsidiaries realized a loss of $335,944 and $256,163 thousand, which was already
included in other comprehensive income. The loss has been transferred to retained
earnings.

(iii} Profit and loss on investments, please refer to 6(al).

(iv) As of December 31, 2019, the Company and subsidiaries' financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income were used as collateral, please refer to 11.

Hedging Derivative Financial Instruments

The content of hedging asset is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Fair value hedges :
Interest rate swap b 1071 41,693
The content of hedging liability is as follows:
December 31, Pecember 31,
2019 2018
Fair value hedges :
Interest rate swap 5 25,537 12.973
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In order to decrease the fair value volatility caused by changes of market interest rate, the Company
and subsidiaries use interest rate swaps and asset swaps for dome debt investments with fixed
interest rate. In doing so, the risk exposure position will calculated by floating interest rate and the
interest rate risk will be hedge.

Hedging Investments Fair Value
Designated Hedging  December 31, December 31,

Hedged Item Instruments 2019 2018
USD financial bonds interest rate swap $ {22,055) 32,993
USD corporate debts 7 . (2,849) 3,954
USD government debts ” 438 (8,227)

The net gain(loss) of above hedging instruments in 2019 and 2018 are $(58,149) thousand and
$29,480 thousand, respectively. The net gains and losses of hedged items embedded in hedging
instrument in 2019 and 2018 are $53,890 thousand and $(67,296) thousand, respectively.

Bills and-Bonds Purchased / Sold under Resell (Repurchase) Agreements
The details of bonds and bills purchased / sold under resell (repurchase) agreements were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Bills and bonds purchased under resell agreements:
Negotiable certificates of deposit $ - 5,183,607
Commercial paper 6,685,600 3,966,052
Government bonds 232,131 232,000
Corporate bonds 900.380 250476
Total 3 7.818.111 9.632,135
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Bills and bonds sold under repurchase agreements:
Commercial papers s 29,973 29,975
Government bonds 19,976,624 6,840,195
Corporate bonds 2,700,568 3,425,574
Financial bonds 1,790,702 15,615,526
Supranational bonds - 291,230
Foreign government bonds - 333,911
Convertible Corporate bonds - 26.500
Total 3 24,497,867 26.562.911
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() Receivables, net

Accounts receivable

Long-term receivables—payment on behalf of the
government

Accrued incomes

Interests receivable

Premiums receivable

Reinsurance current receivable

Notes receivable and acceptance notes receivable
Accounts receivable factoring without recourse
Margin loans receivable

Accounts receivable for settlement

Dividends receivable

Others —settlement prices

Others —replenishment of national treasury
Others —undelivered spot exchange

Other— ATM temporary receipts, payments and interbank
difference

Others —FX Swaps
Others-pending settlement
Others
Subtotal
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts
Total

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

s 1,115,147 1,349,564
16,350,219 16,097,415
1,128,731 847,418
16,997,915 16,357,530
139,660 138,389
- 4,672
1,211,379 2,958,192
12,132,077 13,232,575
3,050,109 2,522,262
3,550,932 1,823,393

500 -
- 494,281
7,362,748 6,299,347
585 44
2,291,552 1,739,188
1,709,202 406,437
414 1,306,065
702.886 836.002
67,744,056 66,412,774
148.619 168.366
$ 67,595,437 66,244.408

In accordance with Executive Yuan Tai-79-JEN-Cheng-SZU-tsu No. 14525, and regulations of
Retired Civil Servants Lump-sum Retirement Payment and Old-age Benefits and Preferential Interest
Deposits which excess preferential interest expenses recognized as Excess interest expenses of Non-
interest income, net were $6,375,883 thousand and $7,265,162 thousand in 2019 and 2018,
respectively, due to executing the government premium savings policy.

As of the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the subsidiary, BOT, had paid the following

premium savings interest expenses on behalf the government:

Long-term receivables

Short-term advances { booked under other financial assets,

net)
Total

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
$ 16,350,219 16,097,415
37,867,323 43,617,208
$ 54,217,542 59,714.623

(Contimied)
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() Loans and Discounts, net

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Discounts and export / import bills negotiations $ 2,044,282 3,576,638
Short-term loans and overdrafts 658,542,938 708,661,577
Short-term secured loans and secured overdrafts 73,199,038 73,236,408
Life insurance loans 5,805,338 5,892,446
Accounts receivable financing 128,708 241,732
Accounts receivable secured financing 5,138 8,757
Medium-term loans 551,295,477 490,677,869
Medium-term secured loans 258,457,388 236,955,232
Long-term loans 155,857,007 158,795,092
L.ong-term secured loans 996,669,757 897,796,378
Non-performing loans 3.175.618 4.244 436
Subtotal 2,705,180,689 2,580,086,565
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts 45,194,732 39,443,181
Total §__2.659,985,957 2,540.643.384

The movements of allowance for doubtful accounts of loans and receivables were as follows:

Details of bad debt expense and provisions for guarantee liabilities were as follows:

2019 2018
Bad debts b 7,285,102 7,324,892
Provisions for guarantee liabilities 59,273 (6,854)
Provision for loan commitment liabilities 4,075 5,182
Provision for other liabilities {8.007) (25.510)
Total S 7,340,443 7.297,710

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of loans and receivables on which the interests
stopped to accrue were $3,158,657 thousand and $4,226,046 thousand, respectively, which were
booked under loans and discounts - non-performing loans and other financial assets-overdue
receivables. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the estimation of non-accrued interests were
$210,538 thousand and $248,693 thousand, respectively.

For the date as above, the subsidiary, BOT, did not write off any loan without legal proceedings
having been initiated.

{Continued)
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Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Negotiable certificates deposits $ 1,305,899 11,204,833
Commercial papers 36,894,248 30,205,065
Government bonds 101,019,990 96,548,787
Foreign government bonds, corporate bonds, financial 218,088,038 202,409,699
bonds, and NCDs - :
Financial bonds 26,262,027 31,515,443
Corporate bonds 75.578.019 62.598.893
459,148,221 434,482,720
Less: Accumulated impairment (134.877) (141.760)
$ 459,013,244 434,340,960

The Company and subsidiaries have assessed that these financial assets are held to maturity to
collect contractual cash flows, which consist solely of payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding. Therefore, these investments were classified as financial assets
measured at amortized cost on January 1, 2018.

i) During 2019 and 2018, the Company and subsidiaries sold bonds which were not frequently
sold or whose amounts were not significant, no matter individual or aggregate, and the gain or
loss arising from the disposal of bonds equaled to $197,707 and $356.362 thousand.

(1) As of December 31, 2019, the Company's and subsidiaries’ financial assets measured at
amortized cost were not used as collateral, please referto 11,

Investments under Equity Method, net

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Percentage Percentage
of of
Ownership Ownership
(%) Amount (%) Amount
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. 25078 47,306,789 25.07 43,660,779
Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Lid. 21.37 1,027,317 21.37 1,013,547
Tai Yi Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. 30.00 21.476 30.00 21.084
Total $ 48,355,582 44.695.410

(i) The Company and subsidiaries use equity method for investments in associates and the other
comprehensive income:

2019 2018
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. $ 1,223,172 (350,631)
Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd. 10.576 5.277
Total $ 1,233,748 (345,354)
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The Company and subsidiaries use equity method for investments in associates, and
Investment gains and losses recognized in the following table:

2019 2018
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. p 4,000,302 3,665,778
Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd. 3,196 (308,086)
Tai Yi Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. 4.045 4.059
Total S 4,007,543 3,361,751

Individually significant associate(s)

The Company and subsidiaries acquisited Hua Nan Financial Holdings Company 25.07%
shares, which had maturity effection, using equity method for accounted, other informations as
following:

The proportion of
: ownership interest and
The relations Business place/ voting rights

Aassociates between the registration December December
Company Combined company country 31,2019 31,2018
Hua Nan Financial Followed the FHCto  Taiwan 25.07 % 2507 %

Holdings Co., Ltd.  investment, such as
banking, finance bills
industry

The Company and subsidiaries have major affiliates of the listed or OTC companies, its fair
value is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. 3 67,147,859 50,652,508
13 Summarized of Financial Information
Hua Nan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Total Assets $ 2,731,828,227 2,684,206,863
Total Liabilities (2.543,127.222) _ (2.510.049.280)
Net Assets $ 188,701,005 174,157,583
The Company holding shares 5 47,306,789 43,660,779

(Continued)
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2019 2018
Net income $ 15,955,716 14,621,435
other comprehensive income 4.879.056 (1.398.581)
Total comprehensive income S 20834772 13.222.854
The Company holding shares
Investment income $ 4,000,302 3,665,778
Other comprehensive income 1,223,172 (350,631)

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of Hua Nan Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd. to transfer funds to its investors by distributing dividends, repaying loans or
advances.

The summarized financial information of Hua Nan Financial Holding Co., Ltd. has been
adjusted to align the accounting results with those of the Bank accounted for using the
equity method.

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.’s financial statements is audited by other auditors.
The related investment gains is $4,000,302 thousand and $3,665,778 thousand in 2019
and 2018, respectively.

Maturity associate enterprise

1y,

2)

Summarized of Financial Information- The Company and subsidiaries holding shares

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Total investment in book value ) 1,048,793 1.034.631
2019 2018
Investmert income b 7,241 (304,027
Other comprehensive income 10.576 5.277
Total comprehiensive income b} 17,817 (298.750)

Some invested company were accounted for using the equity method and have not
audited by auditors. The related investment loss is $4,045 thousand and $4,059 thousand
inn 2019 and 2018, respectively.

(v) Collateral

No investmernt in associates was used as collateral of December 31, 2019.

{Continued)
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Other Financial Assets, net
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Short-term advances $ 40,091,153 45,937,904
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts —shori-term (44,363) (26,843)
advances
Remittances purchased 2,316 1,485
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts —remittances (23) (15)
purchased
Overdue receivables 4,228 4,783
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts —overdue receivables (4,199) (4,156)
Separate account insurance product assets 1,429,769 11,026
Time deposits over three months 3,026,800 5,655,000
Others 109,349 127,043
Less: cumulative impairment —others (10) (1
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts — others (6) (&)
Total 8 44,615,014 51,706,208

Y

Concerning for the payment of excess interest for the government, booked under * short term
payment” for December 31, 2019 and 2018, please refer to note 6(g) for further information.

Investment Property

(i}  The movement of investment property were as follows:

Land and
improvements Buildings Total
Cost or deemed cost:

Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 20,191,503 2,886,409 23,077,912
Additions 770,761 334,913 1,105,674
Reclassification 10.362 19.626 29.988
Balance at December 31, 2019 S 20,972,626 3,240,948 24.213.574
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 20,191,503 2,886,409 23,077,912

(equal to the balance at January

i,2019)
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Land and
improvemenis Buildings Total
Depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2019 8 - 478,887 478,887
Depreciation - 72,967 72,967
Reclassification from property - 6.488 6.488
and equipment
Balance at December 31, 2019 s - 558,342 558,342
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ - 409,850 409,850
Depreciation - 69.037 69.037
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ - 478,887 478.887
Carrying amounts:
December 31, 2019 $ 20,972,626 2,682,606 23,655,232
January 1, 2018 $ 20,191,503 2,476,559 22,668,062
December 31, 2018 S 20,191,503 2,407,522 22,599,025

The fair values of the investment properties of the Company and subsidiaries were as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Fair value of investment properties 24,853,563 23.405.263

The fair value of investment properties (as measured or disclosed in the financial statements)
was based on a valuation by a qualified independent appraiser who has recent valuation
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. The inputs of
levels of fair value hierarchy in determining the fair value is classified to Level 3.

1) The Bank of Taiwan

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of
investment property, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Inter relationship
between key
unobservable inputs
and fair value
measurement
The estimated fair value
would increase

(decrease) if:

Significant
unobservable inputs
e The rate of return
« Overall capital
interest rate

Valuation technique
The management evaluate and
measure the effect of using
techniques of comparisen

approach or Land
development analysis
approach. After evaluating,
the bank make judgment
about the assessment that is
using to align the market
participants.

e the rate of return were
lower (higher); or

o the overall capital
interest rate were
lower (higher).
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The investment property was subsequently measured at cost, and the fair value was tested
according to real estate impairment testing working guidelines on each financial
reporting date. After evaluating, BOT did not recognized impairment loss during 2019
and 2018.

2)  The Bank Taiwan life insurance

The fair value of investment property (as measured or disclosed in the financial
statements) is based on a valuation by an independent appraiser who holds a recognized
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of the investment property being valued. The range of yields applied to the net
annual rentals to determine fair value of property for which current prices in an active
market are unavailable was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Capitalization of earning percentage 2.10%~3.35% 1.16%~3.37%

(iil) Detail of operating lease of the Company and subsidiartes were as follows:

Location 2019 2018
Rental revenue b 265,526 251,962
Direct operating cost of the investment property for the ' (155,300) (150,869)
period (comprise maintenance fee)
Net profit of investment property 3 109,726 101,093

(iv) As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company's and subsidiaries' investment property
neither served as a guarantee or collateral, nor they were pledged.

Property and Equipment, net

Changes in the cost, depreciation, and impairment of the properties and equipments of the Company
and subsidiaries for the year ended 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Construction
it progress

Land and Machinery and
Land and Transportatic  Miscellaneous Leaschold prepayment
improvements Buildings equipment n equipment equipment improvements for equipment Total
Cost

Balance at Janvary 1, 2019 $ 87382427 15,727,185 6,033,282 1,118,572 1,005,099 874,327 743,622 112,884,914

Additions 42,277,550 42,092 502,563 82,279 26,223 20,872 174,335 43,125,914

Disposals (27.747) (118,764) (377,329) (69,096) (41,428) (18,839) - (653.203)

Reclassification (10,362) 286,976 105,108 11,731 12,772 3L (512,581) (75,245)

Effect of change in exchange rates - - (2.038) (500) (561} {2.844) - (5.943)

Balance at December 31, 2019 129.621,868 15.937.489 £6.261.586 1,143,386 1,002,105 904.627 405376 155276437

Balance at January 1, 2018 87,402,203 15,590,228 5,791,393 1,081,548 1,016,332 338,125 725303 112,445,222

Additions - 5,168 366,517 93,202 31,373 32,252 305,615 834,127

Disposals (19,776) (31,271) (218,674) (61,877) (47,137) {18,660) - (397,395)

Reclassification . 163,060 93,639 5827 3,660 19,847 (287,386) (1,353)

Effect of change in exchanpe raits - - 407 272 871 2.763 . 45313
Balance at December 31, 2018 87.382.427 15,727,185 6,033.282 1,118972 1.005.099 874327 743.622 112884914
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in progress
Land and Machinery and
Land and Transportatio  Miscellaneous Leasehold prepayment
improvements Buildings equipment n equipment equipment  improvements for eguipment Total

Accumulated depreciation: -

Balance a1 January 1, 2019 14,966 7,538,595 4,836,923 £65,61% 825,070 112023 - 14,553,193

Depreciation - 116,759 409,085 45,686 30,399 37357 - 839,236

Dispasal . (118,604) (352,461} (67.683) (37,190} (18,839) - (594,777)

Reclassification - (6,488) . - - . - (6,458)

Effect of change in exchange raies - . (1.348) (343) (517) 12.524) - {4.742)

Balznce a1 Dacember 31, 2019 14966 7,730,262 4.592,199 843.278 §17.752 788.017 - 14,786.474

Balance at Janvary 1, 2018 14,966 725991 4,340,037 885,206 836,908 744,982 - 14,082,030

Depreciztion . 306,344 391,659 40,591 30,074 33,019 - 801,687

Disposal - (27,680) (195,126) (50,264} (42,651} (8.869) - (334,590)

Effect of ¢hange in exchange rates . - 353 85 79 2891 - 4068

Balance at December 31, 2018 14.966 7.538.595 4536923 865.618 £25,070 772,023 - 14,553,195
Accumulated impairment:

Balance a1 January 1, 2019 $ 124,869 - - . - - - 124,869

Impairment loss 1215 - - - - - 1.215

Balance at December 31, 2019 126.084 - - - - - - 126,084

Balance at January ), 2018 47,850 - - - - - - 47,850

Tmpairment loss 77,019 - - - - - 77019

Balance al December 31, 2018 124.869 - - - - - - 124,869
Cammying amounts:

December 31, 2019 § 129480818 £,207.227 1.669.387 300.108 184.353 116,610 405376 140.363.879

January 1, 2018 5 87.339.387 £.330.297 1.451356 196342 179.424 93.143 725393 33315342

December 31, 2018 § 81242592 £.188.590 1.496.359 253354 180.029 102304 743.622 98.206.850

The Company and subsidiaries have conducted a few revaluations of land and buildings for many
times over these years, and the latest was in December, 2011. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
the total revaluation increments for land were $81,563,186 thousand and $81,590,877 thousand. The
total revaluation increments for Buildings were both $142,852 thousand,

Based on the assessment in December, 2019, the carrying amount of the lands which have indicators
of impairment was determined to be $171,067 thousand higher than its recoverable amount of
$169,852 thousand, and an impairment loss amounted to $1,215 thousand was recognized. In 2018,
the carrying amount of the lands which have indicator of impairment was determined to be $247,713
thousand higher than its recoverable amount of $170,694 thousand. Therefore, the amount of
$77,019 thousand, which was initially recognized as impairment, has been reversed.

The recoverable amount was determined by using the fair value, less, cost of disposal or recent
government assessed land value. The fair value is based on the market price of comparable
properties within the same location. The cost of disposal is the land value increment tax payable.
The inputs of levels of fair value hierarchy in determining the fair value is classified to Level 3.

As of December 31, 2019, the Company's and subsidiaries' property and equipment neither served as
a guarantee or collateral, nor were they pledged.
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The Company and subsidiaries leases many assets including land and buildings, vehicles, machinery
and IT equipment. Information about leases for which the Group as a lessee is presented below:

Machinery and Transportation Miscell
Land Building: quip equipment equipment Total

Cost:

Balance at January I, 2019 5 - - - - -

Effects of retrospective 11.283 1.634.058 22.219 39.852 52 1.707.464

application

Balance at January 1, 2019 11,283 1,634,058 22,219 39,852 52 1,707,464

Additions 9.477 287,051 9,122 60,437 366,087

Changes in leases 189 3412 (39) 703 4,265

Leases expired (460) (29.731) (73) (3.842) (52) (34.158)

Balance at December 31,2019 § 20,489 1,894,790 31,229 97,150 2,043,658
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses:

Balance at January 1, 2019 3 - - - - -

Depreciation 4.941 508,013 6,420 36,339 52 553,765

Leases expired 431 (29,731) (73) (3.842) {(52) (34.149)

Changes in leases - (86) - - (86)

Effect of changes in exchange 4 (1.301) (D - (1.304)

rates

Balance at December 31, 2019 § 4,494 476,895 6,340 32,497 520,226
Carrying value:

December 31. 2619 ) 15,995 1,417,895 24,889 64.653 1,523,432
Intangible Assets

Changes in the costs, amortization, and impairment loss of intangible assets of the Company and
subsidiaries for the year ended 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Costs:
Balance at January 1, 2019
Additions
Balance at December 31, 2019
Balance at January 1, 2018
Additions
Balance at December 31, 2018

Computer
software

b 3,948,804

455.312
3 4,404,116
$ 3,576,360

372.444
) 3,948,804
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Amortization and Impairment loss:
Balance at January 1, 2019
Amortization for the year
Balance at December 31, 2019
Balance at January 1, 2018
Amortization for the year

" Balance at December 31, 2018

Carrying value:

Balance at December 31, 2019
Balance at January 1, 2018
Balance at December 31, 2018

Other Assets

Foreclosed collaterals and residuals taken over, net
Advance payments

Operating guarantee deposits and settlement funds
Refundable deposits

Temporary payments and suspense accounts
Inventories

Others

Total

(i) Foreclosed collaterals and residuals taken over, net

Foreclosed collaterals and residuals taken over

Computer
software
5 3,133,930
330,127
3 3,464,057
5 2,842,640
291.290
$ 3,133,930
S 940,059
S 733,720
b 814.874
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

$ 1,079,309 1,080,460

7,733,122 4,864,052

136,674 91,920

6,935,924 1,698,577

618,988 748,195

716,557 701,832

67.633 329

$ 17,288,207 9,185,365

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

$

1,079,309

1,080.460
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(if) Advance payment

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Prepaid expenses $ 266,162 418,169
Prepaid inferests 9,968 12,745
Business tax carry forward 810 686
Other prepayment — Interbank Fund Transfer Special 7,380,247 4,300,622
Accounts
Other prepayment —other 75.935 131.830
Total R 7,733,122 4,864,052

(iii) Inventories

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

Inventories 3 716.557

701.832

The effects on the cost of goods sold derived from the inventory write-off or reversal for the

year ended 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
2019

2018

Inventory reversal $ -

59

Impairment

For the year ended 2019 and 2018, the movements of the accumulated impairment were as follows:

2019 2018
Beginning balance $ 354,738 62,899
Adjustment for retrospective application due to IFRS 9 - 202,464
Impairment loss recognized for the current period 33,571 168,214
Reversal of impairment loss for the current period (30,736) (79,649)
Effect of change in exchange rates and others (415 810
Ending balance $ 357,158 354,738

(Caontinued)
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Details of accumulated impairment were as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Other financial assets

Property and equipment

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Other assets
Total

Deposits of Central Bank and other banks

Deposits from Central Bank
Deposits from banks— others
Postal deposits transferred
Bank overdrafts

Call loans from bank

Total

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018
134,977 141,760
10 il
126,084 124,869
90,576 83,543
5.511 4.555
357.158 354,738

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
11,296,302 11,798,337
50,127,068 48,026,208
77,090 77,090
2,062,798 1,559,942
165.690.275 160.294.562
229.253,533 221,756,139

Financial Liabilities Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

(i} Details of financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss were as follows:

Financial liabilities held for trading
Add: Valuation adjustment
Subtotal

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Add: Valuation adjustment
Subtotal
Total

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
4,148 2,893
13.415.817 4.794.327
13.419.965 4.797.220
44,985,000 46,102,500
1.214.351 {247.190)
46.199.351 45,855,310
59,619,316 50,652,530

(ii) For valuation of financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, please refer
to note 7 “The Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of the Financial Instruments”.
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(iii) Financial liabilities held for trading

(iv)

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Foreign exchange options premium N 4,148 2,893
Add: Valuation adjustiment—Foreign exchange 2,702 (508)
options premium
Valuation adjustment — Swaps 12,285,995 3,990,088
Valuation adjustment— Cross currency swaps 29,367 -
Valuation adjustment — Interest rate swaps 425,439 295,412
Valuation adjustment— Forward foreign 152,582 134,427
exchanges
Valuation adjustment — Asset swaps 515,732 374,908
Total h) 13.419,965 4.797.220
The details of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss were as
follows: .
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Financial bonds $ 44,985,000 46,102,500
Add: Valuation adjustment 1.214.351 (247.190)
Total h) 46,199.351 45,855,310
The details of the financial bonds for BOT were as follow:
Conditions Bond
Beginning Maturity ~ Coupon
Name of bond date date rate Face value Tyvpe Amount
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
2017-1 Senior unsecured 2017/04/07  2047/04/07 0% USD $500 million Senior unsecured S 14,995,000 15,367.500
financial bonds-A financtal bond
2017-1 Senior unsecured 201704407 2047/04/07 0 % USD $380 million Senior unsecured 11,396,200 11,679.300
financial bonds-B financial bond
2018-1 Senior unsecured 2018/02/26  2048/0226 0 % USD $150 million Senior unsecured 4,498,500 4.610.250
financial bonds-A financial bond
2018-1 Senior unsecured 2018/02/26  2048/02726 0 % USD 3470 million Senior unsecured 14,095,300 14,445,450
financial bonds-B financial bond

Valuation adjustment

1.214.351 (247.190)
5__46.199.351 45.855.3190
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For the bonds issued in 2017, the call option may be exercised 2 years for bond A, and 3 years
for bond B, after the issuing date. If the call options are not exercised prior to the bonds
maturity date, BOT will pay the principal and interests accrued in full upon maturity. For the
bonds issued in 2018, the call option may be exercised 2 years for bond A, and 5 years for
bond B, after the issuing date. If the call options are not exercised prior to the bonds maturity
date, BOT will pay the principal and interests accrued in full upon maturity.

(v) Unexpired derivative financial instruments (stated at notional amount)

Foreign exchange options premium

Swaps
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps

Forward foreign exchanges

Asset swaps
Total

() Commercial paper payables, net

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
b 1,001,177 371,765
845,841,506 559,887,222

1,086,400 -

21,898,329 15,310,983
40,279,631 11,423,307
6.784.488 46.498.490
5 916,891,531 633,491,767

Details of the short-term notes payable of the Company and subsidiaries were as follow

Comimercial paper payables

Less: discount
Total

December 31, 2019
Guarantee or
acceptance Range of
institution interest rates Amount
International 0.628%~0.798% $ 180,000
Bills Finance
Corporation
China Bills 0.628%~0.798% 245,000
Finance
Taishin 0.628%~0.788% 100,000
International
Bank
Taiwan 0.698%~0.798% 115,000
Cooperative Bills
Finance
Yuanta Bank 0.638%~0.798% 385.000
1,025,000
(318)
$ 1,024,682
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December 31, 2018
Guarantee or
acceptance Range of
institution interest rates Amount
Commercial paper payables International 0.498%~0.838% $ 40,000
: Bills Finance
Corporation
China Bills 0.658%~0.808% 250,000
Finance
290,000
Less: discount (114
Total 289.886

The Company and subsidiaries have no assets which were served as a guarantee or collateral, nor

they were pledged for the short-term notes payable.

Payables

Accounts payables

Collection payables

Accrued expenses

Other tax payables

Accrued interests

Banker’s acceptance payables

Payables to representative organizations
Construction payables

Comimission payables

Accounts payables —factoring receivables without recourse
Other payables— undelivered spot exchange
Other payables—collection bills

Other payables — payments awaiting transfer

Other payables —ATM temporary receipts, payments and
inter branch difference

Other payables —foreign exchange awaiting transfer
Other payables — amounts awaiting settlement
Other payables —settlement accounts payable

Other payables—cost of settlement

Other payables —overdue accounts

Other payables — check deposit

Other payables—collections

Other payables—others

Total

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018

$ 5,591,008 10,579,796
1,666,695 1,093,940
3,073,601 3,013,578
486,490 466,514
15,385,517 14,426,124
1,194,544 2,918,255
829,639 586,198
946 3.004
146,030 103,998
375,438 565,938
3 834
2,337,855 977,184
9,003,123 7,806,182
2,590,082 2,220,329
740,078 721,384
325,153 180,579
2,953,420 2,241,220

615,958 -
199,043 191,135
119,600 103,026
19,571 11,986
846.015 953,001
§ 48,499.809 49,164,205
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Deposits and Remittances
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Check deposits 5 39,246,121 35,255,756
Government deposits 310,980,305 283,267,747
Demand deposits 394,142,603 370,095,014
Time deposits 683,416,685 746,703,592
Remittances 554,595 736,124
Savings account deposits: .
Demand savings deposits 939,345,417 983,561,781
Staff accounts 15,284,296 24,562,808
Club saving deposits 608,632 690,497
Non-drawing time savings deposits 417,758,369 402,536,104
Interest withdrawal on principal deposited 795,291,873 808,083,173
Staff time savings deposits 0,174,191 -
Preferential interest deposits 357,538,411 366.104.840
Total $_ 3.963,341.498 4,021,597.436
Financial Bonds Payables
Condition Bond
Beginning Maturity
Name of bond date date Interest rate Type Amount
December December
31,2019 31,2018
2013-1 TWD 2013/12/2 202341272 BOT's listed annual Subordinated $ 16,000,000 16,000,000
subordinated interest rate of time unsecured
unsecured financial deposits, plus, 0.15% financial bond
bond
2014-1 TWD 2014/6/25 2024/6/25 TAJBOR 3M plus 0.3%.  Subordinated 3,500,000 5,500,000
subordinated unsecured unsecured
financtal bonds-A financiat bond
2014-1 TWD 2014/6/27 2024/6127 1.70% Subordinated 2,000,000 2,000,000
subordinated unsecured unsecured
financial bonds-B financial bond
2014-1 TWD 2014/6/127 2024/6/27 BOT's listed annual interest Subordinated 1,500,000 1,500,000
subordinated unsecured rate of time deposits, plus, unsecured
financial bonds-C 0.15%. financial bond
Unamortized discount (1,180) (1,434)
amount
$ 24,998,820  24.998,566
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Borrowings

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the credit loan and guarantee loan were both 0 thousand, and
the short term borrowings which were not utilized by the Company’s subsidiary, BankTaiwan
Securities, were 14,449,850 thousand, and 17,461,025 thousand, respectively.

December 31, 2019

Bank Nature Total amount Interest rate
Hua Nan Bank Short-term loans 1,000,000 Itemized bargaining
Overdrafts - 0.30 %
Guaranteed loans - 0.50 %
Taiwan Cooperative Bank  Short-term loans 5,000,000 Itemized bargaining
December 31, 2018
Bank Nature Total amount Interest rate
Hua Nan Bank Short-term loans 1,000,000 Itemized bargaining
Overdrafts - 0.30 %
Guaranteed loans - 0.50 %
Taiwan Cooperative Bank  Short-term Joans 5,000,000 Itemized bargaining
Guaranteed loans - 0.40 %
Chinatrust Commercial Short-term loans 1,000,000 ltemized bargaining
Bank
Overdrafts - 0.18 %
First Bank Short-term loans 2,000,000 Itemized bargaining
Overdrafts - 0.30 %
Guaranteed loans - 0.50 %

Other Financial Liabilities

Appropriated loan funds
Liability of insurance product-separate account
Principal from structured products

Total

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018
b 16,474 26,825
1,429,769 11,026
946.065 652.019
§ 2,392,308 689.870
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Provision

Reserve for unearned premiums
Claims reserve

Liability reserve

Special reserve

Reserve for premium deficiency
Foreign exchange volatility reserve
Employee benefit obligations
Guarantee reserve

Reserve for government employees insurance
Others

Loan commitments reserve

Total

Insurance contracts and financial products with discretionary participation feature

76

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

381,947 372,090
87,816 85,306
382,653,606 341,234,973
28,758 48,415
2,156,307 3,087,105
465,900 1,214,234
19,736,061 18,249,613
053,505 894,392
341,738,589 296,379,792
377,993 386,084
19.224 15.612
748,599,706 661,967,616

Information on insurance contract and financial product with the discretionary participation feature
of the subsidiary, BTLI, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

(1)  Details of reserve for unearned premium:

December 31, 2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Personal life insurance $ 9,544 - 9,544
Personal injury insurance 70,562 - 70,562
Personal health insurance 125,956 - 125,956
Group insurance 175,835 - 175,835
Investment-linked insurance 50 - 50
Total 381.947 - 381.947
Deduction of reserve for unearned
premium outward:

Perscnal life insurance 3 1,091 - 1,091
Personal injury insurance 3,446 - 3,446
Group insurance 4,531 - 4,531
Investment-linked insurance - - -
Total 9,068 - 9.068
Net 3 372.879 - 372,879
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December 31, 2018

Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Personal life insurance $ 13,779 43 13,822
Personal injury insurance 65,280 - 65,280
Personal health insurance 122,063 - 122,063
Group insurance 170,877 - 170,877
Investment-linked insurance 48 - 48
Total 372.047 43 372.090
Deduction of reserve for unearned
premium outward:
Personal life insurance 3 1,138 - 1,138
Personal injury insurance 3,525 - 3,525
Group insurance 4,796 - 4,796
Investment-linked insurance - - -
Total 9.459 - 9.459
Net ) 362,588 43 362,631

The reconciliations of reserve for unearned premium were listed below:

2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 372,047 43 372,090
Provision 365,749 - 365,749
Reclaim (355,821) 43) (355,864)
Other (28) - (28)
Balance at December 31, 2019 381.947 - 381.947
Deduction of reserve for unearned
premium outward
Balance at January 1, 2019, net 9,459 - 9,459
Provision 8,068 - 9,068
Reclaim {8.459) - (9.45%)
Balance at December 31, 2019, net 9,068 - 9.068
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 372.879 - 372,879
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2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Con{ract feature Total
Balance at January 1, 2018 ) 378,144 504 378,648
Provision 360,923 43 360,966
Reclaim (366,997) {(504) (367,501)
Other ' (23) - (23)
Balance at December 31, 2018 372,047 43 372.090
Deduction of reserve for uncarned
premium outward
Balance at January 1, 2018, net 9,882 13 9,895
Provision 9,459 - 9,459
Reclaim (9.882) (13 {9.895)
Balance at December 31, 2018, net 9.459 - 9.459
Balance at December 31, 2018 8 362,588 43 362.631
(ii) Details of claims reserve:
December 31, 2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Personal life Insurance
Reported but not paid b 10,105 2,632 12,737
Not reported and not paid 605 3 608
Personal injury insurance
Reported but not paid 662 - 662
Not reported and not paid 9,297 - 9,297
Personal health insurance
Reported but not paid 10,917 - 10,917
Not reported and not paid 15,961 - 15,961
Group insurance
Reported but not paid 1,445 - 1,445
Not reported and not paid 36.189 - 36,189
Total 85,181 2.635 87.816
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Deduction of claims reserve-
outward:

Personal life Insurance
Personal injury insurance
Personal health insurance
Group insurance

Total

Net

Personal life Insurance
Reported but not paid
Not reported and not paid

Personal injury insurance
Reported but not paid
Not reported and not paid

Personal health insurance
Reported but not paid
Not reported and not paid

Group insurance
Reported but not paid
Not reported and not paid

Total

Deduction of claims reserve-
outward:

Personal life Insurance
Personal injury insurance
Personal health insurance
Group insurance

Total

Net

79

December 31, 2019
Financial

products with

discretionary

Insurance participation

Contract feature Total
28 - 28
116 - 116
3,783 - 3,783
616 - 616
4.543 - 4.543
80,638 2.638 83.273
December 31, 2018
Financial

products with

discretionary

Insurance participation

Contract feature Total

9,827 5.490 15,317
952 8 960
261 - 261
13,519 - 13,519
3,740 - 3,740
16,883 - 19,883
1,363 - 1,363
30.263 - 30.263
79.808 5.498 85.306
161 2 163
600 - 600
53 - 53
131 - 131
945 2 947
78,863 5,496 84,359
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2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Balance at January 1, 2019 5 79,808 5,498 85,306
Provision 393,366 - 12,879 406,245
Recovery {387,993) (15.742) (403.735)
Balance at December 31, 2019 85.181 2.635 87.816
Deduction of claims reserve-
outward
Balance at January 1, 2019, net 945 2 947
Provision 10,905 1 10,906
Recovery (7.307) (3) (7.310)
Balance at December 31, 2019, net 4.543 - 4.543
Closing balance 5 30,638 2,635 83.273
2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 89,994 4,409 94,403
Provision 353,683 11,242 364,925
Recovery {363.869) (10.153) (374.022)
Balance at December 31, 2018 79.808 5.498 85.306
Deduction of claims reserve-
outward
Balance at January 1, 2018, net 224 6 230
Provision 13,370 14 13,384
Recovery (12.649) (18) (12.667
Balance at December 31, 2018, net 945 2 947
Closing balance b} 78.863 5,496 84,359
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(iii) Details of liability reserve:

December 31, 2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Life insurance 3 327,970,226 219 327,970,445
Health insurance 9,022,983 - 9,022,983
Annuity insurance 52,206 44,299,903 44,352,109
Reclaim of reserve for major 2,428 - 2,428
accidents
Strengthen increasing reserve 1,160,000 - 1,160,000
Reserve for life insurance — reduce 145,641 - 145,641
sales tax (the accumulated
unwritten-off allocation of 3% of
sales)
Total ) 338,353,484 44.300,122 382,653,606
December 31, 2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Confract feature Total
Life insurance $ 287,109,285 15,744 287,125,029
Health insurance 8,157,573 - 8,157,573
Annuity insurance 48,432 44,595,870 44,644,302
Reclaim of reserve for major 2,428 - 2,428
accidents
Strengthen increasing reserve 1,160,000 - 1,160,000
Reserve for life insurance — reduce 145,641 - 145,641
sales tax (the accumultated
unwritten-off allocation of 3% of
sales)
Total h) 296,623,359 44,611,614 341,234,973
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The reconciliation of the above mentioned changes in liability reserve is listed below:

2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 296,623,359 44,611,614 341,234,973
Provision 60,375,623 2,584,572 62,960,195
Reclaim (17.862,368) (2,866,158) (20,728,526)
Gain from cancellation of insurance (110,534) (29,906) (140,440)
Effect of changes in exchange rates (647,147) - (647,147
Others (25,449 - (25.44%)
Balance at December 31, 2019 b} 338,353,484 44,300,122 382.653,606
2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 274,670,767 55,126,375 329,797,142
Provision 53,465,309 2,510,343 55,975,652
Reclaim (32,313,363) (13,005,480) (45,318,843)
Gain from cancellation of insurance (90,026) (19,624) (109.650)
Effect of changes in exchange rates 804,027 - 804.027
Effect of changes in exchange rates 80.645 - 86.645
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 296.623.359 44,611,614 341.234.973
(iv) Details of special reserve:
December 31, 2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Provision for dividend policy 5 28,758 - 28.758
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The movements of special reserve were listed below:

Balance at January 1, 2019
Provision of dividend policy
Recovery of dividend policy
Others

Balance at December 31, 2019

Balance at January 1, 2018

Provision of dividend policy

Recovery of dividend policy

Adjustment of retrospective
application

Balance at December 31, 2018

Reserve for premium deficiency:

Personal life insurance
Personal health insurance
Total

December 31, 2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
§ 48,415 - 48.415
2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
$ 48,415 - 48,415
27,060 - 27,060
(47.344) - (47,344)
627 - 627
$ 28,758 - 28.758
2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
$ 147,645 - 147,645
68.289 - 68,289
(256) - (256)
{167.263) - (167,263)
5 48,415 - 48,415
December 31, 2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
$ 2,069,913 - 2,066,913
86.394 - 86.394
5 2,156,307 - 2,156,307
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Personal life insurance
Personal health insurance
Total

84

The reconciliations of reserve for premium deficiency were listed as below:

Balance at January t, 2019
Provision

Reclaim

Effect of changes in exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2019

Balance at January 1, 2018
Provision

Reclaim

Effect of changes in exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2018

December 31, 2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
5 3,053,722 - 3,053,722
33,383 - 33,383
L) 3,087,105 - 3,087,105
2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Coniract feature Total
$ 3,087,105 - 3,087,105
216,260 - 216,260
(1,145,984 - (1,145,984)
(1.074) - (1.074)
h) 2,156,307 - 2,156,307
2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
§ 3,975,837 - 3,975,837
252,127 - 252,127
(1,143.330) - (1,143,330)
2471 - 2.471
b 3,087,105 - 3,087,105
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(vi) Details of provision for liability adequacy:

1)

2)

Information on provision for liability adequacy of the subsidiary, BTLI, as of December
31, 2019 and 2018 was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Liability reserve b 382,559,163 341,136,306
Reserve for unearned premium 188,206 184,261
Special reserve 28,758 - 48,415
Reserve for premium deficiency 2.156.307 3.087.105
Book value of insurance liability $ 384.932.434 344,456,087
Estimate of present cash flow $___ 344947351 322,578,940

There is no concern of provision for liability adequacy since the subsidiary, BTLI, had
no deficiency on net value between book value of insurance liability and estimate of
present cash flow,

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the short-term insurance of liability adequacy
reserve of the Company is summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Claim and reserve within a year $ 78,603 83,258
Less: Premium not received within a year 1.069 1.251
Subtotal 5 77,534 82,007
Unearned premium reserve b 193,742 187,829
Liability adequacy reserve $ - -

The amount of claim and reserve within a year, deducted by the current unpaid premium,
were lower than the amount of unearned premium reserve; and therefore, the liability
adequacy was sufficient.

Inward reinsurance: Starting 2015, the Central Reinsurance Corporation ceased to
continue to transfer its reinsurance business to BTLI due to its reinsurance policy
adjustment. It is not required to conduct a liability adequacy test for inward reinsurance.
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3)  The liability adequacy test methods used by the subsidiary, BTLI, were listed below:

Test Method

Group

Significant assumption

Hedging strategy and risk exposure:

December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Long term insurance :
gross premium evaluation
method: Short term
insurance (including
inward reinsurance) : loss
evaluation method

Test long and short term
insurance separately

Based on the newest
composed of asset on the
time of evaluating and the
level of risk free interest
rate, discount rates are
calculated using the best
estimated scenario
investment return based
on actuary report of 2018
(with steady state
assumption for discount
rates after 30 year).

Long term insurance :
gross premium evaluation
method: Short term
insurance (including
inward reinsurance) : loss
evaluation method

Test long and short term
insurance separately

Based on the newest
composed of asset on the
time of evaluating and the
level of risk free interest
rate, discount rates are
calculated using the best
estimated scenario
investment return based
on actuary report of 2017
(with steady state
assumption for discount
rates after 30 year).

The Company’s subsidiary, BTLI, has hedged its foreign exchanges by considering the market

situation and the hedging cost.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the primary foreign exchange exposures were USD assets,
amounting $67,714,630 thousand and $64,428,390 thousand, respectively.

The movements in foreign exchange volatility reserve were as follows:

Balance at 1 January
Current provision:
Compulsory provision
Additional provision
Subtotal
Current write-off
Balance as at 31 December

2019 2018
$ 1,214,234 279,466
439,412 351,253
1.250.863 1,274.408
1.690.275 1.625.661
(2.438.609) (690.893)
$ 465,200 1,214,234
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(iti) Comparisons table shows the effects on profit/loss, liability, equity and earnings per share due

to not applying this rule was as follow:

Amount not Amount
Ttems applied applied Changes
Liability and equity
December 31, 2019
Reserve for foreign exchange 3 - 465,900 (465,900)
valuation
Equity 374,860,587 374,487,867 372,720
December 31, 2018
Reserve for foreign exchange - 1,214,234 (1,214,234)
valuation
Equity 306,026,778 305,055,391 971,387
Amount not Amount
Items applied applied Changes
Income (loss) after tax and
earnings (loss) per share
2019
Income (foss) after tax b 8,205,542 8,804,209 (598.667)
Earnings (loss) per share 0.87 0.93 (0.06)
2018
Income (loss) after tax 9,842,175 9,094,360 747,815
Earnings (loss) per share 1.09 1.01 0.08
(ac) Employee benefit obligations
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet:
— Defined benefit plans b 13,269,457 11,781,898
—Employees preferential interest deposits 6,291,336 6,387,449
— Three Chinese festival bonus 5,527 5,168
—Civil servant and teacher insurance excess 169.741 75.098
Total S 19,736,961 18.249.613
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The reconciliation of the defined benefit obligations at present value and plan assets at

fair value are as follows:

Present value of the defined benefit obligations
Less: fair value of the plan assets
Net defined benefit obligations

The movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligation at January 1
Current service costs

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans in
other comprehensive income

— Actuarial gains and losses in demographic
changes in assumptions

— Experience adjustments

—Changes in actuarial gains and losses in
financial assumptions

Past service cost

Benefit payments
Defined benefit obligation at December 31

The movements of fair value of defined benefit plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January 1
Interest revenues
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans in

other comprehensive income

—Return on plan assets

Contribution made by the plan participant
Benefit payments
Fair value of plan assets at December 31

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
b 28,516,431 26,650,001
{(8,780.370) {8.400.388)
8 19,736,061 18.249,613
2019 2018
5 26,650,001 27,285,692
1,331,879 1,287,675
883,378 901,813
836,215 217,645
38,405 26,333
1,652,423 1,443,374
(2.875.870) (4.512,531)
$ 28,516,431 26,650,001
2019 2018
$ 8,400,388 7,839,381
94,012 . 88,907
70,999 46,092
1,037,942 1,119,168
(822.971) {693.160)
$ 8,780,370 8,400,388
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Expenses recognized in profit or loss

2019 2018
Current service costs $ 349,528 772,202
Net interest of the defined benefit obligations 388,339 426,566
Past service costs 1,652,423 1,443,374
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans in 41,303 15,169
other comprehensive income
Total $ 2,931,593 2,657,311

Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability (asset) recognized

comprehensive income

in other

The Company's and subsidiaries’ re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability
(asset) recognized in other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31,

2019 and 2018 was as follows:

2019 2018
Accumulated amount at January 1 8 4,646,190 3,573,240
Recognized during the period 1.641.306 1.072.950
Accumulated amount at December 31 h) 6,287,496 4,646,190
Actuarial assumptions
For the defined benefit obligations at present value :
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Discount rate 0.75%~1.31% 1.10%~4.00%
Future of salary increases 1.50%~3.00% 0.50%~2.00%

Assets expected rate of return 0.75%

For cost of the defined benefit plan :

1.00%~1.10%

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Discount rate 0.75%~1.31% 1.10%~4.00%
Future of salary increases 1.50%~3.00% 0.50%~2.00%

Assets expected rate of return 0.75%

1.00%~1.10%

The estimated future mortality rate used to calculate of the defined benefit plan of the
Company and subsidiaries are based on the fifth round of the Taiwan Life Experience
Life Table.

The Company and subsidiaries expect to pay the benefits amounting to $1,011,061
within one year.
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7)  Sensitivity analysis

The followings could impact the present value of the defined benefit obligations as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 if the actuarial assumptions change as follows:

Impact on the defined benefit obligation

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
assumption assumption assumption
changes (%) increase decrease

December 31, 2019
Discount rate 0.25% $ 27,725,458 29,260,578
Salary increase rate 0.50% 23,237,510 21,220,457
December 31, 2018
Discount rate 0.25% 25,921,928 27,363,138
Salary increase rate 0.509% 21,331,293 19,328,897

The aforementioned sentivitiy analysis is used to analyze what the impact could have
been when one variable changes while all other variables remain constant. In practice,
however, this hypothesis may not exist as changes in variables could be correlated. The
projected unit benefit method is also used to calculate the changes in the present value of
the defined benefit obligations when the Bank conducts its sentivitiy analysis.

There were no changes in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of
sensitivity analysis for 2018 and 2019.

(ad) Lease liabilities
The Company and subsidiaries's lease liabilities were as follow:

December 31,

2019
Current S 1.403.542
For the maturity analysis, please refer to note (8).
The amounts recognized in profit or foss were as follows:

2019
Interest on lease liabilities $ 18,680
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 5 2,333
Expenses relating to short-term leases S 3,024
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of 8 2,406

low-value assets

{Continued)
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The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Company and subsidiaries was as

follows:

2019
Total cash outflow for leases S 576,8%9
(i) Real estate leases

(i)

As of December 31, 2019, the Company and subsidiaries leased land and buildings for its
office space. The leases of office space typically run for a period of 5 years. Some leases
include an option to renew the leases for an additional period of the same duration after the
end of the contract-term.

Some leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on changes in local price
indices.

Other leases

The Company and subsidiaries also Jease miscellaneous equipment and parking space with
contract terms of one years. These leases are short-term and leases of low-value items. The
Company and subsidiaries have elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

for these leases.

Operating lease

®

Subsidiary, BOT
1) Leases as lessee

Please refer to note 8(b) sets out information about the operating leases of significant real
estate of Bank of Taiwan (BOT) as of December 31, 2018.

2)  Leases as lessor

The subsidiary leases out its investment property and some machinery. The subsidiary
has classified these leases as operating leases because it does not transfer substantially all
of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets.

A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be
received after the reporting date are as follows:

December 31,
2019
Less than one year 5 151,451
One to two years 115,015
Two to three years 54,715
Three to four years 10,183
Four to five years 1.682
Total undiscounted lease payments b 333.046

{Continued)
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The subsidiary leases out its investment properties. The future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

December 31,

2018
Less than one year $ 144,332
Between one and five years 256,379

Total g 400,711

(i) Subsidiary, BTLI

1)

2)

Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable was as follows:

December 31,

2018
Less than one year $ 7.834
Between one and five years 15.668
b 23.502

The subsidiary leases several office and equipment under operating leases. The leases
typically run for a period of 2 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date.
Lease payments are increased periodically to reflect market rentals. Some leases provide
for additional rent payments that are based on changes in a local price index.

During 2018 an amount of $10,581 thousand was recognized as an expense in profit or
loss in respect of operating leases.

The lease contract of office was signed with the lease of land and buildings as a whole.
As (i) ownership of the land was not transferred to the subsidiary (ii) lease payments to
the land owner of the building are increased periodically to market rentals. (iii) residual
value of the buildings was not received by the subsidiary and (iv) all the risks and
rewards incidental were not transferred, the subsidiary has classified these leases as
operating leases.

Leases as lessor

The subsidiary leases out its investment property. The subsidiary has classified these
leases as operating leases because it does not transfer substantially all of the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets. Please refer to note 6 (1).

(Continued)
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A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be

received after the reporting date are as follows:

December 31,

2019

Less than one year b
One to two years

Two to three years

Three to four years

Four to five years

258,934
179,830
147,970
56,827
10.609

Total undiscounted lease payments 3

654,170

The subsidiary leases out its investment properties. The future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

December 31,

2018

Less than one year h
Between one and five years
More than five years

240,705
370,290
167

$

611,162

Rental income from investment properties and direct expenses arising from investment

properties please refer to note 6 (1).
(iii) Subsidiary, BTS
1)  Leases as lessee

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable was as follows:

December 31,
2018
Less than one year $ 10,774
Between one and five years 32.269
3 43,043

The subsidiary leases office, operating sites and parking Jots under operating leases. The

leases typically run for a period of 1 to 5 years.

{Continued)
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2)  Leases as lessor
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A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be

received after the reporting date are as follows:

December 31,

2019
Less than one year b 10,072
One {0 two years 10,076
Two to three yeats 9,990
Three to four years 7,746
Four to five years 3.384
Total undiscounted lease payments b 41,268

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

December 31,

2018

Less than one year $
Between one and five years
More than five years

9,718
26,357
450

$

36,585

Other Liabilities

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Advance collections 3 2,246,952 2,607,018
Guarantee deposifs received 7.119,928 3,990,817
Temporary receipt awaiting suspense accounts 342,906 467,579
Other liabilities to be settled 8,239 8,239
Compensation arising from land revaluation 1,264,803 1,264,803
Deferred service revenues 53,864 -
Collections for underwriting stock value i6 4,802
Total $ 11.036,708 8,343,258
Income Tax Expenses
(i) Income tax expenses (benefits)
The income tax expenses for 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
2019 2018
Current income tax expenses b 2,564,363 1,261,515
Adjustment for prior periods (2,012) (28,813)
Deferred tax expenses (860.361) (841.333)
391,369

Income tax expenses (benefits) $ 1,741.990

{Continued)
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Income tax (expenses) benefits recognized directly in other comprehensive income were as

follows:
2019 2018

Exchange differences on translation of foreign 5 (304) 193
operations

Unrealized gains (losses) on debt instruments (12,912) (71,262)
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income .

Unrealized valuation gains (losses) on equity 41,726 11,434
instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive profits (losses) reclassified 232,969 {164,929)
using overlay approach

Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (4.377) 4.896

$ 257,102 {219,668)

Reconciliations of income tax expenses (benefits) and profit before tax for 2019 and 2018
were as follows:

2019 2018
Profit before tax ) 10,506,199 9,485,729
Income tax based on domestic tax rate 2,101,240 1,897,145
Income tax expense of overseas branches 561,565 357,969
Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities (549,026) 173,794
Tax-exempt income (944,324) (1,811,861)
Others 532.535 (225.678)
Total $ 1,701,990 391.369

(ii) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

1)  Unrecognized deferred tax assets
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Deductible temporary difference by 6,268.724 5,819,532

{Continued)
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2)

(ah) Equity

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities
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Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities for 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Deferred Tax Assets:

Balance at January 1, 2019
Recognized in profit or loss

Recognized in other
comprehensive income

Recognized in equity
Turns to income tax refund

Balance at December 31,
2019

Balance at January 1, 2018

Adjustment for retrospective
application

Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized in other
comprehensive income

Balance at December 31,
2018

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Balance at January 1, 2019

Recognized in profit or loss

Recognized in other
comprehensive income

Balance at December 31,
2019

Balance at January 1, 2018

Adjustment for retrospective
application

Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized in other
comprehensive income

Batance at December 31,
2018

(i) Capital stock

Unrealized
Gain or Loss
Defined Fair Value on Foreign
Benefit Plans Gaing Exchange Other Total
$ 142,353 650,478 1,511,033 1,338,145 3,642,009
4,390 194,750 989,478 {19,689) 1,168,929
- (211,527) 304 (224) (211,447)
- - - 127 127
- - - (677.361) {677.361)
5 146,743 633,701 2,500,815 640,998 3,922,257
b 139,476 295,072 2,218,933 4,512 2,657,993
- 9,722 {15,220} - (5,498)
2,871 29,893 (692,487) 1,312,622 712,905
- 255,191 (193} 21,011 276,609
s 142,353 650478 1,511,033 1,338,145 3,642,009
Land value
Defined increment Fair value
bencfit plans tax gains Other Total
$ 11,419 18,244,209 71,343 878 18,327,849
(439) (6,871) 315,878 - 308,568
(4,377) - 50,236 {224} 45,655
S 5.603 18.237,338 437.477 654 18,682.072
) 5,798 18,200,128 282,489 - 18,488,415
- 47,295 (136,374) - (89,079)
724 (3,214) (125,938) - (128,428)
4,897 - 51,166 878 56,941
S 11,419 18.244,209 71,343 878 18,327,849

On 1 January 2008 TFH was established by the Bank of Taiwan in a share swap, the capital
from share exchange were 9,000,000 thousand shares, and capital stock had a par value of $10.

(Continued)
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A resolution was passed during the meetings of the Company’s board of directors, acting on
behalf of the board of shareholders, on April 25 and June 27, 2019 for the issuance of ordinary
shares paid in land under private placement, with selling price of $32 per share and September
6, 2019 as the date of capital increase. The total amount of the capital injection was $42
billion. The issuance was approved by the FSC (Ruling No. 10801305310) and the Ministry of
Economic Affairs (Ruling No. 10801133970) on July 17 and October 18, 2019, respectively.
The relevant statutory registration procedures have been completed.

The aforementioned private placement of ordinary shares and the transfer of any subsequently
obtained bonus shares will be subject to the Article 43-8 under the Securities and Exchange
Act. The Bank can only apply for these shares to be traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
after a three-year period has elapsed from the delivery date of the private placement securities,
and afier applying for a public offering with the FSC.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company’ s authorized and issued capital were
$103,125,000 thousand ($90,000,000 thousand was under public offering and $13,125,000
thousand was under private placement) and $90,000,000 thousand, respectively.

Capital surplus

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures 3 9 9
accounted for using equity method ,
Equity premium- premium from merger 111,385,217 111,385,217
Equity premium- capital increase based on land 28,875,000 -
pricing
Total ) 140,260,226 111,385,226

According to the ROC Company Act prior to the new amendment on January 4, 2012, capital
surplus can only be used to increase share capital by using the realized capital surplus afier
offseting the deficit. Capital surplus cannot be used for distribution of cash dividends. The
aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting from premium on
issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received. According to the
Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, capital
increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not exceed a certain of
the total common stock outstanding. The Company may only increase its capital reserve out of
the share capital from cash premium on capital stock once a year. The additional capital
reserve from the share capital may not be increased during the same fiscal year as the
additional share capital form cash premium on capital stock. According to the new amendment
of the ROC Company Act, the Company can pay stock or cash dividend with capitai surplus
when there is no loss and a resolution was passed by the shareholders.

(Continued)
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In accordance with the laws and regulations regarding government-run businesses as well as
the Banks’ s article of Incorporation, however, only current year earnings, undistributed
earnings accumulated from prior years and the portion of legal reserve permitted to be
distributed can be used as a resource for cash distribution. Cap1ta1 surplus will not be not
included and allowed for distributing cash dividend. Also, in the light of the Ruling No.
10801091260 issued by the FSC on August 23, 2019, the Company has had a meeting with
BOT on December 12, 2019 to discussed their capital plan and the mechanism of internal
control over the appropnateness to use the premium of $28,875,000 thousand generated from
the capital injected with land in 2019 to distribute cash dividend in the future. The Company
will follow the related guidance going forward.

Legal reserve

When a company incurs no foss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders’ meeting,
distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and only the portion
of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.

Appropriation of earnings

The articles of incorporation of the Company and subsidiaries stipulate that net income should
be distributed in the following order:

1)  to settle all outstanding tax payable;
2)  to offset prior years losses;

3) toappropriate 10% as legal reserve;
4)  special reserve

to appropriate 40~60% as special reserve; in accordance with the Order No. 1010012865
issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, for any unrealized revaluation gains and cumulative
translation adjustments (gains) recorded in the shareholders equity which the Company
and subsidiaries elect to transfer to retained earnings by application of the exemption
under IFRSs No. 1, the Company and subsidiaries shall set aside an equal amount of
special reserve. When the Company and subsidiaries subsequently use, dispose of, or
reclassify the relevant assets, it may be reversed to distributable earnings a proportional
amount of the special reserve originally set aside.

5)  to appropriate dividends

The remaining balance would be appropriated, combining accumulated retained eamings,
in accordance with related laws and regulations.

According to the Company's policy, before the legal reserve balance amounts to the
authorized capital, cash dividend distributions cannot exceed 15% of the authorized
capital.

6)  According to the budget approved by the Executive Yuan and the Legislative Yuan, the
Company will not distribute its 2019 and 2018 surplus as dividend to the Ministry of
Finance.

(Continued)
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(ai) Net interest income

(aj)

about these financial instruments.
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2019 2018
Interest income:
Loans and discounts 3 43,712,913 40,439,521
Placement with Central Bank and call loans to banks 9,390,736 10,196,761
Securities investment 22,359,402 22,041,817
Credit cards 25,118 25,19
Bonds purchased under resell agreements 61,792 51,453
Others 1.035.444 1,252.006
Subtotal 76.585.405 74,006,749
Interest expense:
Deposits from customers 33,365,560 33,812,107
Deposits of Central Banks and other banks 5,433,135 3,758,265
Bonds sold under repurchased agreements 123,706 288,784
Financial bonds 304,830 304,470
Structured deposits 30,952 22,686
Others 81.910 63.909
Subtotal 39.340.093 38.250.221
Total $ 37,245,312 35,756,528
Service fees, net
2019 2018
Service fees revenues:
Bank business b 5,244,527 5,345,491
Insurance business 136,041 108,571
Securities business 445.515 496.400
Subtotal 5.826.083 5.950.462
Service fees expenses:
Bank business 692,347 659,034
Insurance business 1,043,635 935,769
Securities business 37.548 33.973
Subtotal 1.773.530 1.628.776
Total S 4,052,553 4,321,686

The Company and subsidiaries provide custody, trust, investment management and advisory services
to third parties, therefore, the Company's and subsidiaries' plan, manage and make trading decisions
Trust funds or portfolios, entrusted with management and
application, prepare financial statements for internal management purposes and will not include in
the financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries.

(Continued)



102

TAITWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements '

(ak) Gain (loss) on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

2019 2018
Gain (loss) on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss:
Dividend income h 6,163,979 5,725,087
Net interest income (1,205,172) (924,891)
Net gain on disposal 19.548.343 1.365.123
24.507.150 6.165.319
Gain (loss) on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss — valuation:
Net gain on valuation 20.024.119 (18.074.571)
Total $ 53,531,269 (11,909,252)

(al) Realized gains (Josses) on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income
2019 2018
Dividend income $ 3,555,239 3,318,373
Gain (loss) on disposal 514.335 (30.210)
Total 3 4,069,574 3,288,163
{am) Other non-interest income (expenses)
2019 2018
Sales revenue, net $ 500,387 366,662
Subsidized income from government : 8,774,387 8,892,009
Others 812,742 1,707,533
Excess preferential interest expenses (8.856.111) (9.640.527)
Total $ 1,231,405 1,325,677

Note: According to the Government Employees and School Insurance Act, if GESSI experiences a
loss, the loss before May 30, 1999, would be covered by the Ministry of Finance; and the loss
after that date would be covered by an adjustment of the insurance premium. Please refer to
note 16(c) for the supplementary information for government employees’ insurance
department of BOT.

{Continued)
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Employee benefits expenses

Salaries

Director's emoluments
Labor and health insurances
Pensions

Others

Total

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Total

Other general and administrative expenses

Taxes

Rental expenses

Insurance expenses

Postage and phone / fax expenses
Utilities

Supplies expense

Repair and maintenance expenses
Marketing expenses

Professional service fees

Others

Total

Earnings per Share
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2019 2018
12,221,855 11,766,668
8,541 6,525
580,681 570,738
1,017,159 927,182
319.747 304,221
14,147,983 13,575,334

2019 2018
1,346,648 752,650
330,174 291,345
1,676,822 1,043,995

2019 2018
3,226,626 3,135,649
7,763 827,574
1,003,944 985,260
253,340 277,100
195,518 201,105
179,124 175,090
422,584 428,598
437.293 424,681
843,138 474,187
632.039 507.933
7,201,369 7,437,177

The consolidated basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net income by the number
of shares outstanding. The net income in 2019 and 2018 are $8,804,209 thousand and $9,094,360
thousand, respectively. The weighted average outstanding shares are 9,420,719 thousand and

9,000,000 thousand, respectively.

The Company's basic earnings per share were calculated as follows:

Consolidated net income

Weighted average outstanding shares (in thousand shares)

Basic earnings per share (in doliars)

2019 2018
8,804,209 9,094,360
9.420,719 9,000,000

0.93

1.01

{Continued)
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(ar) Insurance income, net

2019
BOT government
employees'
insurance
department BTLI Total
Premium income 3 23,511,625 52,250,889 75,762,514
Amortized reinsurance claims - 47,869 47,869
payment
Income on insurance product- - 721 721
separated account
Insurance business income 23.511.625 52,299.479 75.811.104
Reinsurance expense - 135,984 135,984
Direct business expenses - 815 815
Insurance claims payment 24,671,785 20,858,312 45,530,097
Disbursement toward industry - 118,176 118,176
stability
Disbursement on insurance product - 721 721
separated account
Insurance business expenses 24.671.785 21.114.008 45.785.793
Net income from insurance $ (1.1606,160) 31,185.471 30,025,311
business
2018
BOT government
employees'
insurance
department BTLI Total
Premium income $ 24,863,334 46,059,435 70,922,769
Amortized reinsurance claims - 44,600 44,600
payment
Income on insurance product- - (302) (302)
separated account
Insurance business income 24.863.334 46.103.733 70.967.067
Reinsurance expense - 111,820 111,820
Direct business expenses - 665 665
Insurance claims payment 23,242,767 45,610,696 68,853,463
Disbursement toward industry - 124,360 124,360
stability
Disbursement on insurance product - (302) (302)
separated account
Insurance business expenses 23.242.767 45.847.239 69.090.006
Net income from insurance S 1,620,567 256,494 1.877,061

business
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Retained earned premiums

Direct written premium
Less: Reinsurance premium ceded
Net change in uncarned
' premium reserve

Retained earned premium

Direct written premium
Less: Reinsurance premium ceded
Net change in unearned
premium reserve

Retained earned premium

Retained benefits and claims paid

Claims payment incurred

Reinsurance claims

Insurance claims payment

Less: Claims payment recovered
from reinsures

Retained benefits and claims paid

105

2019
Financiai
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
$ 50.513.468 1.737.421 52.250.889
135,984 - 135,984
10,291 (43) 10,248
146,275 (43 146.232
b} 50,367,193 1,737,464 52,104,657
2018
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
$ 44.500.076 1.555.359 46.059.435
111,820 - 111,820
(5,674) (448) (6,122)
106.146 {448) 105.698
$ 44,393,930 1,559,807 45,953,737
2019
Financial
products with
discretionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
$ 17,993,982 2,864,308 20,858,290
22 - 22
17,994,004 2,864,308 20,858,312
47,869 - 47,869
5 17.946,135 2,864,308 20,810,443
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2018
Financial
products with
discrefionary
Insurance participation
Contract feature Total
Claims payment incurred $ 32,607,265 13,003,374 45,610,639
Reinsurance claims 58 - 58
Insurance ¢laims payment 32,607,323 13,003,374 45,610,697
Less: Claims payment recovered 44,600 - 44,600
from reinsures
Retained benefits and claims paid ~ § 32,562,723 13,003,374 45,566,097

(7) The Fair Value Information of Financial Instruments:

(a)

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments are as follows.

M

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

™

For certain financial instruments, the Company and subsidiaries consider their carrying
amounis measured at amortized cost to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. These
financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, placement with Central Bank and call
Joans to banks, bills and bonds purchased under resell agreements, notes receivables and other
receivables, other financial liabilities, margin loans and stock loans, deposits of central bank
and other banks, commercial paper payables, bills and bonds sold under repurchase
agreements, payables, deposits, other borrowings and other financial liabilities.

For financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income and hedging derivative financial assets, the fair
value is based on quoted market price in an active market. If a quoted market price is not
available, the fair value is determined based on valuation technique or quoted price from other
financial institution.

For loans and discounts, negotiations, factoring receivables, credit card receivables, acceptance
receivables, and overdue, the fair value is the balance after adjusting unamortized discount or
premium and accumulated impairment loss.

Deposits and Remittances: The Company and subsidiaies consider the bank industries
characteristic to decide the fair value. The deposits with market interest rate are almost those
due within one year and their carrying amount are reasonable basis for estimating the . fair
value. The long-term deposits with fixed interest rate are measured using the discounted
present value of expected future cash flow. Because the term to maturity is less than three
years, it’s reasonable using the carrying amount to estimate the fair value.

Financial Bonds Payable: It refers to the convertible corporate bonds and financial bonds
issued by the Company and subsidiaries. Their coupon rates are almost equal to the market
interest rate, so it is reasonable to using the discounted present values of expected future cash
flow to estimate their fair values. The present values are almost equal to the carrying amounts,
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The fair value of the financial instruments is the attainable or payable amount if the contract is
terminated at the reporting date. The fair value includes the unrealized gain (loss) of
unexpired contracts. The derivatives are measured using the quoted price from financial
institutions or valuation model.

The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

The Three-level Definition

()

(i)

(iif)

Level 1

Inputs are quoted prices of same financial instruments in an active market. An active market
indicates the market that is in conformity with all the following conditions: (i) the products in
the market are identical; (i) it is easy to find a willing party; (iii) the price information is
attainable for the public. The equity invesiments, beneficiary certificates, certain Taiwan
government bonds, and derivatives with quoted prices in an active market are classified as
level 1,

Level 2

Inputs are those that are observable for asset or liability, either directly (i.e. prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), other than quoted prices included within Level 1. The non
popular government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds, convertible bonds, most of the
derivatives, and financial bonds issued by the Bank and its subsidiary are classified as level 2.

Level 3

Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs parameters), Le.,
historical volatility which cannot represent an expected value of all the market participators but
is used as a model for the calcuiation of options. Certain derivatives and equity investments
without a non-active market belong to level 3.
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{c) Fair value measurement

(i)  The fair value hierarchy

108

The following tables present for each of the fair value hierarchy levels of the Company's and
subsidiaries' assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

December 31, 2019
Financial instruments measured at
fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non derivative financial instruments
Assets:
Financial assets measured at fair $ 281,498,422 247,885,048 33,414,584 198,790
value through profit or loss
Designated at fair value through 19,361,468 - 19,361,468 -
profit or loss
Bond investments 19,361,468 - 19,361,468 -
Mandatorily measured ai fair 262,136,954 247,885,048 14,053,116 198,790
value through profit or loss
Stock investments 104,937,651 104,738,861 - 198,790
Bond investments 15,253,110 1,199,994 14,053,116 -
Others 141,946,193 141,946,193 - -
Financial assets at fair value through 1,023,839,660 806,843,558 193,896,216 23,099.886
other comprehensive income
Siock investmenis 102,032.686 78,932,800 - 23,099.886
Bond investments 920,672,860 726,776,644 193.896.216 -
Others 1,134,114 1,134,114 - -
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities designated at fair 46,199,351 - 46,199,351 -
value through profit or loss
Designated at fair value through 46,199,351 - 46,199,351 -
profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Assets:
Financial assets measured at fair $ 12,103,628 57,021 12,046,607 -
value through profit or loss
Hedging Derivative Financial assets 1,071 - 1,071 -
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at fair 13,419,965 - 13,419,965 -
value through profit or loss
Hedging Derivative Financial 25,537 - 25,537 -
liabilities
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December 31, 2018
Financial instruments measured st
fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non derivative financial instruments
Assets:
Financial assets measured at fair $ 264,018,689 180,988,501 82,815,080 214,708
value through profit or loss
Designated at fair value through 15,465,720 - 15,465,720 -
profit or loss
Bond investments 15,465,720 - 15,465,720 -
Mandatorily measured at fair 248,552,969 180,988,901 67,349,360 214,708
value through profit or loss
Stock investments 96,321,702 96,106,994 - 214,708
Bond investments 68,248,845 899,485 67.349,360 -
Others 83,982,422 83,982,422 - -

Financial assets at fair value through 1,127,802,007 927,595,171 183,571,226 16,635,610
other comprehensive income

Stock investments 83,767.629 67,132,019 - 16,635,610
Bond investments 1,044,034,378 860,463,152 183.571.226 -
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities designated at fair 45,855,310 - 45,855,310 -
value through profit or loss
Designated at fair value through 45,855,310 - 45855310 -

profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Assets:

Financial assets measured at fair b 6.624.081 89.174 6,534,907 -
value through profit or loss

Hedging Derivative Financial assets 41,693 - 41,693 -
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities measured at fair 4,797,220 - 4.797.220 -
value through profit or loss

Hedging Derivative Financial 12,973 - 12,973 -
liabilities

(i) Valuation techniques

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In addition, fair value
measurement assumes that the transaction takes place in the principal (or most advantageous)
market in which an orderly transaction would take place for the asset or liability, and assumes
market participants would use the assumptions about pricing the asset or liability, and assumes
market participants make decisions based on their own best interests.

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair values. In many case, they usually refer to
transaction price. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are also measured at fair value except
for those that are measured at amortized cost. The best evidence of fair value is the quoted
price in an active market. If a financial instrument do not have a quoted market price in an
active market, BOT uses the valuation techniques or refers to the quoted prices set by
Bioomberg, Reuters or the Counterparties to determine the fair value.
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The fair value of financial instruments is based on the quoted prices in an open market. These
include trading prices of equity instruments listed on a major stock exchange or of the
government bonds in an over the counter (“OTC”) market.

When a quoted price of a financial instrument is timely available in a stock exchange or an
OTC market or from brokers, underwriter, industry associations, pricing service organizations
and the authorities and the price is often used in a arm’s length transaction, the financial
instrument is considered having a quoted price in an active market. If the above criteria are not
met, the market is considered inactive. In general, a large or significantly increasing bid-ask
spread and very low transaction volume indicate that the market where the financial instrument
is trade is not active.

Other than those traded in an active market, the fair value of all other financial instruments is
determined by using a valuation model or referring to the quoted price of the counterparty. The
Company and subsidiaries refer to the present values, the discounted cash flow or the values
calculated under other valuation methods of financial instruments with similar terms and
characteristics, including the one calculated by a model which uses the available market data at
the financial statement day as inputs. (i.e. the applicable yield curve of bonds traded in the
Taipei exchange and average prices of commercial papers quoted on Reuters)

When measuring a financial instrument which no specific techniques can be applied to but do
not create challenge in valuation, such as bonds traded in an inactive market, inlerest rate
swap, FX swaps and options, the'Company and subsidiaries adopt the valuation methods which
are widely used and accepted by other market participants. The parameters used are usually the
observable market data or information.

For complex financial instruments, the Company and subsidiaries not only refer to the
valuation methods which are widely used and accepted by other banks but also develops its
own valuation models to determine the fair value. These valuation models are usually applied
to the valuation of derivatives, debt instruments with embedded derivatives, or securitization
products. The parameters used in such models are usually not observable in a market, and
therefore, BOT has to make proper estimates based on assumptions and judgments.

(iii) Fair value adjustment
1)  Limitations of valuation models and inputs

Outputs of valuation models are approximate values and valuation techniques may not be
able to reflect critical factors of all the financial and non financial instruments. As such,
additional parameters shall be incorporated into the fair value measurement, such as
modeling risk and liquidity risk, when necessary. The management of the Company and
subsidiaries believe that the adjustments made to the fair value of financial and non
financial instruments are appropriate and necessary since they are performed in
accordance with the Company's and subsidiaries’ policies goveming the fair value of
valuation models and related internal controls. All the information and parameters are
based on current market conditions and thoroughly reviewed by the Company and
subsidiaries.
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Credit risk valuation adjustment

Credit risk valuation adjustment consists of credit valuation adjustments and debit
valuation adjustments to the derivatives traded in an OTC market instead of a stock
exchange market. The definitions are as follows:

a)  Credit value adjustments (“CVA®™): adjust the valuation on transactions that occurs
outside the exchange market, which refers to OTC derivative contracts, to reflect
the possibility of the counter parties’ delayed payment and default into fair value.

b)  Debit value adjustments (“DVA”): adjust the valuation on transactions that occurs
outside the exchange market, which refers to OTC derivative contracts, to reflect
the possibility of the Company's and subsidiaries' delayed payment and default into
fair value.

The key inputs of the measurement of credit risk and the quality of the Company's and
subsidiaries’ counterparties are the probability of default (“PD”), loss given default
(“LGD™) and exposure at default (“"EAD™).

CVAs are calculated by considering counterparty’s probability of default (“PD™) under
the condition that the Bank is not in default, Loss give default (“LGD™) and Exposure at
default (“EAD”). On the contrary, DVAs are calculated by considering the Bank’s PD
under the condition that the counterparty is not in default, LGD and EAD.

The Company and subsidiaries refer to the counterparty‘s default rate graded by Moody”
s, experiences of John Gregory (scholar), and foreign financial institutions, to determine
the PD at 60%. The Company and subsidiaries may also use other alternative PD
assumptions if data availability is limited. Moreover, the Company and subsidiaries also
take the credit risk valuation adjustments into consideration when calculating fair value
by referring to the Mark to Market values of derivatives traded in the OTC markets to
reflect the counterparty’ s credit risk and the Company's and subsidiaries'
creditworthiness.
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Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values in 2019 and 2018:

Fair value
through other
Fair value through  comprehensive
profit or loss income
Non derivative
mandatorily
measured at fair
value through
profit or loss
(Unquoted equity  Unquoted equity

instruments) instruments Total

Opening balance, January 1, 2019 $ 214,708 16,635,610 16,850,318
Total gains and losses recognized: :

In profit or loss (15,918) - {15,918)

In other comprehensive income - 5,631,721 5,631,721
Purchased - 832.555 832.555
Ending Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 198,790 23,099,886 23,298,676
Opening balance, January 1, 2018 206,925 15,981,226 16,188,151
Total gains and losses recognized:

In profit or loss 7,783 - 7,783

In other comprehensive income - 810,291 810,291
Purchased - 35,643 35,643
Derecognized or repaid - (191.550) {191.550)
Ending Balance, December 31, 2018 214,708 16,635,610 16,850,318

The process of fair value measurements in Level 3

Referring to IFRS 13, the Trading Department should inform the Risk Management
Department regarding the related valuation methods before any financial instruments
categorized in Level 3 are bought or sold. The valuation result of such financial instruments is
quarterly reported to Asset and Liability Management Committee.

The sensitivity analysis for the financial assets measured at fair value classified to the Level 3.

The Company and subsidiaries consider the valuation techniques used by the Company and
subsidiaries for fair value measurements in Level 3 reasonable. However, any changes in one
or more of the parameters or assumptions may lead to a different result.

~

The favorable and unfavorable effects represent the changes in fair value, and the fair value are
based on a variety of unobservable inputs calculated using a valuation technique. There are no

such effects as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The analysis only reflects the effects of changes in a single input, and it does not include the
inter relationships with another input.

{Continued)



113

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(vii) The sensitivity analysis for the financial assets measured at fair value classified to the Level 3.

the Company's and subsidiaries' financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair
value include “ financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss — equity
investments” and “fair value through other comprehensive income — equity investments™,

Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

Inter-relationship
between significant
unobservable inputs

Valuation Significant and fair value

Item technique unobservable inputs measurement
Financial liabilities ~ Comparable - P/E ratio The estimated fair
measured at fair company method . P/B ratio value would increase
value through profit (Market approach) EV/Operating (decrease) if:
or loss and revenue - the P/E ratio, P/B
Financial assets at ratio, EV/Operating
fair value through - EV/EBITDA revenue
other - EV/Total assets EV/EBITDA and
comprehensive - Liquidity discount EV/Total assets
incorpe - rate were higher (lower);
Contingent the liquidity
consideration discount rate were

lower (higher).

{d) Hierarchy information of financial instruments not measured at fair value

@

Fair value information

In addition to the following items, the Company's and subsidiaries' financial instruments that
are not measured at fair value include cash and cash equivalents, due from the central bank and
call loans to banks, securities purchased under resell agreements, receivables, other financial
assets, discounts and loans, deposit from and due to the central bank and banks, securities sold
under repurchase agreements, commercial papers issued, payables, deposits, other borrowings
and other financial liabilities. Since their book value is a reasonable approximation to fair
value, there is no fair value disclosure.

Ttem Book value Fair value
December 31, 2019
Financial assets:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 459,013,244 470,155,932
December 31, 2018
Financial assets:
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 434,340,960 414,525,358
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(i) Fair value hierarchy

December 31, 2019
Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical  observable observable
asset inputs inputs
Assets and liabilities item Total (Levell) {Level2) {Level3)
Financial Assets:
Financial assets measured at $470,155,932 188,462,304 281,693,628 -
amortized cost
December 31, 2018
Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Signifieant
identical  observable observable
asset inputs inputs
Assets and liabilities item Total (Levell) {Level2) (Level3)

Financial Assets:

Financial assets measured at
amortized cost

(8) Financial Risk Management:

{(a) Risk management structure

$414,525,358 129,351,195 285,174,163 -

(i) The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the

risk management framework,

(i) The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for
developing and monitoring the risk management policies of the Company and subsidiaries to
reduce risk exposure. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its

activities.

(iii) Risk management department is an independent organization responsible for monitoring the
Company's and subsidiaries' risk management practices, keeping track of the progress of the
execution of revolutions made by the Board or the Committee and submitting the risk reports
to the Board and the Committee regularly. 1f a significant risk exposure is identified, the
Department shall take necessary action and report them to the Board and the Committee.
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(iv) The Board of each subsidiary is the highest organization to make decisions on major company
issues. Their respective risk management committees and risk management departments are
charged with monitoring risks.

(v) Each subsidiary is responsible for identify, evaluate, and control the risks of new products or
business, set up related risk management guideline, and monitor the risk management to ensure
the risk control of the company.

(vi) The risk management departments of the Company and subsidiaries should periodically report
the risk control situation to the Board of Directors and Risk management committee to enable
the Committee to assess the risk involved in the Company's business and how they are
controlled and monitored by the management.

Risk management strategics

The various risks resulted from the business no matter on/off the financial statements should be
managed in order to optimize compliance and enhance the operating and development. Except for
regulations requested by the competent authority, the Company and subsidiaries also set related risk
management regulations as a guideline to ensure the risk control of various risks.

(iy  The subsidiary, BOT

1)

Overview

The Bank and its subsidiary’s activities have exposed to various risks from financial
instruments, which include credit risk, market risk, operational risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, national risk, legal risk and so forth. The principle of risk management is as

follow:

a)  Monitor the BIS Capital Adequacy Ratio in response to operation scale, credit risk,
market risk, operational risk and the operating trades in the future.

b) Establish a systematic risk measure and control mechanism to measure, monitor
and control every risk.

c) Manage every business risk considering the risk capacity, capital reserve, nature of
debts and performance.

d)  Establish a valuation method for the quality and classification of assets, control the
intensity of exposure and significant exposure, check periodically and recognize
allowance for loss.

e)  Establish information system-protection mechanism and emergency plan for bank

operation, transactions, and information. Build an independent and effective risk
management mechanism and strengthen the risk management of business through
appropriate policies, procedures, and systems.
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Risk management structure

The risk management structure of BOT is composed of the Board of Directors, risk
management committee, risk management department, other operational unit and other

unit.

a)

b)

d)

€)

The Board of Director is the final decision maker for risk management and is
responsible for the result of risk. The Board of Director should decide the entire
risk management policies in view of operational strategies and business
environment to monitor the risk management mechanism which understand the risk
status and maintain the appropriate Capital Adequacy Ratio in response to all risk.

Risk management committee under the Board of Directors is responsible for
executing risk management policies and coordinating interdepartmental
management of risk.

Risk management department is responsible for monitoring, tracing the execution
status of risk management policies and submitting reports to the Board of Directors
or risk management committee. I a significant risk exposure is discovered, the risk
management department has to make appropriate procedures and report them to the
Board of Directors.

Other department should identify, evaluate, and control the risks of new products or
business, set related risk management regulations as a guideline, and monitor the
risk management to ensure the risk control of entire company.

Other operational units shall comply with the regulations for risk management.

Credit Risk

a)

Causes and definition of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to BOT if a borrower, issuer or a
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations
principally due to their credit deterioration or other factors (i.e. disputes between a

loanee and its counterparty), including:

i)  Credit risk from a borrower/issuer refers to the risk that BOT may
suffer from financial losses when the borrower/issuer is not able to
meet its contractual obligations due to default, bankruptcy or
liquidation.

ii) Credit risk form counterparties refers to the risk that BOT may suffer
from financial losses when the counterparty is not able to settle the
contracts or execute its repayments.

iii) Credit risk form underlying assets refers to the risk that BOT may suffer
from financial losses when the credit quality of the underlying assets
linked by the financial instruments turns vulnerable, which leads to an
increase of risk premium or a downgrade of credit rating.
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Credit risk is derived both from on and off balance sheet items. On balance sheet
items include loans, placement with banks, call loans to banks, acceptance bills,
debt instruments, derivatives, etc. Off balance sheet items include guarantees,
acceptances, letter of credits, loan commitments, etc.

Identification and measurement of credit risk

To ensure the credit risk is in a tolerable range, BOT sets the credit risk

- management policies which identified that the credit risk includes all the

transactions and business related to the assets, liagbilities and off balance sheet
items. Before executing present or new businesses, BOT shall identify the credit
risk, understand the risk exposure through appropriate evaluation and assess the
possibilities of default.

Except that the local financial supervisory institutions have their own regulations,
the overseas business units of the BOT shail conduct the credit ability of the loans
and discounts, and recognized impairment in accordance with the “ Operational
Manual of Evaluating the Impairment of Loans and Receivables”. The followings
are the detailed information of how major businesses of BOT measures and
manages credit risk.

i)  Credit business (including loan commitments and financial guarantees)
1.  Credit assets categories and post-loan management

BOT has established the * Operational Manual of Evaluating the
Impairment of Loans and Receivables™ and has classified the credit
assets into five categories. Except for the normal credit assets that are
classified at the first category, the other bad credit rating assets are
classified as the second category requiring attention, the third category
collectable, the fourth category hard to collect, and the fifth category
impossible to collect by assessing the collaterals and overdue days. In
order to reinforce the post loan management, BOT set the “ Credit
Review and Follow up Evaluations Provision” and “ Warning
Mechanism Provision” and evaluate and monitor the quality of credit
assets regularly. Also, the BOT audits credit cases by sampling
according to the ratings of the cases, conduct credit reviewing in the
following month and checks significant credit cases periodically, to
enhance the management of abnormal credit, and to achieve the purpose
of warning and interim monitor.
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iii)

2. Internal credit rating

When conducting credit review, BOT will obtain necessary collateral to
mitigate risk arising from financial loss due to the environment,
economic changes, risk factors of business development strategies and
policies. In order to balances the credit risk and earnings target, they
strengthen the market competitiveness of products sirive for customer
identification and broaden the business. The following are the credit
process of corporate finance and consumer finance.

a. Corporate Finance

BOT sets up the terms and interest rate based on a borrowers’
credit ratings, including the ones from external credit rating
agencies and BOT’s internal scorecards. The clients are classified
into two types based on the scorecards, the large scale enterprise
and the medium to small scale enterprise. Then BOT allocates the
clients into 13 ratings according to their enterprise scale, financial
and business status, business management and industry
characteristic.

b. Consumer Finance

BOT uses the credit application scorecard and behavior scorecard,
both of them have seven grades for the purpose of credit risk
evaluation and differential pricing. Unsecured consumer loans are
graded based on seven scoring items and are classified into the
seventh rating. BOT will reject those below the lowest scores; the
others are reviewed in accordance with related provisions.

Due from banks and call loans to banks

BOT will assess the counterparty's creditworthiness, and refer to external
ratings provided by domestic and international credit rating agencies, to set
up different credit risk limits before any transactions are carried out.

Investment in debt instruments and derivative financial instruments

BOT identifies and manages credit risk of debt instruments by reviewing the
external ratings, creditworthiness of bonds, and geographic region of its
counterparties.

Most of the BOT’s derivative contracts with its counterparties are financial
institutions with good credit ratings. For those financial institutions whose
ratings are not available, the BOT reviews the transactions individually. All
the counterparties, including non-financial institutions, are managed based on
their lines of credit (including loans at cafl).
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c}  Measurement of credit risk

iy  Categories for credit risk quality
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BOT internally categorizes the credit risk into four levels, which are low risk,
moderate risk, high risk and impaired risk. The definition of each level is as

follows:

1. Low risk: The issuers or the counterparties are rated as robust or above
to fulfill their obligation of the contracts. Even under various negative
news or disadvantageous economic conditions, the companies are

capable of dealing with the situations.

2. Moderate risk: The possibility that the issuers or counterpartics fulfill
their obligation is remote. Operating performance and disadvantageous
economic conditions will lower their ability and willingness to fulfill

their obligation.

3. High risk: The possibility that the issuers or counterparties fulfill their
obligation is remote and mainly relies on the business environment.
Negative news or disadvantageous economic conditions will lower their

ability and willingness to fuifill their obligation.

4. lmpaired risk: the counterparties or the target did not perform its
obligation according to the contracts, and the potential estimated loss of

the Company has reached the standard of impairment.

ii)  Determination on the credit risk that has increased significantly since initial

recognition

BOT determines whether the credit risk of financial instruments applying the
impairment requirements in IFRS 9 increased significantly since the initial
recognition on each reporting date. For this assessment, BOT considers the

reasonable and supportable information ({including forward

looking

information) which shows that the credit risk has increased significantly since

initial recognition. The main considerations.
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1.  Credit business (including loan commitments and financial deposit)

BOT’s credit business scoring model and risk degree were as follows:

Consumer Finance JRB
Corporate Finance application/ behavioral Student Loans
Risk degree porat scoring model behavioral scoring
IRB scoring model | . . R
(including credit cards, model
excluding student loans)
1 1 1
Low 2 2
3 3 2
4
5 4
6 3
Moderate 7
8 6
9 6
10
11 7
High 12 7
13 9
10

a.  Loans and Discounts and credit related receivables

BOT will determine if the credit risk of loans and discounts or
financing receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition, when the financial instrument applying the
impairment requirements in IFRS 9 meets the following
conditions at each reporting date:

The borrower’ s internal or external rating has significantly
dropped;

The borrower’s contract payment has been overdue for more
than one month but still within 3 months (there are additional
45 days for a borrower who does not have a credit account in
BOT);

The borrower’ s internal credit level is assessed as* Poor”
under post loan review or alert.
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b.  Receivable related ro credit cards business

BOT will determine if the credit risk of credit card loans has
increased significantly since initial recognition when the credit
card loans applying the following conditions: The borrower has
not used revolving credit facility, but whose internal rating has
dropped more than 3 levels, or the borrower has used revolving
credit facility without overdue, or overdue within 3 months, or
non-conforming assets excluding assets previously determined as
credit risk has increased significantly or credit impairment.

2. Debt investments and placement with central bank and call loans to
banks

BOT follows the table below to determine whether that the credit risk
of debt investments or placement with central bank and call loans to
banks have increased significantly since initial recognition at each

reporting date:
STAGE 1 STAGE2 STAGE 3
(eredit risk has not {credit risk has (credit has been
significantly increased) significantly increased) impaired)

1. The credit rating of a
counterpaity is higher than
Moody’s A3, S&P's A ,
Fitch’s A or Taiwan Ratings’
twA at the reporting date.
(Note)

2. The credit rating of a
counterparty falling
between Moody’s A3 and

[Not assessed as Stage 1,  [Not assessed as Stage 1,

. but the credit of but the credit of
Baa3 or equivalent drops counterparty is not counterparty has been
within 4 levels during the Tparty 1 counterparty
actually impaired. impaired.

period of the transaction
date and each reporting date.

3. The credit rating of a
counterparty lower than
Moody’s Baa3 or equivalent
drops I level during the
period of the transaction date
and cach reporting date.

Note: If the credit risk of the credit assets is low, BOT may
consider that the credit risk of debt investments and
placement with central bank and call loans to banks has not
significantly increased since initial recognition.
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iif) Definitions for default and credit impairment of financial assets

BOT uses the same definitions for default and credit impairment of financial
assets. If one or more of the following conditions are met, the Branch
determine that the financial assets have been defaulted and credit impaired:

1.  Credit business (including loan commitments and financial deposit)

a. Loans and discounts and credit related receivables

i.  Quantitative indicators

The borrower’s principals or interests have been overdue
than 3 months.

The borrower’s internal rating is assessed as the lowest.
ii.  Qualitative indicators

If there is evidence that the borrower will be unable to pay
the contract, or show that the borrower has significant
financial difficulties; such as:

The borrower has requested to postpone the repayment of
principles and interests;

The borrower’ s internal credit level is assessed as
“Terrible” under post loan review or alert;

The borrower’ s internal credit level is assessed as
Dangerous” under post loan review or alert;

The borrower is reported by BOT due to significant and
unfavorable events;

The borrower is under debt negotiation.
b.  Credit card business

The loan which borrower’s payment has been overdue more than
3 months, or is reclassified as non-accrual loans, or was credit-
impaired before, or which borrower is dead.
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2. Debt investments and placement with central bank and call loans to
banks

a.  If there is evidence showing that the borrower will be unable to
repay the principal or interests, or that the borrower has
significant financial difficulties, such as:

The issuer has breached the contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

The issuer reorganizes its debt, such as a slash on the interest
rate or principals, an exchange of debts, subordination of debt
repayment or a postpone in maturity date;

The issuer has filed a bankruptcy; or
The issuer’s rating is optional default or default.

b. A combination of individual and independent events may lead to
an impairment on financial assets.

If the aforementioned definition of breach of contract and credit impairment
applies to all financial assets held by BOT no longer meets the definition of
default and credit impairment for a period of time, it is deemed to return to
the state of compliance and is no longer considered defaulted and credit
impaired.

The aforementioned definition of breach of contract and credit impairment,
and is consistent with the definition used for the purpose of internal credit
risk management for financial assets, and is also applied to the relevant
impairment assessment model.

Write off policy

If there is no realistic prospect of recovery for the financial assets (either
partially or in full), BOT will write off part or full of the financial assets. The
indications of financial assets which have no realistic prospect of recovery
include:

1.  The loan cannot be recovered in full or in part because the issuers or
debtors have dissolved, gone into hiding, reached a settlement, declared
bankruptey, or for other reasons.

2. The collateral and property of the primary/subordinate debtors or
issuers have been appraised at a very low value or become insufficient
to repay the loan after the subfraction of senior mortgages; or the
execution cost approaches or possibly exceeds the amount that BOT
might collect from the debtors where there is no financial benefit in
execution.
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V)

vi)

3. The primary/subordinate debtor or an issuer’s collateral has failed to
sell at successive auctions where the price of such collateral has been
successively lowered, and there is no financial benefit to be derived
from the BOT’s taking possession of such collateral.

4. More than two years have elapsed since the maturity date of the non
performing loans or non accrual loans, and the efforts of collection have
failed.

Amendments of contractual cash flows of financial assets

The contractual cash flows of loans and discounts may be amended due to the
borrower’s financial difficuities or in order to increase the recovery rate. An
amendment may involve an extension of contract period, a change in the
timing of repayments or in the interest rate, which may lead to a de-
recognition of current financial assets and a re-recognition of the financial
assets at fair value, in accordance with BOT’s policy (Please see note 4(f)).

If the amendments do not lead to a de-recognition, BOT will determine the
credit of financial assets have been impaired and will assess expected credit
loss accordingly since debt negotiation or extension is one of the conditions
that define whether financial assets are credit-impaired or not.

BOT assesses the possibility of default of the amend financial assets by
considering the condition of repayments after the amendment and several
related behavior indexes, and re-evaluate whether the amendment has
improved or restore the client’s ability to make the required loan payments.
According to the BOT’ s policy, a borrower cannot be reveried to Stage 1
unti] the borrower can continuously repay the new contractual amounts for a
certain period and shows good payment behaviors.

BOT will periodically review changes of credit risk after amendments
accordance with related policy.

Expected credit loss measurement
1.  Adopted methods and assumptions

For BOT, if the financial assets are of low credit risk or no significant
increase in credit risk, the 12 month expected credit losses will be
recognized. If the financial assets are significantly increased in credit
risk or the credits have been impaired, the expected credit losses for a
lifetime will be recognized.

In order to measure expected credit losses, BOT adopts Probability of
default (“PD™), and include Loss given default (*LGD”) and Exposure
at default ("EAD"), and consider the impact of the time value of money,
to calculate the expected credit losses for 12 months and for a lifetime,
respectively.
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Default probability is how likely the issuer or the counterparty breaches
the contract, and the loss given default is the rate of loss due to default
by the issuer or the counterparty. The default probability and loss given
default used by BOT, related impairment assessments are based on
international credit rating agencies (S&P and Moody’ s), regularly
publish information on default rate and loss given default, or internal
historical information and calculate based on current observable data
and forward looking general economic information after adjusting
historical data.

The Exposure at default is measured by amortized cost of financial
asset.

The estimation techniques or material assumptions made by BOT to
assess expected credit losses have no significant changes during the
year.

2. Forward looking information considerations

BOT takes forward looking information into account when judging
whether the credit risk of a debt instrument has increased significantly
since its initial recognition, and when the expected credit loss is
measured.

a.  Credit business (including loan commitments and financial
deposit)

BOT identify credit risks and factors of expected credit loss (i.e.
GDP, economic growth rate, price index, interest rate, and
unemployment rate) using historical data. Simultaneously, the
Bank and subsidiary connnect these factors or Monitoring
Indicators with each loan products in order to adjust PD in the
coming year and make expected credit loss reflect forward
looking information.
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d)

b.  Debt investments and placement with central bank and call loans
to banks

BOT evaluates the expected credit loss based on the external
rating outlook or observation at the reporting date. If any of an
issuer’s credit rating granted by Moody’s, S&P, Fitch, or Taiwan
Rating is “ Negative” or “-” , the issuer will be determined as
negative outlook or negative observation.

i.  When the issuer’ s credit rating outlook is *“ Negative” or
credit rating observation is “-?, the BOT uses the average of
the long-term PD and one level reducted PD.

ii.  Otherwise, the PD will remain unchanged.

Management of maximum exposure to credit risk and excessive risk concentration

)

iii)

In accordance with the Banking Law, there is a credit limitation management
for the Company's and subsidiaries' person in charge, employees, and any
interested party. In respect to credit intensity, BOT provides credit and
investment quota rules for the same enterprise, and industry. BOT also limits
and manages the credit amount for enterprises, groups and every industry.

BOT’ s Treasury Department, OBU, and foreign branches provide different
credit amount according to external credit evaluation and rankings when
having a transaction in the currency market or capital market, foreign
exchange, new financial instruments transactions and negotiable security
transactions.

To spread the country risks, BOT allocates different credit amount, based on
the ranking of the countries in "Euromoney”, to the Financing Department,
OBU, and foreign branches. The covered businesses are loan assets,
transaction assets (i.e. due and call loans, investment securities, derivatives,
and foreign exchanges).

Policies of credit risk deduction

)

Collateral

BOT has established policy and procedures to mitigate credit risk. Among
them, one of the most common ways, is to demand for collateral. In terms of
collateral management and valuation, BOT established policies governing the
scope of collateral and related procedures to secure debts. Moreover, BOT
also requires the provisions that secure debts and collateral should be
contained within a credit agreement to reduce credit risk by clearly defining
the amounts BOT can cut and the grace periods the banks can offer or even
requesting for a prepayment.
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iii)

Non-credit businesses are not required to collect collateral, depending on the
nature of the financial instruments. Only asset backed securities and other
similar financial instruments are required to pledge an asset pool of financial
instruments as collateral.

Considering both credit control and business expansion, BOT shall request
collaterals or guarantees to decrease the credit risk. The permitted collaterals
and guarantees included mortgages on real estate or properties (i.e., land,
building, machinery, car, ship, aircraft, etc.), pledges of securities (i.e.,
certificates of deposit; various bonds, stocks) or other rights, guaranices
provided by the government agencies, banks, or credit guarantee institutions
authorized by the government, and any other guarantees or collaterals
approved by the Bank and its subsidiary.

Master netting agreement

BOT’ s transactions are usually settled individually without bundling or
netting with any other transactions. However, BOT also enters info netting
agreements or chooses 1o settle net and terminates the deal if the counterparty
is in default.

Other credits enhancement

BOT’s credit contract contains the term that BOTs are entitled to offset the
obligation by claiming the deposits of the borrower who are in default to
mitigate credit risk.

f}  The maximum credit exposure to the credit risk of financial assets (without
considering the allowance for bad debt, collaterals and guarantees)

i)

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of maximum Credit risk
exposure to the credit risk displayed by credit rating are as follows:

Dhiscounts and loans
December 31, 2019

Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased

Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets —
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total

Credit rating

Low 3 930,791,741 17,869 155,942 - 930,965,552

Medium 960,430,171 54,963,853 2,371,916 - 1,017,765,940

High 26,639,778 25.449,744 5,749,253 - 61,838,775

Others 693.302.928 592.129 16.819.383 - 710.714.440
Gross carrying amount 2,611,164,618 85,023,595 25,096,494 - 2,721,284,707
Allowance for bad debts {21,113,435) (1,606,276} (7,150,936) - (29,870,647)
Impaitment recognized in (15,272,836)

accordance with the

Regulations Governing the

Procedures for Instinitions to

Evaluate Assets and Deal

with Nonperforming /

Nonaccrual Loans
Total S 2,590,051,183 83,417,319 17,945,558 - 2,676,141,224
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Discounts and loans

December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12month ECLs _ impsired  _ impaired  _ impaired =~ Total
Credit rating
Law § 852843775 13,694 172,377 - 853,029,846
Medium 908,380,450 32,983,797 2,178,188 - 943,542,435
High 34,148,546 23,860,376 2,377,382 - 60,386,304
Others 720.769.597 566.568 18.120.028 - 739.456,193
Gross carrying amount 2,516,142,368 57,424,435 22,847,975 - 2,596,414,778
Allowance for bad debts (20,114,026) {(1.805.624) (4,887,531) - (26,807.181)
Impairment recognized in (12,580,303)
accordance with the
Regulations Govemning the
Procedures for Institutions to
Evaluate Assets and Deal
with Nonperforming /
Nonacerual Loans
Total $ 2.496,028.342 55.618.811 17,960,444 - 2.557.027,294
Debt instruments measured at fair value throngh other comprehensive income
December 31, 2019
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—mnot ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impatred impaired impaired Total
Credit rating
Aaa~Baa3 $ 913,067,917 - - - 913,067,917
Bal-Ba3 2.821.595 302.383 - - 3.123.980
Gross camying amount 915,889,512 302,385 - - 916,191,897
Allowance for impairment (80,477) (8.801) - - (89.278)
Valuation adjustunent - - - - 1.602.351
Total S 915,509,035 293,584 - - 917,704,970
Delt instruments measured at fair value through ether comprehensive income
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of eriginated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs~— assets—
12 month ECLs ienpaired impaired itnpaired Total
Credit rating
Ana~Baa3 $ 1,036,587.799 - - - 1,036,587,799
Bal~Ra3 2.595.246 1.092.208 - - 3.691.454
Gross carrying amount 1,039,187,045 1,092,208 - - 1,040,279,253
Aflowance for impainnent (76,773) (6,§72) - - (82,945)
Valuation adjustment 731461 - - - 731461
Total s 1,039.841,733 1,086,036 - - 1,040,927,769
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Debt instruments measured at amortized cost

129

December 31, 2019
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets —
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
Credit rating
Aaa~Baa3 § 159,586,690 - - - 159,586,690
Bal~Ba3 17.663.192 - - - 17.663.192
Gross cartying amount 177,249,882 - - - 177,249,382
Accumlated impainment (43.107) - - - (43.107)
Total 5 177,206,715 - - - 177,206,775
Debt instruments measured at amortized cost
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
Credit rating
Aana~Baa3 $ 156,881,045 - - - 156,881,045
Bal~Ba3 10.993.183 - - - 10,993,183
Gross carrying amount 167,874,228 - - - 167,874,228
Accumulated impaiment (49.336) - - - {49.536})
Toal 5 167.824.692 - - - 167.824.692

Letier of Credit Receivables and Guarantee for Trade Receivalbles

December 31, 2019

Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased

Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Tatal

Credit rating

Low s 56,314,438 2345 - - 56.316.783

Medium 59.114,017 2.592.907 650,649 - 62,357,573

High 91,214 136.774 5,800 - 233,788

Others 6178217 350.944 29.352 - $.558.513
Gross carrying amount 121,697,886 3,082,970 685,801 - 125,466,657
Allowance for bad (358.951) (11.252) (99.529) - {469,732)

debis(Guarantee reserve and

other reserve)
tmpamment recognized in {861,766)

accordance with the

Regulations Governing the

Procedures for Institutions

to Evaluate Assets and Deal

with Nonperforming /

Nonaccrual Loans
Total 5 121.338,935 3.071,71% 586,272 - 124,135,159
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Letter of Credit Receivables and Guarantee for Trade Receivables

December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12month ECLs _ impaired _ _ impaired  __ impaired Total
Credit rating
Low § 60,379,626 217,144 709 - 60,597,479
Medium 45,743 181 1,243,038 296,427 - 41,282,646
High 188,282 567,393 130,011 - 885,686
Others 4.982.111 - 20,599 - 5.011.710
Gross carrying amount 111,293,200 2,027,575 456,746 - 113,777,521
Allowance for bad (375,494) (33,540} (153,403) - (562,437)
debts(Guarentee reserve and
other reserve)
Impairment recognized in (718,039
aceordance with the
Regulations Governing the
Procedures for Institutions
to Evaluate Assets and Deal
with Nenperforming /
Nonacerual Loans
Total $ 110,917,706 1.994.035 303,343 - 112,497,045
Loan Commitments
December 31, 2019
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets —
12 monih ECls impaired impaired impaired Total
Credit rating
Low 5 2,574,360 - - - 2,574,360
Others 420.467.884 227.556 482 - 420.695.922
Gross carrying amount 4235.042,244 227,556 482 - 423,270,282
Allowance for bad debts (Loan (17,118} (1,817) (289) - (19.224)
COTNINIBTIENLS reserve)
Total S 423,025,126 225,739 193 - 423,251,058
Loan Commitments
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets —
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
Credit rating
Low 3 2,205,098 98,762 63 - 2,303,923
Medium - 140,328 37 - 140,699
High 33,145 - - - 53,145
Others 412.585.699 - - - 412.585.699
Gross carrying amount 414,843,942 239,090 434 - 415,083,466
Allowance for bad debts (Loan {13,309} (2,067) (236) - (15,612)
commitments reserve)
Total §_ 414,830,633 137,023 198 - 415,067,854
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Accounts Receivables{(including other financial assets)

December 31, 2019
Credit
impairments
of priginated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Taotal
Credit rating
Aza~Baa3 S 7946716 . . - 7,946,716
Bal~Caal 117,303 4,857 91 - 122,251
Others 82.457.816 395.308 170.063 - 83,023.187
Gross carrying amount (Note 90,521,835 400,165 170,154 - 91,092,154
n
Allowance for bad debts (Note (33,806} (9.177) (79.941) - (122,924)
2
Impairment recognized in (56,358)
accordance with the
Regulations Governing the
Procedures for Institutions
ta Evaluate Assets and Deal
with Nonperforming /
Nenacerual Loans

Total S 90,488,029 390,988 90.213 - 90,912,872

Note 1: The gross carrying amount of the table was not incleded BOT’ s restrictive deposit 319,380 thousand and
Department of Government Employees’ Insurance’ s accounts receivable 57,736,495 thousand evaluated by
simplification methad.

Note 2: The allowance for bad debts of the table were not included BOT” s accumulated impainnent recognized in
restrictive deposit $10 thousand and Department of Government Emplayees’ Insurance’s allowance for impairment
$135 thousand evaluated by simplification method.

Accounts Receivables(including other financial assets)
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of griginated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new finaneial
ECLs—not ECLs— ASSCLS —
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
Credit rating
Aaa~Baal 5 8,827,396 - - - 8,827,396
Bal-Caal 94.231 13,890 - - 110,121
Others 88.321.178 823,467 109,727 - §9.254.372
Gross carrying ameunt (Note 97,242,805 839,357 109,727 - 98,191,889
1}
Allowance for bad debts (Note (69.619) (12,152) (49.008) - (130,779)
2)
Impairment recogmized in (48,779)
accordance with the
Regulations Governing the
Precedures for Institutions
to Evaluate Assets and Deal
with Nonperforming /
Nonacerzl Loans
Total s 97,173,186 827,205 60,719 - 98.012,331

Note I: The pross canying amount of the table was not included BOT' s restrictive depasit $19,469 thousand and
Depastment of Government Emplayees’ Insurance’ s accounts receivable $7,283,748 thousand evaluated by

simplification methed,

Note 2: ‘The allowance for bad debis of the table were not incladed BOT s accumulated impairment recognized in

restrictive deposit $11 thousand and Departinent of Governmi

$1,022 thousand evaluated by simplification method.

ent Employees’ Insurance’s allowance for impairment
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ii)  The assets in the balance sheet and off-balance sheet items held as collateral,
master netting arrangement and other credit enhancements related
information on the financial impact the maximum amount of the violence risk
in credit risk shows in the following table:

General
agreement of Enhancement
net amount of other

December 31, 2019 Collateral settlement credits Total
In balance sheet:
Receivables

Others $ 1,195 171 3,945 5,311
Loans and discounts 1,450,838 - 1,270,447 2.721,285
Financial assets measured at

fair value through profit or
loss

Others 3,328 - - 3,328
Off-balance sheet
Irrevocable loan commitments 262 - 423,008 423,270
Standby letters of credit 1,754 - 37,826 39.580
Financial guarantees 7.640 - 78.247 85.887
Total 8 1.465,017 171 1,813,473 3,278.661

General
agrecment of Enhancement
nef amount of other

December 31, 2018 Collateral settlement credits Total
In balance sheet:
Receivables

Others $ 1,284 379 2,765 4,428
Loans and discounts 1.342,677 - 1,253.738 2.396.415
Financial assets measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Others 112 - - 112
Off-balance sheel
Irrevocable loan commitments - - 415,083 415,083
Standby letters of credit 1.650 - 25026 26,676
Financial guarantees 7.581 - 79.520 87.101
Total $ 1,353,304 379 1,776,132 3.129.815

The Management believes that the reason why the BOT can continuously
manage and minimize the exposure of credit risk to off balance sheet items is
because a stricter review process is adopted, and cases are reviewed regularly
in subsequent periods
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g

iii)

BOT closely observes the value of collateral for financial instruments, and
considers the allowance for impairment of credit-impaired financial assets.
Information about credit-impaired financial assets and the value of collateral
which may decrease potential loss is shown below:

December 31, 2019
Exposure
amount
Gross carrying  Allowance for  (Amortized Fair value of
amount impairment cost) collateral

Impaired financial

assets:
Receivables

Credit card business § 5,999 4,787 1,212 -

Others 164,153 75,154 89,001 9,699
Loans and discounts 25.096.494 7.150.936 17.945.558 9.182.561
Total amount of $ 25,266,648 7,230,877 18,035,771 9,192,260

impaired financial

assets

Deecember 31, 2018

Exposure
amount
Gross carrying  Allowance for  (Amortized Fair value of
amount impairment cost) colfateral

Impaired financial

assets:
Receivables

Credit card business § 5.238 4,122 1.116 -

Others 104,489 44 886 59,603 -
Loans and discounts 22.847.973 4.887.531 17.960.444 9.291.496
Total amount of §_ 22,957,702 4,936,539 18,021.163 9,291,496

impaired financial

assets

Financial assets not applicable for rules of impairment:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Financial assets measured fair value
through profit or loss
Debt instruments $ 142,285,938 144,477,290
Derivatives 10,699,762 6,404,769

Concentration of credit risk

When the transaction of financial instruments is concentrated in a single industry or
region, the ability to oblige the contract would be impacted by similar factors,
thereby, causing concentration of credit risk.

(Continued)
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The credit risk of BOT is derived from credit, placement with banks, call loans to
banks, security investments and so on. Disclosures of concentration of credit risk
by industries, regions and collaterals were as follows:

i)  Industry
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Book Value Book Value
Industry type (Note 1) Y% {Note 2) Yo
Finance and insurance 1,274,240 30.83 % 1,396,688 33.84 %
Individuals 957,805 2317 % 369,958 21.08 %
Manufacturing 389,801 943 % 391,096 948 %
Government agencies 699,735 16.93 % 710,576 1722 %
Shipping, warehousing and 167,643 406 % 151,845 3.68 %
communications
Electricity and gas supply 124,155 3.00% 107,084 25% %
Others 519.823 12,58 % 459.570 12.11 %
Total $ 4,133,202 100.00 % 4,126,817 100.00 %

Note 1; December 31, 2019

(1) The carrying amounts include loans ($2,721,285 million), call Joans to banks, overdraft of banks and
placement with banks ($220,647 million), security investments ($1,191,270 million} and so on.
Loans refer to discounts, overdrafis, government overdrafis, secured overdrafts, short-term loans,
short-term secured loans, medium-term loans, medium-term secured loans, long-term Joans, long-term
secured loans, import bill advance and nonperforming loans ($3,154 million). Security investments
include bonds and stocks. Bonds are measured al fair value. However the bonds classified as held-to-
maturity financial assets or bond investments in non-active market are carried at cost. Equity
investments are measure at fair value but those classified as cost of long-term equity mvestments
under the equity method and financial assets cacried at cost are measured at cost.

(2) This table excluded the Depariment of Govemnment Employees Insurance and the subsidiary,
BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers.

Note 2: December 31,2018

(1) The carrying amounts include loans ($2,596.415 million), call loans to banks, overdraft of banks and
placement with banks ($210,945 million), security invesiments {$1,319.457 million) and so on.
Loans refer to discounis, overdrafts, government overdrafis, secured overdrafts, short-lenm loans,
short-term secured loans, medium-term loans, medium-term secured loans, long-term loans, fong-term
secured loans, import bill advance and nonperforming loans {$4,221 million). Security investments
include bonds and stocks. Bonds are measured at fair value, However the bonds classified as held-to-
maturity financial assets or bond investments in non-active market are carried at cost. Equity
investments are measure at fair value but those classified as cost of long-term equity investmenis
under the equity method and financial assets carried at cost are measured at cost.

(2) This table excluded the Department of Govemment Employees Insurance and the subsidiary,
BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers,

iiy Region

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Book Value Book
Areas type (Note 1) %o Value{Note 2) %
Domestic $ 3,648,596 88.28 % 3,681,225 89.20 %
Foreign 484,606 11.72 % 445,592 10.80 %
Total $ 4,133,202 100.00 % 4,126.817 100.00 %

{Continued)
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Note 1: December 31,2019

(1) The carrying amounts include loans ($2,721,285 million), call loans to banks, overdraft of banks and
placement with banks ($220,647 millicn), security investments ($1,191,270 million) and so on.
Loans refer to discounts, overdrafis, govemnment overdrafis, secured overdrafts, short-term loans,
short-term secured loans, medium-term loans, medium-term secured loans, long-term loans, long-term
secured loans, import bill advance and nonperforming loans {$3,154 million). Security investmenis
include bonds and stocks, Bonds are measured at fair value. However the bonds classified as held-10-
maturity financial assets or bond invesiments in non-active market are carried at cost. Equity
investments are measure at fair value but those classified as cost of long-term equity investments
under the equity method and financial assets carried at cost are measured at cost.

(2) This table excluded the Department of Govemment Employees Insurance and the subsidiary,
BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers.

Note 2: December 31, 2018

(1) The carrying amounts include loans ($2,5%6,415 million), call loans 1o banks, overdraft of banks and
placement with banks ($210,945 million), security investments ($1,319,457 million) and so on.
Loans refer to discounts, overdrafts, government overdrafts, secured overdrafts, shori-term loans,
short-term secured loans, medium-term loans, medium-term secured loans, long-term loans, long-term
secured loans, import bill advance and nonperforming loans ($4,221 million}. Security investments
include bonds and stocks. Bonds are measured at fair value. However the bonds classified as held-to-
maturity financial assets or bond investments in non-active market are carried at cost. Equity
investments are measure at fair value but those classified as cost of long-term equity investments
under the equity method and financtal assets carried at cost are measured at cost,

(2) This table excluded the Department of Govemment Employees Insurance and the subsidiary,
BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers.

iiiy Collateral

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Book Value Book Value

Name of collateral (Note 1) Y% {Note I) %
Non-secured bonds $ 1,270,447 46.69 % 1,253,738 48.29 %
Secured bonds 1,450,838 5331 % 1,342,677 5.7 %
Guarantee 140,240 315 % 141,408 544 %
Securities 74,881 2713 % 80,505 330 %
Real estate 1,156,442 42.50 % 1,045,746 40.28 %
Chattel 79,163 291 % 74,905 288 %
Valuables 112 - % 113 0.01 %
Total by 2,721,285 100.00 % 2.596.415 100.00 %

Note I: The carrying amounts only contain loans which refer to discounts, overdrafts, government overdrafis,
secured overdrafts, short-term loans, short-termt secured loans, medium-term loans, medium-term secured
loans, long-term loans, long-term secured loans, import bill advance and non-performing loans ($3,154
million at December 31, 2019; $4,221 million at December 31, 2018).

Note 2: This table excluded the Department of Govemment Employees Insurance and the subsidiary, BankTaiwan

Insurance Brokers.

(Continued)



(penunuo))

£8P EPTSE SESTLTSI L¥9°018'6T - 96 05T'L LT 900 [ SEPEIN1T [ aauejeq Suipuzy
L6T9BEE L6T98E'E - (©68°rSE) 965°LY LGPETL'E SIUBLUDACIU 10 puu sTusyoxs uflaio,
S65'L6L') §65'L6L"] - S65°L6L) - - IO UDRLIM SKJAp PR J0 1040001 21 |
(gez's1e) (8ETSIED) - (BeL'51€°0) - - 10 unILA SI99P prg

SULO"[ [WudnuoN / Furopeduan
LI [23(] PUL $1355Y SIUNUAT O SUOLILSUL JOf
SIINPAZOI ALY FUILLIBAOLY SUOITIRENRY DU YN

£E6°269°C EES'T6YT - - - - - DOUEMICA0E 1} PAZALTEO JIUAI I JuouLedur)
29E° 148 88E°I¥8'E - 1¥F'66¥ PEE'16 £19'0§T'¢ 10858 [e1suRuL] sau pasesand Jo paicuiBug
pouad syr Sump
(0L5°9¥9'7) (959197} - 750'90#°1 (0L0'99) (865'986°¢) P2t B0o0ID] DD DATI[ JUA[) SIISSI [HITURLL] —
- - - - (g0g*eo1) (zze'rEe) $TRLER SDS50| JIPRID PHOAANS YJUOUIZ | 01 J3JS1R1) —
- - - 128'72FT (eLg'gen) (BY7'r9T'D) pasredu PP2ID 101 1) SR OF J3JStBs] —
= - - (£95'88) 1857052 (oze'191) §9S50[ 1PaID Ppajoadxa o)l 03 JaySuLt) —

oo o
s& PozZIuF0a01 SILIULISUE |RIuLU L} O} dUp SoFuLyD

PBY'L3E'6GE £0£°085°2! 181°L08'92 - 1€5'2L88' ¥29'$08"1 HTOFIEOT $ oouejee Susudag
T6J0 . SUK0T [ENIIDY 6 el s (s3ossw [GE T (possesst | ss puom g
snop/Bunaaspadooy DUBPIOIIE [EPuBUn {eRusuy Lpanyogos)
Y3IAL B E ul pa.LnsEau pasedwippasn  paatpduny gpasd  SOY AP
PUE SISy DIBO[EAY S2IUBAD||B Wi pajBudLIo 40
0) sUORMISH[ S50 21 ], A0 pasuyzand) pasuyaand jou)
A0F SAUNPITOL] SIOF sy FIDH Awh
P FunLzaoes
SuonuNEIY,,

1144 BIUBPAGIIL W
paziudodds soudaappp
Judusaedwy

GI0T

:SMO[]0} SE alom SUBO[ PUB
SJUNOJSIP JO 20UBMO|[® $SO] 10f saouefeq Suipus pue Suruwidaq syp JO SUOHRI[ISUODAI S ‘G107 PUR 610T ‘€ JoquIaoaq Jo sy 1

SUBO| PUE SJUNOJSIP JO 9ouemo|[e sso] ul saBuey) (i

aoueMO[|E $50] Ul saBuey)y LO4

SIUIUIBYE)S [CIDUBLL] PIICPI[OSTO)) Y] 0 SIJON]
SHIVIAISANS SII ANV "ALT “0D ONIATOH TVIONVNIA NYAIV.L

9¢l



(panunuo))

s aauejey Suipug

SIAUDAGULIPE pue 98uetaxs a0,
L0 ualim s1qap peg jo Ki13a0oa1 ag
110 uskium 5107 peg
suBoT erudIeuoN / Tunmopxiion
(LA Juag] pue 19SSy MEN[RAT] O} suonminsu] ._0.*
$3UNPRGIE] M|} BuNLLA0L) SuonLEnadY] () s
SOULPIODOE W PAZIITOD0E 2OURIIYIIP TuLKEdt]

SIEFE [L 1B Mou pastyamd 1o pajeiug

potiad a1y Fuunp
PozItTo0Aap UDBQ DAL JR|) SIOSSE [HIOWTUN] ~

SOS50] HPHD PAIDHIXD (IUOUIZ] 01 BISHRE) —
pasrediing JIpass 100 T SN I OF aysuv] —
$3550] 1P pajadys 2una)| O J5jsuny) —

Auuadon 18
5¢ PazZiuS00at SIIILLISIL [uaueuLy o) onp sofuey)

< ooueeq Futnndog

PBHLEE'GE foc0ss Tl 1817L0877 - I£5°L88'F PIHE08] 9TOPIIM0T
91579621 915'96L™1 - 659 PLEE GSE'EGL (z0s'1L6°1)
PEV 166 PEV P66 - PEP'PG6 - -
(ozr'911'7) OZ1'911'7) - (062'199'1) - (o£g'vst)
£LG'SIG'E ELE'SIEE - - - - -
£88°€89' $88'c89'c - 9L2'601'T GEE'SST GLTSIN'E
(211°c06'E) (811'¢06'E) - {L62'c69'C) (2612} (gze'eon)
- - - {661'LL) (16Z'zs+'T) 06t'6Z8'T
- - - 9p5°96 (69L'p2L) (LLe1ed
- - - {op0'+81) LS6'PHE (116'091)
PI6'CIO'EE 0€E'$99'8 p8515EPT - Sb'STLE LIS'LEEE 609'S8T°LY
TR T JTLERFS 6 Sl YA [s19ss86 [GEH (passasse S0 Yo 7]
suop/dunuagpraducy 20uEpIOIIT JuuBUY [LIBLILAT T A1aa129)[02)
[THEN R ] Ul paanseawu ponedwr upssy  paanwdwar Jipaas S0 A
pug 135Sy JEnjEAg SI0UEMO||B paeuidue payeusie 1o
0) suopymsy| sso]ay ) A0 passydand) pasgyarnd jou)
40§ SATPII0AJ STOT WU STDF AN
ay) Sugsanen
suonysnday,,
NLAY DIUL LIOIIE UL
PIZIUZ032 3UILIFJIP
yudtaged g
RI07

LEL

SYUQHIIE)S [BIMUBUL PAEPI[OSNO) A} 0F SIJON

SHRIVIAISAAS SLI ANV "dLT “0D ONIQTOH TVIONVNIA NVAAIV.L



(ponunuo))

(y saueeq Suipuy

SJUBLLDADW 1DLI()

uopdoosaap
01 Suipea| J0U SIUBLPUSLIR D[} ULIG] S9TuRyD

10 ushim sigop peg

SUBQ|
puB SJUNOASIP Msu poseyamd 10 poeuldNg

pouad a1y Sunnp poziuoooisp
153G SATY JLL) SIOSST [RoURUL] —

$0850] NPOIo Pojaodxo YIUOWZ | OF JIJSURL], -
pastedun
NPDID JoU T SN 0 ISuel] —
S0S50] WP240 PaI2adXa JwIg)l| 0] JsuRl] —
3 sauejeq SujumSag

LOLYSTITL'T - F6r'960°5T S657€C0°S8 S19POI'119°T
{(p83°0£1°D) - 91T 191’ 96£°9T 96¥31<°L)
(g28'¢) - (£78°¢) - -
(geeicie’e) - (8gTSIEE) - -

0LT6OE 0PE"T - TGI°010°] 6557110 61CCRI'EEE"]
(96£°686°60T°1) - (L1699} {0re'8Le"8D) (T8 IFF°FLIT)

- - (981°2€9) CILG'3SHFT) LET'160°€1
- - S6¥STEL (8£8°299°1) (L59°L59°6)
- - (£96°L29) F$8°P9F°99 (1689859
8LLYPIF965T - SL6'LPRTT SEPPTYLS 0L TV 1S T
12301, (sy9558 [BIOUEUY (spossu [vIdUELY (poassasse SO Yuocw 7|
paatedun patredun ypasd A[2AD99]]0)
1pasd pasuidLio peuisiioe 1o ST AU
1o paseydand) paseyand Jou)
SO W STOH WP
610¢

8¢l

1SMO[[0] SE 2JoA SUBO| pUR SJUNODSIP Jo sjunowe SulALeD 3y) *§{ (T PUB 60T '| £ 19quada(] JO SV

SJUIUIDI B} [BIDUBULY PIIEPIOSUO) ) 0) SNON
SHMVIAISAAS SLI ANV "ALT*0D ONIATOH TYIDNVNIA NVAIV.L



(psnunuo))

SLLPIF'96S'T - SL6'LPS'TT SEFPIF LS S9ETFITOIST $ asourjeq Suipuy
(€1171L8°1) - £8P 9199 {081°86¢) (0168471, SJUBLLRAOW IO

uonug02012p
601 - 601 - - 0] Suiped] 10U SJUAWPUSE I W0 seTuey)y
(0z19117) - (SEL'760°D) - (s8c12) JJO uarIAs 590D pEY

SuBQ[
SP8°8LT'C0T T - 01L'SE6' Y 95H ITHG 6L TT6061° PUE SJUN03SIP M3U PoseydInd 10 PAEUIBLIO

pousd oy) Suunp paziudoasssp
(810°8ST°€Z6) - (895°€60°8) (FpS0E1°1E) (9£0°7£0°Y88) 22 DATL 1BU} $19SST [EIOULUL] —
- - (608°0L8) (szz6¥8cr1) PEOOTE PP S3SS0} 1LP3JD POIFOUXD YIUOWZ | 0) 2SI ), —
paijedun

- - SOV 6EE’S (#0L°585°T) (oL'esL’D UPaID 10U DT MURYY ) Lsuel) —

- " (906°LLL) 0£9°SLESE (bTL LGS PE) §2SS0[ JIP210 PAYAUXD WYY 0 1YY SURIL —
SOT°[80°RIET - 981°c6¥°L1 T00°165°061 L16'966°601°C $ aaweeq Furnmsag

[e1og (syasse B1dURBUY (syesse [eIdULYUY {passasse STOA Puow 7|
paagdun paaredwn ppaad £panaa)j09)
apasd pnewmdiie pojeuidiio a0 STOH APy
10 paseyaind) paseyaand jou)
STTOH dwugapl| SO gy
8102

6¢l

SIUIWI)R)G [RIIURUL] PAIBPI[OSUO]) ) 0} SIJON
SANVIAISAAS SLI ANV AL “0D ONIATOH TVIDNVNIA NVAIV.L



{(penunuo)d)

$ aoueeq Suipuy

suasAoU 19130 pue a3uetoxs uga10,
s)osse [eloueul aadu paseyoind o pawmBug

potad a1y Sunnp peziudolnp
UDI( 2ALL} JBU} SIISSE [UIouBUL —
$9SS0[ J1p212 paraodxa SUIND)L| 0] 19)SUBLy, —
BuiumBag e se
pazIuS0001 SJUAUNASYY [BIoUBEY 0] anp saBuey)
$ soueleq Suluudag

8L7T°68 8LT6B - - 108°8 LLF 08
91c's 9T1E ¢ - - 6618 (€387
§06°9T §06°9T - - - £06°9T
(g88°c) (888°52) - - (ze1°9) (g1L°61)
- - - - 709 (zo9)
SF6°T8 Sr6'Te - - TLI'9 £LL9L
[eloL, 6 SUAI s (sjosse {s10s5€ R Y] S0
IUBPLOIVE [eruBIy [erduvuly RITER) g | uows 7
ul PRANSEIL paareduwn paareduy
$PUBAMO|[E PR Jipa1d
$§0] 24 ], pnewsuo paewmsito
a0 paseyaand) a0 paseypand
104 jou) s
awnjajiy awiapT1
6107

:SMO[|O] SB 219/ SUIODU] SAISUBY2dWOD JSIO0 SN0 aN[RA JiR) 12 PAINSESW SIUSUNISUL
1q9p JO 9ouUBMO[[R SSO| J0j soouefeq Surpue pue Sutuui3aq oyl JO SUOHRI[IOUOAI Y} ‘1 0Z PUB 6107 ‘1 19qWL03J JO SY

3UI05U] 2AISUSY1dWOo JAYI0 YSNOJI) aN[BA JIej Je PAINSESW SJUALUNASUL 1P JO SDUBMO[[B SSO| Ul SAZUBLD

SIUIUID)E)S [BIDUBULY PAIRPIIOSUC)) 3Y) 03 §3J0N

SARIVIAISANS SLI ANV "dLT “0D ONIATOH TVIDONVNIA NVAIVL

orl



(penunuo))

SP6'T8 Sr6'Z8 - - (72K ELLOL
(£8L) (L8L} - - vie (ort)
665°0T 66507 - - - 665°0T
(¢8L°S1) (¢82°51) - - - (s8L's1)
- - - - 868°c {gcg"c)
B168L $16'8L - . - 216'8L
¥l 6 SUAT ypa (s10558 (s10858 STOH 104
DUBPI0IDE [[HRITLL [EHRIINTS awap pucw 7]
ur PaLNSBILU praedung paaedun
SAIUBAO|[B npaad upaLd
$50] 94, pHeuBlio paemsiio
Ao paseyaand) o paseydand
SO0 ou) STTOHE
wgpalry g

vl

810T

SIUD I R]S [RIDUBLL POIBPI[OSTO)) Y} 0} SAHON
SATIVIAISANS SLI ANV "dLT “0D ONIATOH TVIONVNIA NVMIV.L

asue|eq Bulpug

sIuaWIBAOW JoY10 pue oFueloxs udaro]
$)OSSE JEIouBUl] mau paseyoind Jo paewSuey

powad oy} Sunnp paziugosalop
HO0( JABL JB1]] $]9SST [EIDUBUL] —

SSS0] JIPD10 pojoodxo olulja)I] 03 JQJSURL],

:Swumrgoq je se

pazitdooal suouInnsuL [RIdueUL) o) anp saSuel

aoueyzg SuruutBag



(penunuo))

£5CGLTOPO'L - - B0TTG01 CrO'LBI'6E0'T S
(66V°LOL) - - 91$SS (S107¢5L)
TH6PLSLS - - - TI0GPL CLS
(615°166°076) - - - {(615166°076)
- - - T69°9£0°1 (z69%9c0°1)
657°672'980°1 - - - 657°67T'080°1 §
6307, (Sy0sse [eroUBLY (s1985E |ELdUCLYY SO0l ALY ST giuow 7
paaedu paaredur 3paad
AP pHBWELIO paeudio 10
Ao paseyaand) paseyaand jou)
STOH 2wy ST QW
8107
LGB 161°916 - - G8ET0E TISG88'SI6 g
(LSEP8ST) - - (6LTC) (RLO6LST)
L19 PP TSL - - - L19'POF'TSL
(019°L96°pL8) - - (80Z°260°D) (R0¥°GLR°ELR)
- - - $99°L0€ {(#99°L0¢)
£STGLTOFO T - - $0T°T60°1 SPO'LSIGEOT 8
|B10], (syossu jeroUBULY (s1085® [EIdUEBUY $D3 AP D7 puonr

patiedun

npoad paewsuio

paatediur 1paad
paewmdLo a0

A0 paseraand) pasetppand jou)
$IDF Iyl STOH 2wy
6107

aoue[eq Suipuy
SIUDWRAOLL I
S)0SSE |RIOULUL) AU paseyaind 1o pojRuiduQ
potiad o1y Suunp pszudooaisp
US0( DABI] JBLf) S)ISSE [BLOUBLL,] —
$8550] J1Ppato p2j2adxa awna)] 01 Jajsurl] —
aouejeq JuiuwBag

saue[eq Suipug
SIUDUIDAOW JDIO)
S19$SE [BIOUBLL] moll paseyo.md Jo paew3ng

powod o3 Supnp paziuZosaiap
105G DABL JEL)} SIASSE [RIIUBT] —

$9550] NP2 pojoadxa swnaLy 0) JSuel] —
ouejeq SuuuiBog

'SMO]|0J SE 212M SLON] dAISUSYIdwIODd

1910 YSNOIy} onjeA JIg] JB PAINSESW SJUSWNISUL 1QIp Jo sunowe Sulkied iy ‘G107 PuB 6107 ‘L€ 1equedsg JO SV

rl

$JUWRIELS [RIOURUL] PIJUPI[OSUO)) Y} 0F SAION
SARIVIAISANS SLL ANV "ALT “00 ONITTOH TYIDNVNIA NVAIVL



(penunuo))

LoT'Er LOT'EY - - - LOT'Er g aouejeq Burpuy
(ceee) (€€c7e) - - - (€e€0) SIHAWOAOW JB10 PUE 2FUEyIXa U110,
£0Z°0T £0Z°0Z - - - £0T07 $19SSE |RloUBUI mau paseyoind Jo parewiSlQ
powad a1 Supnp peziudosalap
(662°¢€T) {(667°cD) - - - (667°¢T) U226 AL JEL] SIOSSE [BIDURUL] —
9cst 6t 9LC 6l - - - 9LS 6 g sounjeq Buluurdag
[e10], 6 SUAT Ynat (spasse (8)asse Ll 190 STOH
MUEPLOIIE [ersueuy [ERuEu Iy yynow 71
ul pRANSEIW paarsdwy paJredug
saruBMo[|e npatd jpaId
$S0j Y|, paeuidnio pareudtio
Io paseyaand) 1o passyoand
1D 30u) IO
Ay RN
6107

:SAO[]O] S& 2JaM SO0 PIZILJOWE JB PAINSEI L SJUDITLISUL
19p JO 92UBMO[[e SSO[ Jo] seoue[eq Surpus pue Juluuideq oy} JO SUONBINIOUOAL U] ‘107 PUB 0T ‘I€ Joquiaoad Jo sV |

1502 PAZIMOWE J& P2INSEall SHUDLINISUL 1P JO aouemol[e ssof ut sauryD  (

S)UAUIR)E}S [BIDURUL] PIJEPI[OSUO) N[} 0] SAJON
SATIVIAISANS SLI ANV "ALT “0D ONIATOH TVIDNVYNIA NVAIVL

Erl



{(penunuo))

T88°GYT'LLE - - - TEEOPTLL) $ soue|eq Suipug
(6D 0LL) - - - (697°0LL) SjuatRAGUL IO
8P0°L96°LY - - - 2F0°L065LD S19SSE |BIDUTULY MmdU paseyoind Jo pareuidug
pouod ap Sutinp poziugoosolap
(576°078°LS) - - - (526'0T8°LS) U9d(] BAEY JEY) SIOSST [BIOUBUL] —
8TT'vL Y1 ) - - - BTT'PLYLOL g ooueleq Fuluuidag
1e10]." (Syosse [BouBUY  (51955% [¥1a0ENL) SOy WA SO Qiuow 7|
paatedun paaredun ypaad
npasd payemidio pa1BwS1i0 10
10 paseyaand) paseyarnd jou)
STOH Ny ST RUNIPTE
6107

:SMO[]OJ S 210M 1500 PAZIHOWE T8 PAINSEAL SJUSWNIISUL 3P JO sunotue uLued sy} ‘g1 07 PUe 6107 *1 € 19quada(] JO SY

9ES 6k 9€S 6k - - - 9E5 61 b soue[eq Surpuy
[CYAAA) [CTAS) - - - |zl SIUSWIDACL J2110 puk dFuetjoxa ugaiog
LYTLL LFTLL - - - LY $)asse [eloueulj sMau paseyalnd Jo pajewidug
pouad sy Butnp paziudossiop
(oL E1) (o0L€1) - - - {goL'cn) U23q ALY Jey) SJoSSE [Blautul] —
£eL'gY £TL'RY - - - £TLRY $ oouefuq Sumursog
€10 6 SUAT YA (519858 {syosse 104 504
2DUEPIOIIE |etdueuy [e1ouEul} ulilib) il | puow 71
ul paInsEI panedun paaedug
SO0UBMO[|B JpAId npatd
SS0] A3, pysuIBito pajeutdnio
40 pasepaand) 10 paseydand
104 10u) STDA
i 1 | aunayy

8107

SJUSWIA)R)S [eIdURNIY PI)EPI[OSTO) I} 0) SIION

SATIVIAISANS SLI ANV "GLT “0D ONITTOH TVIDNVNIA NVAIV.L

il



(penunuoD)

STTPLELYI - - - STTPLE LI $ ooue|eq Surpuy
8CCFLI - - - 8CS¥LI SJUIUWIAOL JBLIQ)
PEP 60T TS - - - PET 60K 1S 519858 [RlouRuUl] mou paseyond 10 peyeulsug
powad oy Surinp paziuoosiop
(6sT'orsIE) - - - (6SZ°0bS°1E) U034 DARL JRY) S]ISSE |BIOUBLL] —
SEP'9ER’LY] - - - SEPOE8 LY $ asuepeq JumuFog
B0 L (SI9SSE [BIDUEHI] (S)95SE [EUELY e LI BTG SO puour 7]

paaredun
Npa1d pAeusue
a0 paseyaand)
STOH AW

paaredun Jipaas
pyeuisio 1o

paseydand jou)

104 g

Skl

810T

SIUAUID)E]G [RIDURHL] PIJEPI[OSUO)) Y} ©F SAION

SARIVIAISANS SLI ANV "ALT “0D ONIATOH TYIDONVNIA NVAIVL



(panunuoD)

2GHIEET 591198 TEL'6OP - 6T5°66 Wl 156'85¢
662709 662709 - 3489 (6e6'1) (9279
LTL'EY] LTL'EY] - - - - -
0Z8°70Z 078'70T - 15711 698°C 001°881
(vz6ege) (vzgssed - (oo8'ecn) (go8°L) (ose1z)
- - - (6¥) (80+'s1} Lspsl
- - - - EL (£L)
9L 08T | 6£0°81L LEF'ZOE - £0F'ES L 0F§'eE POF'SLE E)
1810, SLEOT [ENI3D G Sl 4is [GEET] (siassu F1DW ANy S04 \putn Z|
vuop/Buiutaopoduon AUBI00DE [RuUBUY Jerausuy
NIAL (B Ul RaNsEIW paapdwy npaaz  paaedun ppaas
PUR S}as5y jenjuag SHUBAMD e payeuidrio payemdiLo a0
0} suonmIYsu] §50] ML A0 paseyzand) paseyaand jon)
A0f 53I0RII0AY FIDA AN ST AWBIPT
ap FuIulaA0Y
smonunBay
I DIUBPAOIIL M
PAZINZ 0208 DUIINNP
yuzwaedif
61017

9!

$

souw|en Supuz

F2MPR20L[ 1
IDUL0E

1LEDAOD SUOHENTDY A1) (s
poziuflooas a0udsaR P sauLedu)

S1assi2 [BlauLty sau paseemd Jo parewduQ

powad st fuunp
ﬂuN_:wGuQ-u_"u L1334 dael] e} 510850 _c_.u:rv_._._.h—.l

$0S50[ 1tpata pajoadxa puowig | 0 sajsuer) —
50550] Kpoalo palsadxa dlumayi] o) Jajsues] —

Auwundaq
se PazIuSa0s SIUSUMLISUL [$19uEN1) 0} 0Ny saFuy )

aoure(uq Furnndag

:SMO|[0] SB oIom (AISSAI IO PUE JAI9S3] 99)ueIenS) s2|qRAIS0] SPEI) JO) 3)LRIRNT pUR SO[GBAIZDAI 1IPAID
1O J2135] JO 9dUBMO[jE SSO] 10} Seoueeq Suipus pue Suruwidaq sy JO SUONEBI[IOUODAI 3U) ‘§10T PUB G0 ‘1€ JRqWRD3(] JO SV

JAISSAL IB[IO PUB SAISSAI 99jURIENT U) SaBuRYD

SIUAID)E]S [BIDUBUL] PAIEPIOSUO)) I 0] S3JON]
SHIAVIAISANS SLI ANV "ALT “0D ONIATOH TVIONVNII NVAIV.L

1

(a1



(panunuoe))

9LF'08T'1 6E0°81L LEP'TIS - €0P°ES1 0pS'EE

ror'sLE $ aaueieq Supug
(81808 {818°08) - g1 ol

{950°Z01) SIAMIDAGLY SO0 puw offuei)ax0 ufioio,]

SUB0T [eNIooEuaNy Suuuapadusn
1114 |EDE] puL SIASSY ENjeAT] 0) SUDIIINSU] 104
sampasosg s Buusaon suonedsy s s
788"18¢ 788'18€ - - - SOUTLICIDE UF FAZILT009) SoumZ 1P Kouu edu)

TLTHST LT'PS1 - l's rLS'9 9E5'TH1 S1s5T [ErouTuL man paseyand 1o pajeuifug
pewad ot Juunp
(esT'28p) {(e87'L8P) - (s86'25) (ose'z1) (816°12P} JPOZINBO00IDP 1934 2ABL B[} SIFSSE [BIOUTIL] —
) - - - (sze'ew $CE'LY $I550] HPALY PAoadNS (UCLIT ] 01 19JsueL] —
- " - £L8't - (£78'p) $3550] 1paun pajoadxs sumayn) o) sl —
- - - - ee'L (zeg'e) 52550] JTPoID PaISOCXD DLLAJ O JajSUBI] —
oo w
se —uuN_:wDuUh Sjuzumsuc [elaueuy olanp mum-:.:._U
£8H'TIE"] LET9EE 9TE'9LG - LBE'951 LLI'EL TOL'90L $ aauspeq BuuiBag
FETAN ~ SWBe [PUAD G SHdl Him (5335808 [GET SHd AUy 109 puows 71
vuopSunnxofiHiucN SINPIOIIE [LZEIHHITTY eruLuly
[THIS N Ul paAnsEIW paaedwg ppasd  pasedwg npasd
PUB SJISSY AENJEAT SURAO|[¥ pyeudo pajeuidpio o
0) suopmyysuy SSO[ 3, Je paseyand) paseipand jou)
L0j $2ATPII0L ] B folc ELITP RN | STDA A
) JuuRaon
StopeINSay,,

1PLAL DIUBPLOITE Ul
paz1aiodss a3udap
Juadtrsiedwy

gloz

SJURUIA)E)S [RIOUBUL] P3)BPI[OSHO)) 2Y) 0] $AJON
SARIVIAISENS SLI ANV "ALT 0D HONIATOH TVIDONVNIA NVAIV.L

Lrl



{penunuad)

LE9'99FSTI - 108°589 0LGT80E 988'L69°1TL $ saueeq Julpuy
(€95779¢) . - (P¥9°cce) {176'8) SJUDIDAOUE IO
sueo]
6EFGLLIIL - ShO'C0s 066°012 POFS00°1L pUE SIUN0asIp mou paselfaind Jo poiewIuQ
potiad oy Supnp paaudodalsp
(8£L°L99°68) - (6L 1LE) (FS6°0LS) (066°1TL'8S) uS3y DAL jRY) SIOSSR [BIOUBUL] —
- : - (r15°L) (£81°p5L) L6F19L $850[ P10 PR129UX yowE | 0} J3psuel],—
pasieduny
- - 21501 - g1e°s00) HPAD JOU T T WNBJI] O 9)SUBL] —
- - - 981°¢T5°2 {081°¢75T) $OSSO] 1P24o p210adxd 2Umay| 0y 13Jsunl | —
126 LLLETT - ObLOSH SLS'LT0'T 00TE6Z°111 $ osue|eq Juluuiiog
(€301, (s)osse [eldutlil (5)95SE [BUBUY G ROELEIg] SO \puout 7]
paedun poaedu 31paad :
Npald pajeurdLio paysurdio 10
4o paseyaand) paseyaand jou)
STOH W ST S
6102

:SMOJ[OJ SB 1M
SO[QEAIZ0D1 PR JOJ 93juBIend puE $9qRAI93] JIPRID JO I9)19] JO sjunowe Suldued 8y} ‘107 PuB 6107 ‘1€ 1quIadag Jo sy

SIUA D) )G [RIDUBUI] PIIEPI[OSUO)) dY} 0} SA)ON
SHIVIAISANS SLI ANV "ALT “0D ONIATOH TVIONVNIA NVAIV.L

8¥1



{penunuo))

$ oouejeq Sulpug

SIUSWACW IANIO

suBO|
pue sjunossip mat paseyand Jo pareudig

pousad auy Suunp paziugooasap
U294 DATY JBIf] SI9SSB [BIOUBUL] —
$9550] NpaIo pojaadxs Yuowg| o) Jafsuel], —
paneduy
1P2ID JoU 7 SN 0} LoJSURI], —
$9$SO[ 1Ip2a1n Paoadxo suilja)i] 0} JaJsuvl] —
$ soueieq Suluudag

TTSLLLELL - 9PLTOSP SISLT0T 00Z°€6Z V1L
910 TP - - G1+°8P8 (0087508}
965°959°¢S - 1ET°TPT 11L°09€ F19°€50°CS
(L£T°3LETS) - (9g0°161) (z91°798°D) (686'FTE0S)

- - - (£60°0TE‘9) L60°0TED

- - LESIST (cer'18) (ro1°001)

- - - $39°061°1 (39°951°1)
986°LSPOI1 - $90°FST 955608 990'801°701

1610] [GESA R {s)asse [gIdUBUL) R ELIE a1 SO puetn 7|

paarzdug

1Ppagd pajeusLio

Ao paseyaind)
STOH Uy

paaedw Hpaad
paEUISLIO S0

paseyadnd jou)

ST il

orl

8107

SHUDUID) )G [BIDURUY] PIIEPI[OSUO)) Y} 0) SIJON
SATAVIAISANS SLI ANV "ALT “0D ONIATOH TYIONVNIA NVAIVL



(ponunuoD)

¥ZT'6l pZT'61 - 68T L187T 8IT°L1 $ aguepeq Buipus
@11°6) @rre) - 26¢ e (TEL1n sjuatuaaoLl 1110 pue aBueyoxa udoIo,]
9L1'91 9L1°91 - 6LE I$Z°1 9pS Yyl Sjasst [21autul) Aau paselasnd 1o parewdug
pound oy) Suunp paziuBoosasop

{zsp'e) {zst'e) - (veL) (ceen) {c8e1) U90Q SABL] JET]) SIOSSE [BIOURUL —

- - - - (€zs‘D) $T6T $9850] MPIO Pojoadxs yuolug | 0) J9jsuer] —

- - - 01 (o) - S9850] UPAIY P0adxd ownR)I[ 0 JojsuBL], —

- “ - - St sr1) SOSSO| MPaID Pododxa awng)I] 0] Jajsuel], —

:Bujuw3aq ju se
PozZIUS00aT SJUDLUILISUL {EauRUL) 0} NP SaSunyD

TI9°s1 71961 - 9¢z L90°T G60E°E! § aouejeq SuluulBog
1#300 6 SUAT W (s)asse (GET $100 103
UEPLOIIE [BlOUEUL) [EruBULY oy yyuow g
ul paansedu patedun paaedu
SOIUBAO[|E P NPaId
§50] D1, paEwsLe pareudiio
do paseyaand) a0 paseydand
STOH 1ou) S10A
FRINIPT dwnAjIT
6102

:SMO[[0] Se 2JoM (9AI052] SIUSWIILLILIOED UBO[) SIUQWIIILOD
uBO] JO 3%UBMO[[R $SO[ 40) saouejeq Suipus pue Suluurdag oYy Jo SUCHRIIOUGDAT 3 ‘§1QT PUR 6107 ‘1€ J2quadaq JO Sy 7]

JAIISAI SIUSUNILILIOD URO| Ll SaSuey)

SPUAID) LIS [EIDULUIL] PIJRPI[OSUO)) I 0} SI)ON]
SHVIAISANS SLI ANV "A.LT “0D ONIATOH TVIONVNII NVAAIVIL

0s1



(panunuop)

T19°C1 719'S1 - 9¢€T L90%T GOEET $
SE9°L SE9L - L0¢ ¥EIT ¥et v
669°C 669°C - €81 T65°1 ¥Z6
(Er1°s) (€r1'g) - (505} (9eL'D) (zo6'D)
- - - - (0160 016'C
- - - 0z (0o -
- - - - €T (€20
1Z4°01 12¢°01 - 1€ ¥87°C 901°8 §
el 6 SUAT s (syasse [GEEY 101 sTD4
IUEPI0IDE B UEUL} [BIdUB L] amnap uout 7|
ul paansIl paaedun paaredur
SIIUBALO|| B Npaa Npadd
§SO[ J1 L, payemSio pnewdio
10 paseyaand) 10 paserpand
STOH jou) s
SHEIT | LI
810T

I51

sauejeq Surpuy
STUDIHDAGLL IOYIO pue H3UBYIXS UT1010,]
S)osse Je1aueu]) mou paseyaind 1o poeuiBup

porrad o Buninp peziugoosaiap
U23(] 2AB 1B} SI9$SE [BIOUBLL] —

$2850[ J1pa1o pAoadxa [uowy| 0} JIJSuBLL, —
$3550] JIpa1d pajpadxa slna)l| 03 JSUel], —
$2850] P10 poioadxo atUIA)I] O J9SuURL] —
Buiuuideq 1B se
PAZIUS0031 SJUDUINIISY] [BISURHL O onp SaBuel]))
soue(eq Suiumdsg

SJUILIDYE)S JRIOUBULY POIEPI[OSUO) Y] O) SIJON
SATIVIAISANS SLI ANV "ALT “0D HONIATOH TVIONVNIA NVAIVL



(panunuoy)

99p°CR0°S 1Y - (34 060°6£T ThGEP8FIP S
PE6s - - - ¥E6'E
¥80°166°C1 - 98¢ 128914 LTOELTEY
(€8€°00€°05) - (8¢ (Ler'opL) (806°155°62)
- - 501°C {(co1'0) -
[£8°88E 1€ - 18 19¥°0LT 63T'8II°IER $
Jeo ], (s198se [BlIDULUIY [GEE TR ST A} SO Yuow g
paaedun paaredwt jpaad
JIpaad pswiSLIe pareuidiio g0
A0 pasedand) paseyaand jou) '
STOH WA STDH WP
8107
BTOLTETY - 8F 98S°LTT prTTreeTy 8
159°119°02F - gb6 65879 P T86°%61Y
(SE8*PTHTIF) - (0er'D) (€97'8c9) (Tp6esL’11¥)
- - 0££1 {ogs‘D -
A - e 060°6£T 6 ERR' LY $

0], (5198s% [Bloukuy  (S)9SSE [EIdUEBH] STTOH QW] ST puow 7]
paaredust paasdun 31paad
Jpaa? paeuwisLio paeuidrio g0
10 paseydand) paseyaand jou)
STOH Koy STOH Y]
6102

(43

sougjeq Juipug
SIUDMWIADW 1DYI0)
sugo|
pue $juRoosHp mau paseyaand Jo paeuiBug
pouad sy ulnp poziudoosiap
U00q DALY JBLJ SIOSSE [BlOUBUL] —
patedun
HPSID JOU 1 E SWNAJI[ O) JHSURL], =
soue|rq Buluudag

ooueyeq Buipug
sueo|
pue sjunoedsip mau pasey2ind Jo parewdug

pourad aup Suunp peziugoosiop
U230 DABY 1BY] $19558 [RIGUBUL] —

patredun
PRI JOU TDF SWINIJT| 0 JoJsuel] —
sougjeq Juiuwdog

:$MO[]0) SB M SJUSLNIUIIOD UeO[ JO sjunoure SulALed au) *Q1 07 PUB 6107 ‘| € 1oquuaoa(] JO Sy

SJUSUIDIE)S [BIDURWL] PIIBPIOSUO0)) J]} O) SIION
SARIVIAISANS SLLANY "ALT “0D ONICTOH TVIONYNII NVAIV.L



(penupuoD)

‘poytowt uonesyidiurs Aq pajEn|Ead puesnoy) zzd* | § watneduy
10 2ouBMO|JE 8 35UBINSU] Seao[duiE JuswLLIZA0D) JO Walupeddq puB puesnoy; | [§ Hsodop sanoLnsel u) pazinSoool justiedull parguinest s ] Ol paprjsul1oN 1] MION

RT6LI 85€'95 P6'IT1 = Ir6'6L LL1'G - 908'ee s (z 910N) oaurjeq Tupug
£99 - $99 - 97T €017 62D SIBUIAA0N) BR PUE STUEXD 100,
9¢8'TI 9E8'ZIL - o£8'Z1 - - 110 udiLIm §1Gap peq Jo 140301 i),
(ege'zt) {sse'z1) - @1y (ss1°1} (1) Lo uanun $199p peg

SUe0" [ERussLIeN / Auuugpoduon
1[3EAs JLOC] PRID SIOSSY DB TAT] O SUONNILSH] 10}
SaIPazolg suk urtuaaen suopundsy o i

GLS'L 6L8'L - - - - - IIUTTHEIIT L PTOOAL 3011 IpaLNed ue]
7L8'69 TLE69 - 0l0'08 699°F £68'01 10551 [BIOUTUY MaU paseusand Jo pajeuFug
powad atp Juuup
(6e5°3L) (6£5'8L) - (sz0'en) (r3T°L} {0ET'8y) POZINTOIIIAP (IO AR 1LA[) SHSSE |RIAUELL —
- - - (8p5) (s€1'D) €811 $9550] 11P1D PaIOOAXS 1IHGLIT | 0) IDJSURL], —
= - - Lo (61} (zeD) pauteduit HpaId o 1) AR I| O SYStieL] —
" - - (682) #0Z'1 (516) 53550 LD Pojaaclne ooyl o) fjsueLf —
Huusg e
s5e FvDN_n_MDQUh SHDUULISL |HzULf o anp mum-E_._U
8666LI GLL'SP GLL'OET - 20067 BIel 61969 by (1 ;o) souefeq fuputdog
o0, SUBO] |BI0Y G SUAT PIA [GEE [EFET] (possassy S0 uow Z|
enopyBunuopaduoy IuBPIONIB [EPUBUY 1BIuuY A]9ADD|]109)
yna g ur poansEI paagsduy ppaasd  paanedwg pasy D7 MNP
PUB 5)3ISSY EN[BAT SIHIVMO||B vwfuo pajeniduo 1o
0) suoymynsu) $50] 9L LY yatnd) T pand jou)
A0) SIAPIDRL] F103 ARyl F10F JWNPIT

a3 Junasaoy
suonsn3ay,,
A IDUBJI0IIE U
pazIudedaa asunayNp
Junmagduw

6107

1SMO|{0] SB BIaMm
SO[QRAISDDI JO SOUBMO[[E SSO[ JOJ saoueleq Surpus pue SuiuuiSeq a1} JO SUOLIBIIOU0D2L 9] ‘§[ 0T PUB 6107 ‘1§ 19QuIada( JOSY [

(s19ss® [RIoUBLL JOL10 SUIpPN|OUL)Se|qrAISDa] JO eouemojf|e ssof wl saduel)  (iA

S)UUI)BIS [BIDURUI] PIJEPI[OSUO)) 3] 03 S2ION
SAMIVIAISANS SLI ANV "L “0D ONIATOH TVIONVNIA NVAIV.L

€5l



(penunuo)d)

10 90UBMO|[E §,20UBInsY]  S30A0dW Juawmiaaon Jo juswrsedad pue puesnoyt (1§ nsodop sanaimsal ul paziudos Jusuuieduw poiefawunase s, LOF pap[oul 10N

‘potiow ucneagdwis Aq pajenjead puesnoy) zzo* 1§ uswiedun
11 916N

855'6L1 GLL'SP 6LL0EL - 800'6F FTINAT GID'69 < (Z &10N) 20uvTq Suipug
0Z0°'8 - 0Z0's - 8ISy 1861 S0s°1 SIIDLIBABLL 1010 pui aFueyaxs ufiaio ]
19801 1p501 - Lol - oL 170 USIHA S PR JO A12AG0aE AL
{[e#'11) (tep'11) - (29L'6) (rz6) (008} 110 vANEA S199P prg
sueo] [Ersonuoy] / ulnuopaduopy
LI [B3¢] A S1055Y ILU|BAZT 0 SUOIIISY] 10)
S2UNPAdG A FuiAoL) SUoHENTsY Sub is
{roz'se) {9z'se) - - - - - SOUEPIODE U] POZIIS003) DUBKYY I Iuoutadstr]
SLE'8S $L6'88 - LOS'ET 891'8 DOELE sjasse [2touruy aau paseijnd 1o pajeniug
pouad au fuunp
(zge'ezi) (zgs'eTy) - {s00°sL) #15'c) (£90°cr) Pprziedodazap Lddq 9ARY IRy} SKSSE |CISUeNl ] —
- - - {60¢) (8zL'w LED'S S9550F HPaI0 pa1adxa (UOWIZ] O} Ja)stelt —
- - - 059 toeo) {oz) posdisnt 1PoLs 10U 3T SN 01 S9psuL | —
- - - (sLg) 8b9'1 (€Ll 50550] IP212 PA10adxa LYY 03 4YSULIY,
Buauiza e
SE PIZIUFoas] SHUMWENSUY [Lroukny ©) anp saBuey)
GSETHE £P0'P8 9[£'851 - 20E°56 SPIZI £98'0¢ 3 (] s10py) voueeq Bumudog
[GLEYA SUBO] BNIDd 6 SHAT A (mosse (519550 {passassy s7DT puotu [
vuopnySuinuopducy IUEPIOIIY LTI JuRuELy A[PAnad|[0)
guajeaq uj paansesw podiuchug yipass  panedigapaad SO AW
PUE $)OSSY HENIBAT SOIUBMO||E pauuBlo pasuSao 10
0) suopnnsu] SS0[ Y |, 10 paseippand) pasuipand you)
20) SINPIII STOF awnry  FIOH ANl
31 Juwanaosy
swonundayl,,
YIM DBEPICIIE U]
[RZIUE 0331 UL
sudnriedurf
8107

10] 20UBMO[fE §,20uEInsU] §33401d LT JUMIUIZAON JO Justiedaq pur puesnol)) | § Jsodap aaRoLnsor ul pazIuZ00al udIEdIL PAIRINWNGIE S ) OF PIPNOUL 10N

‘poyyaw uoneayyduns £q paenjeas puesnoy) €14 wowtedun
T MON

SJURIUB)EIS [BIDUBUL] PIYEPI[OSUOT) IY) 0) SAJON

SHRRIVIAISINS SLI ANV “ALT “0D ONIATOH TVIONVNIA NVAIV.L

PC1



(penunuo))

‘popow uonzoyduns £q paIen|Eas puesnoyl eH°9EL LS S9]qRAIDI21 SIUNOIDE
§ 2oueinsu]  seadojdury Justwuioaory Jo Juswpedaq pue puesnoy) §8¢°G]$ Nsodop pajpunsar Jo junows Burdues sso1d s [OF pIpnjoul 10N T MON

‘poyistu voneaydurs £q pajen[eas puusnoy) gy C8z  LE S9]qBAIRD3) SIUNOIOE
s soumsy] | saskoldwyg justinizaon Jo judswipeds pue pumsnol) g9F°61$ usodap pajolusar Jo junowe Juidues ssord s [ 0Og] Popnoul JON 1 MON

PSI'T60'16 - PEI°0L] SO1°00F £€8'1T5°06 $ (z 210N) 2ouereq 3uipuyg
(6Z8°819°¢) - SHo'LE (9L9°¢) (R6L7759°C) SJUBLRAGLL IO
(68E°T1) - g1z {ss1°1) (on) JJo uaniam $193p peg

suRo]|

S06°805'S1 - T68°LL LEIP61 918°9£T ¢l puE §1unoasip mau paseyaind 1o porew8ug

) poliad 31 Sunp poziuGoaoiap
(zer'LL6'8l) - (£9€°¢9) (650°589) (010°6ZT°81) 123Q SAEY JEY) 51IEE [PIouRUL] —
- - (rL1°0) {t9o'c0) 172'50T 82550 1§P315 PA)22dX UOWZ | 0] J9)SUBL], —
patredu]
- - T85'et (F84°L1) (890°9) 1PaIs 10U 1O S 0) JsuBL],—
- - (L061) THO*LLT (s€1°6LE) 50850 J1paio pajoadxa owmajl o) Jafsuel] —
688°161°86 - LTL'601 LEE6E8 SOR‘THT' LG $ (1 o10N) osuepeq SuruuSog
18301, ($)asse [RIDUBUY (s)osse [epoueuy (possasse SO (uom 7|
paaredun paaredair npaad K12A1339[103)
P31 pojeurdiio pHEwsLL0 J0 SO Sy
Jo paseyaand) pasegaand jou)
STIOW gy ST WP
6107

'SMO[[O] SB 219M SAqBAIS0aT Jo sjunowe Surues sy ‘g1 07 Pue 6107 ‘1 € Fquiaaa( JO SV

‘poyiou uoyeaydwis &q poren[eao puesnow gZo' 1§ wauedu
J0] SoUBMO[E 8, 20uEINSU] S2aA0]d W JUAWUINA0L) JO Juaweda(] pue puesnoy) | | ¢ J1sodap aanainsal U paziudooo) wauuedw pHEWNSE §, 1 OF] PRpNIaUl 10N 1T 910N

SJUQUIR)B)G [BIDUEULY PI)EPI[OSUO)) 31[) 03 SIJON
SAMAVIAISANS SLI ANV "ALT“0D HONIATOH TVIONVNIA NVAIV.L

gl



(penunuo))

‘poyiaw vonesyldus Aq poen|eAD puBsnoy) 8L €8T L SAHEAII SHUNOIIE
s .soueinsu] ,seakopdurg JusiuuIaACr) JO Justiieda pue puesnotl ¢oF°61$ Hsodop parinsas jo unowe Surdues ssord s [OF poOpnIoul JON g 910N

‘poyiaw voyeaydus £q PIBN|RAD PUBSTOYY COF COTT]S SO|QEAIII] SIUNOIIE
s ooueinsu] seadordg JuswIaA0ny Jo Juswireda( pue puesnoyl gpg|$ nsodsp pojolysal jo junowe Surfued ssoud 5, [0F PIPNPOW 10N 1| SION

688° 16186 - LzL'601 LSE6ER SO8TFTLG $ (z o10N) 2ouejeq Bupug
690720 - (6v9°98) T0¥ 91 (1Z8) SHUIWDAOW JAIO
(16+°11) - (LoL's) (vz6) (008) Jjo uanum siqap peg
sueo|
1286£0°€€E - 665°6¥ SLL'BES L 1SHTE PUB $JUn0oSIP mou paseyaind 1o pajeursig
powad oty Bupnp paziudoososop
(GEOWTFE) - (PELLED (185°009) (FzLisLo’ee) udD( DALY TBL)) SIISSE [RloUTUL] —
- - (Or6'1) (059°8¢7) 965°052 $2SS0[ UpaI2 PotoadXo [HUONIZ| 0) JafsuLL], —
pasedun
- - 8TTHT (156'07) (LLT'e) HpaId 10U D7 SwiLa)1) O) Jajsuell —
- - {2Lv'D) $TSSEE (950°¢EE) $9S80] Hpa1o paloadxa awA1| 03 Jgfsuel] —
L99°6+9°66 - 897 vLT 65L°618 0P 55586 $ (1 mopN) oouejeq Buluuideg
|10, (s1asse jeIduEUY (s1958% wdUBUL (poassasse S0 luow g
paaredun paedun upasd A[2A1097}02)
npaad paemdiie payemidnio 10 SO SWnRp
Ao paseyaand) paseyaand you)
STDF dumapry SO QMY
8102

951

SHUIUII)I )G [EIDUBUL] PIIBPI[OSUO)) 3Y) 03 SA)ON
SARVIAISANS SLI ANV "dLT “0D DNIATOH TYIONVYNII NVAIV.L



157

TATWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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BOT’ s department of government employees' insurance adopts simplification
method to estimate expected credit losses of receivables (including accrued
income, premiums receivable, and other receivable). These notes receivables and
account receivables are classified based on credit risk characteristics reflected the
borrower’s ability to meet its contractual obligations. Analysis of receivables held
by BOT’s department of government employees' insurance at December 31, 2019
and 20118 are shown below:

December 31, 2019
Weighted Allowance for
Gross amounts average expected credit
of account expected loss loss for a life
receivables rate time
Non-overdue h 7,730,746 0% -
Overdue less than 30 4,430 0% -
days
Overdue 31~60 days 622 0% -
Overdue 61~90 days - 0% -
Overdue more than 91 697 65.85% 13
days
3 7,736,495 13
December 31, 2018
Weighted Allowance for
Gross amounts average expected credit
of account expected loss loss for a life
receivables rate time
Non-overdue $ 7,282,726 0% -
Overdue more than 91 1,022 100% 1,022
days
) 7,283,748 1,022

The movements of allowance for impairment of account receivables held by BOT’s
department of government employees' insurance:

2018
Beginning balance (under 1AS 39) b 1,022
Adjustment for retrospective application due to IFRS 9 -
Beginning balance (under IFRS 9) (equal to ending balance)  § 1,022

2019
Beginning balance $ 1,022
Impaiment losses recognized 13
Write off uncollectabie amounts (1.022)
Beginning balance $ 13

(Continued)
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Disclosures required by the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Public Banks

i)

Asset Quality of overdue loans and receivables

December 31, 2013

Amount of Coverage

overdue loans [Total amount off Ratio (%) Allowsance for ratio (%)

[Type / Item (Note 1) loans (Note 2) doubtful debt (Note 3)
Enterprise|Secired 1,577,012 574,952,892 0.27 % 11,346,887 71952 %
[Non secured 434,118 1,237,329,936 0.04 % 22,380,197 515533 %
[House mortgage (Mote 4) 1,721,662 668,277,103 0.26 % 7,797,529 45291 %
[Cash card - - . % - - %
Consumer [Micro credit (Note 5) 25,627 4,364,249 0.59% 115,839 452,02 %
finance | Others [Secured 1,030,119| 207,608,452 0.50 % 3,013,007 292.49 %
{Note 6) [Non secured 157,037 28,752,075 0.55% 490,024 312,04 %
[Total 4,945,575 2,721,284,707 0.18 % 45,143,483 91281 %

Overdue Account Allowance for
receivables receivable Ratio (%) bad debt Cover ratio
[Credit card business 2,075| ° 889,817 0.23 % 10,639 51272 %
Non-recourse factoring (Note 7) . 12,132,076 | - % 60,346 - %
December 31, 2018

Amount of Coverage

overdue loans [Total amountof, Ratio (%) [ Allowance for ratio (%)

[Type / Ttem {Note 1) loans {Note 2} doubtful debt (Note 3)
Enterprise [Secured 1,613,717| 555,425,190 0.29 % 11,850,338 734.35 %
Mon secured 411,776 | 1,219,569,860 0.03 % 21,460,074 | 521159 %
House mortgage (Note 4) 2,020486| 579,538,061 0.35% 3,305,763 163.61 %
ICash card - - - Y% - - Ya
Consumer [Micro credit (Note 5) 24,018 4,610,708 0.52 % 211,695 881.40 %
finance | Others |Secured 1,222,024 207,712,918 4.59 % 2,082,759 170.44 %
(Note 6) [Non secured 215,050 29,558,040 0.73 % 476,855 22174 %
[Total 5,507,071 | 2,596,414,778 021 % 39387484 715.22 %

Overdue Account Allewance for
receivables receivable Ratio (%a) bad debt Cover ratio
Credit card business 2,498 816,123 0.31 % 9.849 394.28 %
INon-recourse factoring (Note 7} - 13,232,575 - % 67,352 - %
Note }:  Nonperforming loans are reported to the authorities and disclesed 10 the public, as required by the " Regulations

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Gaveming the Procedures for Banking Institutions to Evaluate Assets and Deal with Nonperforming/Non-accrued
Loans.” Nonperforming eredit card receivables are reported to the authorities and disclosed 1o the public. as
required by the Banking Bureau’s letter dated July 6, 2005 (Ref. No. 0944000375},

Ratio of nonperforming loans: Nonperforming Joans + Qutstanding loan balance. Ratio of nonperforming eredit
card receivables: Nonperforming eredit card receivables + Quistanding credit card receivables balance.

Coverage ratio of loans: Allowance for possible losses for loans + Nonperforming loans. Coverage mtio of credit
card receivables; Alowance for possible losses for credit card receivables = Nonperforming credit card
receivables.

The mortgage loan is for house purchase ot renovation and is fully secured by housing that is purchased (owned)
by the borrower, the spouse or the minor children of the borowers.

Based on the Banking Bureau's letter dated December 19, 2005 (Ref. No. 09440010950), small-scale credit loans
are unsecured, involve small amournts, and exclude credit cards and cash cards.

Other consumer banking loans refer 1o secured or unsecured loans that exclude housing mortgages, cash cards,
credit cards and small-scale credit loans.

As required by the Banking Bureau in its lener dated July 19, 2005 (Ref. No, 094000494), factored accounts
receivable without recourse are seported as nonperforming receivables within three months afier the factors or
insurance companies refuse to indemnify banks for any liabilities on these accounts.

‘(Continued)
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ii)  Non performing Loans and Overdue Receivables Exempted from Reporting
December 31, 2019 December 31,2018
Excluded Excluded
Excluded overdue Excluded overdue
NPL receivables NPL receivables
As a result of debt 218 - 306 -
consultation and loans
agreement
As a result of debt solvency 15,346 18,676 21,289 19,984
and restart plan
Total 15,564 18,676 21,595 19,984
iiiy Concentration of Credit Risk
Units: In Millions of NTD, %
December 31, 2019
% of Net
Credit Extensions|  Asset
Rank| Group Name Balance Value
1 |A company— Transport via 54,250 14.34 %
Railways
B group— Air Transport 44,755 11.83 %
3 |C group--Ocean Transportation 31,868 8.43 %
[ group —Retail Sale in 19,270 5.09 %
Nonspecialized Stores
5 [E group—Manufacture of Made-up 19,089 5.05 %
Textile Articles
6 [F group— Smelting and Refining of 17,919 4.74 %
Iron and steel
7 |G group—Cable Television 16,511 437 %
8 |H group—Real Estate Development 13,948 3.69 %
Activities
9 |l group—Air Transport 13,915 3.68 %
10 {J group—Real Estate Development 13,380 3.54 %
Activities

{Continued)
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December 31, 2018
% of Net
Credit Extensions|  Asset
Rank Group Name Balance Value

1 |A company— Transport via 54,026 1742 %
Railways

2 |B group— Air Transport 42,855 13.82 %

3 IC group—Retail Sale in 21,901 7.06 %
Nonspecialized Stores

4  |D group —Smelting and Refining of 21,532 6.94 %
Iron and Steel

5 |E group— Aluminum material Rolls 21,265 6.86 %
over Exiends and Crowding

6 |F group—Cable Television 16,381 528 %

7 |G group—Real Estate 16,090 5.19 %
Development Activities

8 [H group— Air Transport 15,062 4,86 %

9 [l group—Real Estate Development 12,777 4.12 %
Activities

10 |J group— Ocean Transportation 12,583 4,06 %

Average balance and current average interest rates of interest bearing assets

and liabilities

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Average Average
interest interest
Average rate (%) Average rate (%)
Interest earnings assefs
Call loans and placement with $ 219.739.225 2.65 273.478.077 2.37
banks
Placement with Central Bank 418,045,686 0.70 439,388,837 0.69
Financial assets 1,070,713,737 1.01  1,282,180.900 0.91
Negotiation, discounts and 2,733.570,115 1.60 2,389.866.529 1.69
total loans
Interest bearing liabilities
Deposit of Central Bank 14,603,311 - 15,077,628 -
Deposits and call loans from 278,077,443 1.76 221,694,751 1.46
banks
Demand deposit 393,322,729 0.24 398,352,371 0.22
Demand savings 1,002,993.486 0.47 947,078,863 0.48
Time savings 1,578,862,716 1.48 1,630,869.080 1.52
Time deposits 682,266,007 1.92 721,675,689 1.83
Government deposits 299,605,555 0.18 280,344,637 0.18
Structured products 1,109,138 2.79 908,476 2.50
Financial bonds 25,000,000 1.22 25,000,000 1.22

(Continued)



161

TAIWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

4)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Each average balance is calculated by respectively summing up the daily average
balances and then dividing the number of days in the year starting from January to the
financial statement date.

Note 2: The balances are derived from the Department of banking, credit cards, trusts and
securities.

Liquidity Risk

a)

b)

Causes and definition of liguidity risk

The definition for liquidity risk is BOT encounter difficulty in meeting the
obligations with its financial liabilities and causes the losses, for example, a saving
account cancels its saving ahead of time, the ways or conditions to call loans to
banks drop, creditors’ credit become worsen and cause an exceptional condition,
financial instruments cannot be financed, interest floating policy holder terminates
the policy ahead of time and etc. The situation mentioned above may reduce the
cash flow for lending, trading, and investing activities. In some extreme situation,
the poor liquidity position may decrease the level of balance sheet, sale assets, or
the possibility of not fulfilling the contractual loan balance. Liquidity risk is
containing in the inherent risk of bank operation, and could be affected by a
separate industry or whole market’s incident, which are included but not only as:
credit event, consolidation or merger and acquisition, system shock, and natural
disaster.

Management policies of liquidity risk

iy  To optimize the structure of assets and liabilities, BOT sets up an Assets and
Liabilities Management Committee of which the chairperson is the general
manager and the vice chairpersons are the vice general managers to decide
the direction of assets and liabilities management, to manage the liquidity
portion, interest rate risk, and to review the structure of deposits and loans
and so on,

ii)  To enforce the management of liquidity and interest rate risk and maintain
suitable Hquidity for higher effectiveness of capital and good operations,
BOT sets up policies for liquidity and interest rate risk. Assets and Liabilities
Management Commiftee conducts necessary monitoring. Risk Management
Department prepares risk-monitoring reports periodically and reports to Risk
Management Committee and then the Board of Directors.

ili) Management of liquidity risk

1. Maintain liquidity reserve ratio: According to “Liquidity Guidelines for
Financial Institutions” published by the Center Bank, BOT has to
maintain the liquidity reserve ratio of deposit balances greater than
15%.

2. Short term gap analysis: Calculate 1~10 day and 11~30 day gaps which
should be greater than zero.

(Continued)
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Liquidity coverage ratio: calculate their liquidity coverage ratio and
report it to the authorities on a monthly basis. In accordance with the
Standards Implementing the Liquidity Coverage Ratio of Banks
announced by the FSC and Central Bank, the ratio shall be higher than
100%.

Net stable funding ratio: Calculate their net stable funding ratio
and report it to the authorities on a monthly basis. In accordance
with the “Standards Implementing the Net Stable Funding Ratio of
Banks” announced by FSC and Central Bank, the ratio shall be
higher than 100%.

Foreign currency gap management: Make sure the ratio of accumulated
capital liquidity gap to each currency assets of the major foreign
currencies of BOT measured for every month and every term under one
year between %50% and £40%.

Fund management: Utilize the Assets and Liabilities Management
Information System to analyze the gaps of assets and liabilities and the
change of the structure. Allocate appropriate fund and adjust the fund
structure according to financial status. For NTD fund management, the
Bank maintains appropriate cash and cashable securities on hand, draw
up notice about NTD fund management and request every unit to notify
significant cash transactions, analyze the gaps for maturity amount of
purchased bills, bonds and call loans to control the fund trend and
decrease the liquidity risk. For foreign currencies, manage the financial
gap of actual amount received on due date and payment in a year by
using the maturity method.

Establish “Bank of Taiwan operational crisis management plan™ to
prevent and response quickly to the crisis.

Maturity date analysis of non derivative financial assets and liabilities

These tabl

es represent the cash outflow analysis of non derivative financial

liabilities of BOT’ s major currencies according to the unexpired ferm of the
contracts. The disclosed amounts are presented on the basis of contract cash flows,
so some disclosed items are not correspond to the accounts in the financial

statements.

These tables do not include BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers.

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (United State Dollars)

Unit: In th d USD

Desember 31. 2059 1~30davs 31-90days 91-180days 181dayIvear | Over one year Taial

Cash and placement with banks 424,667 33,000 44,550 60,550 2.588 565,355

Call loans to banks and overdrais 1,750,000 1,173,300 520,000 825,600 - 4,268,300

Investment securities 13,816 32,681 RR451 £55,661 2,183,064 2477673

Loans (including overdue loans) 421,617 479,641 328,78% 399,395 3,958,715 5,588,157

Interest receivables and income 16,926 18,672 10,580 5,026 55,496 106,700

Teceivables

Other expired items 8,187,451 10,561,402 7,337,513 3,333,077 1,767,376 31,186,819

Total major matured capital inflow 10,814,477 12,298,696 8,320,879 4,782,713 7,967,239 44,193,004
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December 31, 2019 1-30dnys 31-90days 91~180davs 181daylvear | Overone year Total
Deposits from banks, bank 2,562,967 986,800 100,000 15.000 - 3,664,767
everdrafts, and call loans from
bank
Demand deposits 871,366 971,635 1,457,453 - 876,909 4,177,363
Time deposits 3,010,347 2,645,530 2,179,185 3,100,459 375 10,935,895
Borrowings - - - - 1,500,000 1,500,000
Interest payables 30,661 32485 21579 10,830 120,029 215,684
Loan Commitments 221,593 67,786 168,377 549,202 704,179 1,711,137
Equities . . - - (59,315 (59,815,
Other expired items 2,822,298 6,258,951 4,495,587 2,333,630 7,119,681 23,030,156
[Total major matured capital outflaw 9,519,232 10,963,187 8422281 6,009,130 10,261,358 45,175,188

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (New Taiwan Dollars)

Unit: In th d NTD

December 31, 2019 1~-30days 31-90days 91~180days 181davlvear | Over one year Total
Cash and placement with banks 51,529,676 207,522,262 74,186,089 71,269,782 40,855,507 445,367,716
Call loans 10 banks and overdrafts 6,625,000 - - - 10,000 6,635,000
Investment securities 684,379,289 52,426,185 77,987,626 198,061,066 222845.695F 1,235,699,861
Loans {including overdue loans) 195,050,349 248,739,474 252,710,482 394875046 | 1,402,441,506 | 2,493,866,857
Interest receivables and income 3,872,391 2,658,215 2,033,934 1,357,912 42,826 9,965,278

receivables
Other expired items 71,206,001 152,939,076 08,546,043 96,563,366 284,683 815 703,938,301
iTotal major mawred capital inflaw 1,012,662,706 664,335,212 505,464,174 62,127,172 | 1,950,883,749 | 4,895,473,013

December 31,2019 1~30days 31~90days 91~180days 181dnyiyear | Over one year Total
Deposits from banks, bank 59,343,733 6,126,358 £,092 401 13,532,890 7,262 774 94,358,161

overdrafts, and call loans from

bank
Demand deposits 56.056.764 41,078,634 38,557,562 52349306 | 1294940898 [ 1482983164
Time deposits 385,206,473 252,470,787 285,386,675 737,654,628 163,632,039 1,824,410,602
Bills and bonds sold under [,784,484 17,285,302 697,820 2,563 - 16,774,169

repurchase agreements
Borzowings 25 3,587 4,048 4777 25,004,036 25,016,473
Interest payables 5,027 425 698414 1,254,603 795019 395420 8,170,881
Loan Commitments 93,619,947 187.056,686 280,676,633 561.353.266 709.356,373 |  1.832.092,305
Equities - - - - 376,479,551 376,479,551
Other expired items £78,401,682 291,454,294 166,532,442 79.%21,958 140,840,739 856,751,145

[Total major matured capital outflow 779,500,538 796,178,062 781,202,184 | 1445214437} 2,717.541,830( 6,520,037,058

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (United State Dollars)

Unit: In thousand USD

[December 31. 2018 1~30days 31~90days 91~180days | 1§1daylyear | Overoncyear Total
Cash and placement with banks 733,223 92,000 39,550 16,550 943 912,266
Call lnans 16 banks and overdrafls 905,000 948,000 275,000 355,000 - 2,483,000
Investment securities 50,400 68,435 §9,085 119.508 1,660,622 1,988.050
Leans {including overdue loans} 651046 495,734 325227 253,169 4215327 5,940,503
Interest receivables and income 20,128 20428 8339 4,158 55,588 108,641

receivables
Other expired itlems 9,077,528 7,312,653 7487993 3,816,375 3,786,310 31,480,750
[Fotal majer matured capial infllow 11,437,325 8,937,250 8,225,195 4,594,660 6,718,790 42,913,220
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December 31, 2018 1-30days 31-90days 91-180days | 181daylyear | Over one year Total
Deposits from banks, bank 2,350,755 728,700 138,000 - 30,000 3,247,455
overdrafis, and call loans from
bank
Demand depasits 872,953 8£1,19] 1,321,787 - 816,700 3,892,631
Time deposits 2,738,632 3,990,237 2095007 3,494,759 . 12,318,635
Bills and bonds sold under 600,000 - - - - 600,000
repurchase agreements
Borowings - - - . 1,500,000 1,500,000
Interest payables 33,935 33,705 18,250 11,817 62377 160,084
Loan Commitments 372,630 75,852 339,246 408,081 756,112 951,97
Equities - - - - {29,239 {29,239
Other expired items 5,842,470 5,501,033 3,799,972 543,768 4,530,252 20,217,515
Irotal major matured capital outflow 12,811,425 11,210,718 7,712,262 4,458,445 7,666,202 43,850,052

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (New Taiwan Dollars)

Unit: In thousand NTD

[December 31, 2018 1-30days 31~90days 91~180days 181daylyenr | Over one year Total
Cash and placement with banks 62,641,140 207,866,979 75,915,116 68,287,753 46,728,229 461,439,217
Call Joans to banks and overdrafis 28,565,000 - . - 19,000 28,575,000
Investment securities 698,753,368 52,746,345 94,758,612 264,243,329 232,833,911 | 1,343,335,565
Loans {in¢luding overdue loans) 177,994,043 235,438,634 290,925,948 385,556,753 | 1,264,332,745 | 2,354,645,123
Tnterest receivables and income 3045670 2,589,786 1,835,638 1,315,878 106,356 8,893,328

receivables
Other expired items 199,992,760 134,705,103 99,654,174 13,685,935 219,639,092 664,677,064

[Total major matured capital inflow 1,170,991,981 630,746,847 563,089 488 733,085,648 1763650333 | 4,861,563,297

December 31, 2058 1-30days 31-90days 91~180days | 181daylyear | Overone year Total
Deposits from banks, bank 68,374,187 6,384,285 7,105,680 12,329,577 6,717,822 100,911,151

overdrafts, and call loans from

bank
Demand diposits 62,280,862 35,851,395 33.068.172 5,045,784 | 1,343,635449| 1.482,877,662
Time deposits 158,954,887 257,910,512 296,021 871 732,411,354 379,501,013 1.824,800,637
Bills and bonds sold under 2,442,473 3.553,108 634,463 7.003 - 6,637,047

repurchase agretments
Bomowings 25 4,847 5470 6,529 25,009,954 35,026,825
Interest payables 5,306,528 655,627 852310 1,326,152 312,572 8456219
Loan Commitments 77,334,309 154,832,162 232,166,771 464,497 385 709,607,821 1.638,438,748
Equtics - - . - - 308,486,503 308,486,503
Other expired items 271,073,338 211,900,608 198,808,152 119,913,803 114.337,772 96,033.673

(Total major maiured capital outflow 645,706,609 674,095,844 768,662,385 1,335,534.217| 2,887,608,906) 6,311,668,465

d) Maturity analysis of derivatives

December 31, 2009 H.0verdue 6

Derivative financial 1.Overdue less  {2.0verdue 1 3, (Overdue 3 months to WOverdue 1 j6.0verdue more

[instrumenis than 1 month | to 3 months to 6 months 1year (¢ 5 yvears ihan § years Total
Finzncial nssets and liabilities measared at fair value thraugh profit or less, Derivative instruments (Forcign exchange)

Foreign exchange outflow 9.3840,477 9,448,269 2,071,580 766,000 201,192 - 22,327.518
Forein exchange inflow 10,023,135 9,498.98] 2,135.416 790,013 201,192 - 22,652,739
Financial assets and liabilities measured m fair value through profit or Joss, Derivative instnarents (Interest)

Interest outflow 210,855,823 449,604 048 271,949,337 124,996,618 3611166 - 1,061.016,992
Interest inflow 201,111,370 454,297,934 278,779,509 134,182,065 3,241 H1 - 1,071,618.66%
[Hedging derivative financial instruments (Inerest)

Interest outflow 5,540 124,629 48,370 110,265 623,987 - 912,791
[ntezest inflow %313 99,369 65,775 £9,530 464,554 - 27541
{Hedging derivative fi i (Foreign exchange)

Foreign exchange outflow 471,695 - - - - - 471,695
Foreigm exchanige inflow 461,259 - - - . - 461,239
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December 31,2018 [1.0verdue §

Derivative financial 1.0verdue less  [2.0verdue 1 B.Overdue 3 months to 5.0verdue 1 6.0verdue more

insiruments 1han 1 month | to 3 monihs to 6 months 1 vear to § years than § years Total

Financial assets and Jiabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, Derivative instruments (Foreign exchange)

Foreign exchange outflow 10,223,061 9,560,999 2,409,367 1,489,024 163,842 1,607 23,847.500

Foreign exchange inflow 10,197,799 9,643,345 1,810879 1,489,024 163,842 1,507 23,306,456

Financial assets and liabilities measurad at fair valie through profit or loss, Derivative instruments (Interest)

[nterest outflow 400,981,674 345120973 280,552,565 116,063,674 1,355,589 13,543 | 1,142,088018
fnterest inflow 390,596,031 331,184,912 273,717,175 98,828,449 1,390,496 4,392 1,005,721,462
[Hedping derivative financial instruments (Interest)

[nterest outflow 13,010 44,751 49,645 - - - 107,406
[nterest inflow 14,671 33,483 49,459 - - - 97,613
Financial assets and Jiabilities measured a1 fair value through profit or less, Derivative instruments (Commodity)

[nterest outflow - - - - - - -
|Interest inflow B (72 - - - - (72)

€)

Maturity analysis of off balance sheet items

If the off balance credit items of BOT are classified as “Under One Year”, “One to
Five Years” and “Above Five Years”, the maturity analysis of both off balance
items and lease agreements and capital expenditures are disclosed together.

Decemsber 31, 2019 0-30 days 31-90 davs 01-180days | 181 days-I vear | Owver ] year Total

[rrevocable loan commitment 31,000,000 - 1,080,000 259,830,884 131,141,360 423,052,243
[rravocable credit card commitment 5,153 1,155 4,495 25,14 191,492 228,039
[Letter of credit receivables 5,551,609 2,118,355 4,441,537 23,195,895 4,241,795 39,579,191
fGuarantes receivables 51,895,541 3,199,187 8,629,817 7,130,792 15.032,129 85,887,466
flotal 88,452,305 5,348,697 14,155,849 290,183,315 150,606,776 548,746,940
December 31. 2018 0-30 days 31-90 davs 91-180days | 181 days-1 year | Over 1 year Total

Irevocable foan commitment - 211,375,700 1,280,000 202,600,000 188,242 414,843,942
Irevocable eredit card commiiment . - - 239,524 239,524
L.etter of credit receivables 8,665,257 1,940,266 4,163,251 7,861,398 4,046,012 26,676,184
[Guaraniee receivables 36,865,848 2,312,070 4,151,114 11,885,401 11,882,902 87,101,335
[Total 65,535,105 215,628,036 9,594 365 221,746,799 16,356,650 528,860,585

Maturity analysis of lease agreements and capital expenditures

Maturity analysis of lease agreements and capital expenditures was as follows:

Less than 1
December 31, 2019 year 1-5 year Over 5 year Total
Lease commitments
Lease liabilities {455,304 (980,241 (43,587 (1,479,132
Lease mcome 151,451 181,585 - 333,046
Total (303,853 (798,646 (43,587) (1,146,086
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Less than 1
Decemnber 31, 2018 year 1-5 vear Over 5 year Total
Lease commitments
Operating lease payments (Lessee) (330,878 (557,578 (1,805 (890,261
Operating lease income(Lessor) 144,332 256,379 - 400,711
Total (186,546 (301,199 (1,805 (489,550Y

Disclosures requested by the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Publicly Banks"

i)  Maturity analysis of asseis and liabilities (New Taiwan Dollars) (excluding
BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers)

Unils: In Thousands of NI
Amount for cach tng period to maturdiy
“Total Lexs than 19 daxs 11~30 daxs 31~-90 dava 91~180 davs 181~365 davs Oher 1 year
Major mawred capital inflow B 4.895473,013 556,635,559 456,027,147 664,335,212 505,464,174 761,127,172 1,950,883,749
Major matured capital sulllow 6,520,027,051 477,798,620 301,701,912 T96.178,062 781,202,184 1445214437 2.717,941,830
Capilal gap (1.624,564,038) 78,836,953 134,335,335 (131,842,850, (215,7,?!:0]0 (683,087,265 (167,058.081Y
Units: In Thousands of NTD
Amwount for each remalning periad to maturity
Total Less than 10 daya| 11-30 davs 31-50 dava 91~180 davs 181355 days Oher ] vear
Major matured capitaf inflow [ 4,861 568297 613.718.976 557.273,005 £30,740.847 563,089,488 733,083,648 1,763 650,333
Majur matured capilil outllow 631 1668AGS 261,825,331 3BREY]2TR 674,095,584 TER.662.889 1,335.534.217 2 887.608,%05
[Capital gap (1450100168 351843645 173 381.727 (43,348,997 {205.573,401 (602444569 (1,123,958 573

if)

BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers)

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (United State Dollars) (excluding

2019
Unit: In Thousand of USD
Amount for each r ining period to maturity
Total Less than 30 31~90 days 91~180 days 181--365 days Over | year
days
Major matured capital inflow S 44,193,004 10,814,477 12,298,696 8.329,879 4,782,713 7.967.23%
Major matured capital outfiow 45,175.188 9,519,232 10,963,187 8,422,281 6.009.130 10,261,358
ICapital gap (982,184 1,295,245 1.335,509 (92,402 (1,226,417 (2,294,119
2018
Unit: In Thousand of USD
Amount for each r ining period to maturity
Total Less than 30 31~90 days 91~180 days 181~365 days Over I year
days
Major matured capital inflow S 42,913.220 11,437,325 8,937,250 8225195 4,594,660 9,718,790
Major matured capital outflow 43,859,052 12,811,425 11,210,718 7,712,262 4,458,445 7,666,202
iCapital gap (945,832) (1,374,100 (2,273,468 512,933 136,215 2,052,588
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Market risk

a)

'b)

Causes and definition of market risk

Market risk means that changes in market price lead to the fair value and future
cash flow volatility risk of the held financial instruments, even if it is not included
in the financial statements. The risk factors usually refer to interest rate, exchange
rate, equity investment and price. When the factors change, BOT’s net operating
income and the value of investment portfolio will have volatility risk.

The main market risks of BOT are interest rate risk, exchange rate risk and equity
investment risk. The main position of interest rate risk includes transactions with
conditions, bonds, securities investments, interest rate swaps and so on. The main
position of exchange risks includes forward exchange, foreign exchange swaps, FX
options and so on. The main position of equity investment risk includes stocks,
funds, stock market index futures and so on.

Management policies of market risk

BOT sets up market risk management regulations and policies according to the risk
management strategies approved by the Board of Directors, the Basel Accord and
government regulations. BOT decides the quota of investments and stop-loss point
for financial instruments by types and characteristics in order to identify, assess,
measure and monitor various risks of investment.

Procedure of market risk management
i) Identification

The identification procedures are as follows. First, use the business analysis
or praduct analysis to identity the market risk factors of financial instruments.
Second, measure the market risk of all financial instruments according to the
risk factors changes of the important exposure. Finally, identify the market
risk factors of every constitution of structured products and use the factors as
the measurement basis. The above risk factors include interest rate, exchange
rate and price of equity security.

{Continued)
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d)

ii)

iii)

Evaluation and measurement

BOT’s market risk exposure can be classified into trading book and banking
book. The financial instruments classified in trading book are measured at
market value every day; those classified in banking book are measured at
market value at least once a month, Following IFRS 13, BOT ensures that
Level-1 inputs (i.e. quoted prices in an active market, such as prices from
TWSE, electronic screen or independent brokerage firms) and Level-2 inputs
(those which can be directly or indirectly observed in the market) are
available. When the aforementioned inputs are not available, the related
instruments shall be classified to Level 3. The sources from which BOT
obtains inputs largely remain the same as prior periods and BOT will check if
a financial instrument can be reasonably measured before entering into a
transaction.

Monitor and Report

BOT conducts various risks monitoring for ordinary trading activities,
prepares risk monitoring reports and reports it to the Risk Management
Committee and the Board of Directors. The monitoring includes controls of
market risk position, profit and loss, exposure, quota of investments, degree
of concentration, the sensitivity analysis and the stress testing. BOT also has
communication mechanism. Each operating unit put forward transaction
information to the supervisory periodically in order to ensure the accuracy
and effectiveness. While trading amounts excess the limitation or in other
abnormal conditions, the related operating units should alert it in time.

Management policies of trading book risk

The trading book refers to the financial instruments held for trading or hedging.
The positions held for trading mean the positions that are held to earn profit from
the buy-sell spread. The positions not belong to trading book are regarded as
banking book.

)

Policy and Procedure

BOT formulates “ Bank of Taiwan Trading Book Management Provision™ as
important guideline for all trading units.

Valuation Policy

BOT’s market risk exposure can be classified into trading book and banking
book. Following IFRS 13, the Bank ensures that Level-1 inputs (i.e. quoted
prices in an active market, such as prices from TWSE, electronic screen or
independent brokerage firms) and Level-2 inputs (which can be directly or
indirectly observed in the market) are available. When the aforementioned
inputs are not available, the related instruments shall be classified to Level 3.
The sources from which BOT obtains inputs largely remain the same as prior
periods and the Bank will check if a financial instrument can be reasonably
measured before entering into a transaction.

{Continued)



169

TATWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iii)

Measurement Method

1. Monitoring the trading book of risk exposure including stocks, funds,
bonds, spot exchanges, forward exchanges, rate swap, option, future
contracts, etc. Checking the ratio of risk exposure with total investment
everyday and reporting monthly.

2,  BOT conduct stress test every quarter under unfavorable economic
scenarios which are set up risk factors: equity securities, interest rate,
foreign exchange and commodities, setting the scene to calculate
possible impacts by inputting different on profit or loss of each risk
factor.

3. Check the market price every month.

4.  Prepare the risk monitor report to chief director and put it on BOT’s
website as reference.

Management policies of trading book interest risk

i)

iii)

Definition of interest risk

“Interest risk” is the risk derived from changes in interest rate that may lead
to changes in fair value of BOT’ s position or losses fo earnings. Main
position includes interest related securities and derivatives.

Management procedures for trading book interest risk

BOT sets different quotas and stop-loss points for commercials, bonds, and
interest related derivatives. Each trading department assesses market price of
the trading book position daily, reports to the department of risk management
monthly, and reports to the committee of risk management and the board
quarterly.

Measurement Method

Except setting up quotas and stop-loss point, BOT also monitors its position
affected by interest risk with PVOI.

Interest rate risk management for banking book

The main management purpose is to strengthen the interest rate risk management,
increase the effectiveness of capital usage and improve the business.

)

Strategy

The interest rate risk management increases BOT’ s flexibility in order to
measure, manage and hedge the interest rate risk. BOT formulates “Liquidity
and Interest Rate Management Strategies™ to reinforce the management and
maintain proper liquidity and adjust the interest rate sensitivity gap for the
steady long-term profitability and business .
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i)

i)

Management procedure

In order to adapt the economic financial environment changes and to fuifill
the capital requirement, BOT conducts different pricing management
strategies, such as adopting variable or fixed interest rate, and use financial
futures, foreign exchange swaps, interest rate swaps to manage the interest
rate sensitivity gap. To adjust the interest rate sensitivity gap properly, the
risk management department monitors the ratio of interest rate sensitivity
assets to interest rate sensitivity liabilities, the ratio of NTD capital gap to
equity and the interest rate sensitivity gap of foreign exchange and report
monthly to the risk management committee and board of directors.

Measurement method

BOT uses the “Assets and Liabilities Management Information System” to
identify interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities and analyses the maturity
gap and changes of maturity structure as the basis of interest rate risk
management and pricing strategies. They also make proper financial transfer
and adjust the capital structure to lower the liquidity risk and increase the
profit.

g)  Exchange rate risk management

i)

Definition of exchange rate risk

The exchange rate risk refers to the profit or loss resulted from two different
currencies transferred at different times. BOT exchange rate risk is derived
from exchange, forward exchange, FX swaps, cross currency swaps, and
foreign exchange options. Because BOT squares customer’ s position every
day, the exchange rate does not have any significant risk.

Management procedures and measurement method of exchange rate risk

To control the exchange rate risk, BOT sets different quotas and stop-loss
point for employees with different levels and have annual total loss quota to
control the loss in a telerable range.

BOT conducts stress testing. The simulated situations are 3% changes of
exchange rate for every currency. The relevant statements are disclosed at
sensitivity analysis.

h)  Equity security risk management

)

Definition of equity security risk

The market risk of holding equity securities includes the respective risk
arising from the market price changes of respective equity security and
general market risk resulted from the whole market price changes.
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iii)

The intention of equity security price risk management

The intention is to avoid loss and worse financial status due to violent
fluctuations of equity security price and increase the effectiveness of capital
usage and improve the business.

Procedure of equity security price risk management

BOT sets different investment quotas by industries, enterprises and groups.
They use the B value to measure the influence of systematic risk monthly and
monitor the risk value of equity securities and unrealized profit/loss ratio
every day. The stop-loss point mechanism is approved by the security
investment committee and executed by the risk management department.

Measurement method

The control of the equity security price risk is based on the unrealized gain
(loss) ratio, B value and the aforementioned investment limitations.

BOT conducts stress testing every season. The simulated situations are £15%
changes of equity security price. The relevant statements are disclosed at
sensitivity analysis.

Market risk vaiuation technique

i)

Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity

BOT assumes that other factors are unchanged and the yield curve of the
whole world moves upward by 100 bps at December 31, 2019 and 2018.
Under this assumption, the income after fax will decrease $56 million and
$53 million, respectively and the other comprehensive income will decrease
$6,164 million and $6,369 million, respectively. If the yield curve moves
downward by 100 bps, the income after tax will increase $55 million and $57
million, respectively and the other comprehensive income will increase
$6,583 million and $6,659 million, respectively.

Exchange Rate Risk Sensitivity

BOT assumes that other factors are unchanged and the foreign currency to
New Taiwan Dollars exchange rate appreciates by 3% at December 31, 2019

and 2018. Under this assumption, the income after tax will increase $796
million and $1,410 million, respectively. .

If the exchange rate depreciates by 3%, the income after tax will decrease
$796 million and $1,410 million, respectively.
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BOT assumes that other factors are unchanged and the market prices of the
equity securities increase by 15% at December 31, 2019 and 2018. Under this
assumption, the income after tax will increase $6,524 million and $6,482
million, respectively and the other comprehensive income will increase
$14,293 million and $11,507 million, respectively.

If the market prices decrease by 15%, the income after tax will decrease
$6,524 million and $6,482 million, respectively and the other comprehensive
income will decrease $14,293 million and $11,507 million, respectively.

iv)  Sensitivity analysis is as follows:

Units: In Millions of NTD

December 31, 2019
Amount Influence
Main risk Range Equity |Gain or loss
[nterest rate risk [nterest rate curve rise 100BPS (6,164) 56
[nterest rate risk Interest rate curve fall H00BPS 6,583 (55)
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currency/ NTD 796
rise 3%
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currency / NTD (796
fall 394
Price of equity stock risk |Price of equity stock rise 1594 14,293 6,524
Price of equity stock risk [Price of equity stock fall 15%% (14,293) (6,524

Units: In Millions of NTD

December 31, 2018
Amount Influence
Main risk Range Equity | Gain or loss
[nierest rate risk [nterest rate curve rise 100BPS (6,369} 53
[nterest rate risk [nterest rate curve fall 100BPS 6,659 (57)
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currency/ NTD 1,410
rise 3%
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currency /NTD (1,410)
fall 39§
Price of equity stock risk |Price of equity stock rise 15% 11,507 6,482
Price of equity stock risk |Price of equity stock fall 159 (11,507) (6,482
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Net position of major foreign currencies

Units: In Thousands of stated currencies

December 31, 2019
Amount in original currency Amount in New Taiwan
Dollars
USD 637,450 19,117,126
CNY 1,201,376 5,159,910
IPY 3,019,312 833,632
GBP 18,372 723,489
KRW 21,477,933 556,278
December 31, 2018
Amount in original currency Amount in New Taiwan
Dollars
USD 939,761 28,883,554
CNY 1,209,269 5,404,223
JPY 2,985,129 828,075
GBP 18,272 710,781
AUD 28,452 616,128

Note 1: The major foreign currencies were the top 5 currencies by position

expressed in New Taiwan Dollars after exchange rate conversion.

Note 2:  The net position represented the absolute value of each currency.
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All held foreign financial assets and liabilities are classified by currencies and
represented using the carrying amounts. The following tables are the information at

December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

December 31, 2019
Other
currency to
Assets USD to NTD NTD Total NTD

Cash and cash equivalents 40,602,495 49,070,591 89,673,086
Placement with central bank 95,523,436 67,808,331 163,331,767

and call loans to banks
Financial assets measured at 81,265,493 23,293,167 104,558,660

fair value through profit or

loss
Financial assets measured at 25,979,446 68,738,961 94,718,407

fair value through other

comprehensive

income
Debt investments measured 23,927,802 17,031,776 40,959,578

at amortized cost
Hedging derivative financial - 1,071 1,071

assets
Receivables, net 11,226,412 1,734,035 12,960,447
Current income tax assets 77,765 63,288 141,053
Loans and discounts, net 124,070,454 100,190,607 224,261,061
Other financial assets, net 92,562 20,195 112,757
Property and equipment, net 85,094 58,388 143,482
Intangible assets 12,485 3,804 16,289
Deferred income tax assets, 126,667 66,699 193,366

net
Other assets, net 38.944.892 (37.262.879) 1.682.013
Total assets $ 441,935,003 290,818,034 732,753,037
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December 31, 2019

Other
currency to
Liabilities USD to NTD NTD Total NTD
Deposits of Central Bank 64,126,309 70,769,063 134,895,372
and other banks
Financial liabilities 45,722,494 152,587 45,875,081
measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Hedging derivative financial - 25,537 25,537
liabilities
Bills and Bonds Sold under - 1,790,702 1,790,702
Repurchase Agreements
Payables 7.431,896 1,789,738 9,221,634
Current income tax liabilities 10,001 123,997 133,998
Deposits and remittances 423,630,859 241,217,178 664,848,037
Other financial liabilities 380,155 565,910 946,065
Provisions 4,854 17,982 22,836
Deferred income tax - 19,312 19,312
liabilities
Other liabilities 133.362.499 41.542.081 174.904.580
Total labilities 674,669,067 358,014,087 1,032.683.154
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December 31, 2018
QOther
currency to
Assets USD to NTD NTD Total NTD

Cash and cash equivalents $ 43,760,141 62,182,412 105,942,553
Placement with Central Bank 49,080,583 56,035,227 105,115,810

and call loans to banks
Financial assets measured at 66,053,621 18,865,443 84,919,064

“fair value through profit or

loss, net
Financial assets measured at 15,097,620 74,984,013 90,081,633

fair value through other

comprehensive incom
Debt investments measured 20,099,228 21,975,671 42,074,899

at amortized cost
Hedging derivative financial - 41,693 41,693

assets
Receivables, net 10,629,303 4,778,805 15,408,108
Current income {ax assets 170,067 175,802 345,869
Loans and Discounts, net 141,013,561 97,830,017 238,843,578
Other financial assets, net 108,944 19,758 128,702
Property and equipment, net 63,559 52,505 116,064
Intangible assets 14,435 5,124 19,559
Deferred income tax assets, 127,740 62,149 189,889

net
Other assets, net 41,697.422 {39.551.956) 2.145.466
Total assets S 387.916,224 297,456,663 685,372,887
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December 31, 2018
Other
currency to
Liabilities USD to NTD NTD Total NTD

Deposits of Central Bank 68,635,480 52,209,508 120,844,988

and other banks
Financial liabilities 46,316,712 63,924 46,380,636

measured at fair value

through profit or loss
Hedging derivative financial - 12,973 12,873

liabilities
Bills and Bonds Sold under 18,441,000 - 18,441,000

Repurchase Agreements
Payables 7,612,984 2,264,724 9,877,708
Current income tax liabilities 42,749 6,888 49,637
Deposits and remittances 469,398,377 249,114,004 718,512,381
Other financial liabilities 385,459 266,559 652,018
Provisions 11,301 5,305 16,606
Deferred income tax - 21,541 21,541

liabilities
Other liabilities 112.470.812 33.217.502 145.688.314
Total liabilities 723,314,874 337,182,928 _1,060.497.802

Disclosures required by the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial

Reports by Public Banks

i)  Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities analysis (New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2019

181 days to one

jworth (%)

Item 1~-90 days 91~180 days vear Qver ong year Total
[nterest rate sensitive % 1,682,531,290| 1,712,946,163 156,966,532 309,160,967 3,861,604,952
lassets
[nterest rate sensitive 457,257,294 | 2,933,664,471 246,325,207 87,470,984 | 3,724,717,956
liabilities
[nterest rate sensitive gap | 1,225,273.9961 (1,220,718,308 (89,358,675 221,689,983 136,886,996
INet worth 375,466,219
Ratio of interest rate sensitive assets to 103.68
liabilities (%)
Ratio of interest rate sensitive gap to net 36.46
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December 31, 2018
181 days to one
Item 1~80 days 91~180 days year Over one year Total
Interest rate sensitive $1,673,382,215] 1,638,302,711 266,935,209 307,311,037 | 3,885,931,172
lassets
Interest rate sensitive 422,546,294 | 2,955,016,635 331,223,291 77,972,260 | 3,786,758.480
tiabilities
[nterest rate sensitive gap | 1,250,835,921 | (1,316,713,924 (64,288,082 229338777 99,172,692
[Net worth 308,486,502
Ratio of interest rate sensitive assets to 10262
liabilities (%)
Ratio of interest rate sensitive gap to net 3215
worth (%)

Note 1: The above amount included cnly new Taiwan dollar amounts held by the Bank, and excluded
contingent assets and contingent liabilities.

Note 2: Interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities are interest-earning assets and interesting-bearing
liabilities with revenues and costs affected by interest rate changes.

Note 3: Interest rate sensitivity gap=Interest-rate-sensitivity assets—Interest-rate-sensitivity liabilities.

Note 4: Ratio of interest-rate-sensitivity assets to liabilities=Inferest-rate-sensitivity assets/Interest-
rate-sensitivity labilities (in New Taiwan Dollars),

ii)  Assets and liabilities interest rate sensitivity analysis (United Stated Dollars)

Unit: In Thousand of USD

December 31, 2019
181 days to one
Item 1~90 days 91180 days year Qver one year Total

Interest rate sensitive T 29,245,574 6,754,671 4,912,995 994,744 41,907,984
lassets

[nterest rate sensitive 19,341,698 10,012,659 5,449,048 1,541,441 36,344,846
liabilities

[nterest rate sensitive gap 9,903,876 (3,257,988 (536,053 {546,697 5,563,138
[Net worth (59,401
Ratio of interest rate sensitive assets to 11531
liabilities (%)

Ratio of interest rate sensitive gap to net (9,363.39
worth (%)

Unit: In Thousand of USD
December 31, 2018
181 days to one
ftem 190 days 91~180 days year Over ong year Total

nterest rate sensitive $ 25,735,649 7,127,788 5,381,028 756,158 39,000,623
fassets

Interest rate sensitive 23,004,234 8,930,311 4,038,545 1,539,087 37,512,177
liabilities

[nterest rate sensitive gap 2,731,415 (1,802,523 1,342,483 (782,929 1,488,446
Net worth (30,512
Ratio of interest rate sensitive assets to 103.97
liabilities (%)

Ratio of interest rate sensitive gap to net (4,878.23
jworth (%)
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Note 1: The above amount included only U.S. dollar amounts held by the Bank, and excluded
contingent assets and contingent liabilities.

Note 2: Interest rate sensitivity assets and labilities are interest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities with revenues and costs affected by interest rate changes.

Note 3:Interest rate sensitivity gap=Interest-rate-sensitivity assets—Interest-rate-sensitivity liabilities.

Note 4: Ratio of interest-rate-sensitivity assets fo liabilities=Interest-rate-sensitivity assets/Interest-
rate-sensitivity liabilities {(in U.S. dollars).

6) Interest rate risk management for banking book

The main management purpose is to strengthen the interest rate risk management,
increase the effectiveness of capital usage and improve the business.

a)

b)

Strategy

The interest rate risk management increases BOT’s flexibility in order to measure,
manage and hedge the interest rate risk. BOT formulates “Liquidity and Interest
Rate Management Strategies™ to reinforce the management and maintain proper
liquidity and adjust the interest rate sensitivity gap for the steady long-term
profitability and business .

Management procedure

In order to adapt the economic financial environment changes and to fulfill the
capital requirement, BOT conducts different pricing management strategies, such
as adopting variable or fixed interest rate, and use financial futures, foreign
exchange swaps, interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate sensitivity gap. To
adjust the interest rate sensitivity gap properly, the risk management department
monitors the ratic of interest rate sensitivity assets to interest rate sensitivity
liabilities, the ratio of NTD capital gap to equity and the interest rate sensitivity gap
of foreign exchange and report monthly to the risk management committee and
board of directors.

Measurement method

BOT uses the Assets and Liabilities Management Information System to identify
interest rate sensitivity assets and liabilities and analyses the maturity gap and
changes of maturity structure as the basis of interest rate risk management and
pricing strategies. They also make proper financial transfer and adjust the capital
structure to lower the liquidity risk and increase the profit.

7y  Other risks

a)

Operational risk and legal risk

BOT has identified, measured and monitored operational risk and legal risk and
also disclosed qualitative and quantitative information in accordance with the
Information of the Capital Adequacy and the Risk Managements and the FSC’s
requirements.
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According the Explanations and Formats of Calculation of Bank’ s Self-Owned
Capital and Risk-Weighted Assets, operation risks is the risk of a change in value
caused by the fact that actual losses, incurred for inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events (including legal risk), differ
from the expected losses. As legal risk is part of the operational risk, where it
involves legal risk to be reported together with the operation risk to the appropriate
management level.

Compliance risks

To conduct the planning, management and execution of BOT’s legal compliance,
the Department of Compliance has set up the Regulations and Guidelines of Legal
Compliance which clearly states the responsibility of the competent unit
(Department of Compliance), the task units (each unit of the head office, Secretary
Department of the Board of directors, Department of Internal Auditing of the Board
of Directors), training unit (Training Institute), and the self-assessment unit (each
operational unit, excluding Department of Internal Auditing Board of Directors).
The Department of Compliance also holds the responsibility of planning, managing
and executing the overall legal compliance of the Bank. For instance, the task unit
should look into potential risks of legal compliance and obtain the opinion and
approval of the department of compliance before new services and products are
introduced to the market or applications are submitted to the authorities for the
approval of sales.

In response to continuous changes in external regulations, the Department of
Compliance prepares the Legislation and Amendment of External Financial
Regulations Checklist to let each operation unit recheck their internal guidelines
and make necessary adjustments in time. The Department of Compliance passes the
information to colleagues about changes in financial regulations related to the
BOT’ s operations to lower the risk of legal compliance. If any operational loss
events involving legal compliance occur and cause loss, they will be reported as
part of operation risk to the appropriate management level.

BOT*s “Declaration of Operation Risk Appetite” stresses that BOT should attach
importance not only to the direct financial loss cause by operational loss events, but
also the indirect loss which might damage its quality of service and reputation. In
view of an internal fraud that may cause enormous loss and seriously jeopardize
reputation, BOT actively establishes the enterprise culture with risk awareness. In
addition to enhance its colleagues’ concept of risk (e.g. collecting and compiling
the information as a report about the concept of risk), and to firmly execute internal
controls, BOT also avoids internal fraud by emphasizing the importance of
compliance with regulations and laws. Any events that may damage BOT’ s
reputation will be reported as part of operation risk to the appropriate management
level,
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In the future, BOT shall meet the requirements proposed by the authorities.
Moreover, BOT will keep collecting domestic and international information and
refer them to other banks’ practical operations to enhance the quantitative
measurement and qualitative management on operation risk, legal risk, compliance
risk and reputation risk.

Money laundering and terrorist financing risks

BOT has established and amended the related policies and procedures in
accordance with the Money Laundering Control Act and related regulations
announced by the FSC, as well as the Template of Directions Governing Anti-
Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism of Banks and the 53
suspicious transaction patterns amended or issued by the bankers association of the
R.0O.C. BOT took the following actions to combat money laundering and terrorism
financing (AML/CFT):

i)  Setting up responsible unit and appoint AML/CFT Responsible Officer

The board of directors of BOT appointed the Chief Compliance Officer to
serve as AML/CFT Responsible Officer, and set up “AML Center” under The
Department of Compliance in January 16, 2017. A Supervisor and a Vice
Supervisor are set up in the center, and the Deputy Chief Compliance Officer
is appointed to serve as the Supervisor, So far, there are 17 members in the
center.

ii)  Setting up AML/CFT Committee

BOT sets up “Legal Compliance, Anti-Money Laundering and Combating
Terrorism Financing Committee (AML/CFT Committee)” according to the
Regulations for Anti-Money Laundering and Combating Terrorism Financing
Committee, Bank of Taiwan. The President is the Chairperson, and the Chief
Compliance Officer is the Vice President of the committee. The managers of
the 18 other departments also serve as the commitiee members. The
AML/CFT Committee is responsible for examining and supervising
AML/CFT related affairs.

iii) Optimizing AML/CFT managerial mechanisms

1. In order to strengthen BOT*s AML/CFT managerial mechanisms, BOT
has already hired independent third parties to audit the effectiveness of
the AML/CFT managerial mechanisms since 2017. Against the findings
of the audit, BOT then would hire external consultants to assist BOT
for improvement if necessary. The external consultants also participated
and provided suggestions in the establishment of BOT’ s AML/CFT
information systems.
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vi)

2. The consulting engagement is divided into three stages, including
“ Anti-Money Laundering and Combating Terrorism Financing
Systern Difference analysis” , “ Anti-Money Laundering and
Combating Terrorism Financing Managerial System Improvement
and Optimization”, and * Managerial System Operation” . By
analyzing the differences between BOT’ s current AML/CFT
operation and the regulatory requirements all over the world, the
consulting engagement focuses on mitigating the differences,
optimizing the mechanisms, and re-examing the effectiveness of
the optimized managerial mechanisms to ensure the perfectness of
the systems.

Setting up and optimizing AML/CFT information systems

According to “Regulations Governing Anti-Money Laundering” Art. 9.1.,
financial institutions should gradually integrate customer information and
transaction data by information systems, for the purpose of enhancing its
capability of account and transaction monitoring. BOT will strengthen its
policies and procedures regarding ongoing monitoring of accounts and
transactions by applying risk-based approach and the assistance of
information systems. In order to verify the effectiveness of the systems,
consultants are hired to condut independent tests, provide recommendations
for setting transaction monitoring thresholds, and continuously optimize the
system.

Establishing AML/CFT area in its internal information network

In order for its employees to have an immediate access to AML/CFT related
information, BOT sets up an AML/CFT website within its internal network.
This measure simplifies the procedures of collecting related information, and
is beneficial to BOT by providing compliance guidance to its employees in
their daily operations.

Training responsible officers and supervisors

l. In order to respond to the announcement of the amendments to
AML/CFT related regulations and to enhance the employees’
understanding of related regulations, BOT hired external expert to hold
orientation training for BOT’ s responsible officers and supervisors.
BOT also held seminars and invited professional lecturer to discuss the
amendments to AML/CFT related regulations and patterns for the
Board of Directors, General President, and responsible officers or
supervisors.
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2. To propagate “Money Laundering Control Act” and related regulations,
the Bank recorded AML/CFT online courses, and requires all
employees to finish the online courses. BOT also drew up
“Understanding AML Q&A™, and held online exam about the Q&A.
BOT requires all its employees to read the Q&A thoroughly and finish
the online exam so as to improve their knowledge on AML related
regulations.

vii) Reporting the properties (including its related interests and their locations)
designated by the Counter-Terrorism Financing Act and suspicious
transactions to Investigation Bureau, Ministry of Justice .

viii) Updating personal information of customers

In order to meet the related AML regulations and improve the customer
database, BOT provides customers with various ways to update their
personal information.

Transfer of financial assets—transferred financial assets without overall derecognition

The transferred financial assets of BOT that are not qualified for de-recognition in the
daily operation are mainly debt securities under repurchase agreements or equity
securities under lending agreements. The right to receive cash flow is transferred and
reflects the associated liabilities to repurchase transferred financial assets at a fixed price
in the future period, BOT cannot use, seli or pledge these transferred financial assets
during the valid transaction period. However, since BOT still bears the interest rate risks
and credit risks, transferred financial assets are not completely derecognized. Analysis of
financial assets without overall derecognition and the associated liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2019
Transferred Transferre
financial Financial d financial Financial
assets book liability assets fair liability
Financial assets type value book value value fair value Net fair
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Issued under repurchase agreement $ 29,964 29,973 29,964 29,973 (9
Financial assets at fair vatue through other
comprehensive income
Issued under repurchase agreement 19,308.726 19,744,196 19,308,726 19,744,196 (435,470)
Deccmber 31, 2018
Transferred Transferre
financial Financial d financial Financial
assets book liability assets fair liability
Financial assets type value book value value fair value Net fair
Financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss
Issued under repurchase agreement § 557,177 5,272,516 5,571,177 5,272,516 304,661
Financial assets at fair vatue through other
comprehensive income
Issued under repurchase agreement 21,193,500 19,805,531 21,193,500 19,805,531 1,387,969
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9)  Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

BOT holds financial instruments which meet the Section 42 of the IAS 32 endorsed by
the FSC. Therefore, the financial instrument will be offset on the balance sheet.

Although BOT does not engage in transactions that meet the offsetting condition in
IFRSs, they have signed the net seitlement contracts of similar agreements with
counterparties, such as global master repurchase agreement, global securities lending
agreement and similar repurchase agreement or reverse repurchase agreement. If both
parties choose to net settle, the abovementioned executable net settlement contracts or
similar agreements will be allowed to be settled in net amount after offsetting the
financial assets and financial liabilities. Otherwise, the transaction will be setiled in gross
amount. However, if one party defaults, the other party could opt for net settling.

The offsetting information of financial assets and financial liabilities is shown below:

December 31, 2019
Financial asscts under offsetting or general agreement of net amount seftlement or similar norms
Total
recognized
financial Net amount
Total Liahilities of financial Relevant amount not offset
recognized  offsetfing on  assets on the on the balance sheet (d)
finanrcial the balance balance Financial Cash
assets sheets shects instrument  received as  Net amount
Description (a) {b) {c)=(a)-(h) {note) collaterals {e)=(c)-(d)
Derivative financial $_10,589,277 - 10,589,277 994,022 2,462,130 7,133,125
assets
December 31, 2019
Financial liabilities under offsetting or general agreement of net amount settlement or simifar norms
Total
recognized  Net amount
financial of financial
Total assets lizbiliticson  Relevant amount not offset
recognized  offsetting on the ¢n the balance sheet (d)
financial the balance balance Financial Pledged
liabilities sheets sheets instrement cash Net amount
Description (2) (b) " (e)=(a)-{b) {note) Collaterals (e)=(c)~{d}
Derivative financial § 14,003,851 - 14,003,851 983.646 425,334 12,594,871
liabilities

Note: Netting settlement agreement and non-cash financial collaterals are included.

December 31, 2018
Financial assets under offsetfing or general agreement of net amount settlement or similar norms

Total
recognized
financial Net amount
Total liabilities of financial Relevant amount not ofiset
recognized  offsetting on  assets on the __ on the balance sheet (d)
financial the balance balance Financial Cash

assets sheets sheets instrument  received as  Nef amount
Description (a) {b) (c)=(a)~(b) (note) collaterals {e)=(c)~(d)
Derivative financial $_ 6,298,504 - 6,298,504 1,735,071 38,214 4,525,21%

assets
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December 31, 2018

Financial liabilities under offsetting or general agreement of net amount settlement or similar norms

Total
recognized  Net amount
: financial of financial
Total asscts liabiliticson  Relevant amount not offset

recognized offsetting on the on the balance sheet (d)
financial the balance balance Financial Pledged
liabilitics sheets sheets instrument cash Net amount
Description (a) {b) {c)=(a)-(b) {note) Collaterals (e)=(c)-(d}
Derijvative financial $_ 4,646,438 - 4,646,438 1,735,071 387,813 2,523,554

{iabilities

Note: Netting settlement agreement and non-cash finaneial collaterals are included.

The subsidiary, BTLI

1)  Risk management system

a)

The structure, organization and the responsibility of the risk management

The risk management structure of BTLI is composed of the Board of Directors, the
risk management committee, the director of the heads of risk management, the
internal audit department, the risk management department and all the operational
units. Their responsibilities are described as follows:

i)  Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the oversight of the Company's
risks. They should identify risks in business operations and ensure the
effectiveness of risk management.

ii)  Risk management committee

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for formulating risk the
management policies and organization functions: (i) establish qualified and
quantified management standards, structure; (ii) regularly report the
performance and provide advice to the Board of Directors.

iii) The Chief Risk Officer is responsible for overseeing the overall risk
management.

iv)  Risk management department

The Risk Management Department is responsible for monitoring, measuring
and evaluating the implementation of the risk management on a daily basis.
The Risk Management Department shall remain independent of other
operational units.

v)  All the operational units

Each department shall identify, measure, response and monitor the risk of
implementation.
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vi)  The internal audit department

186

The internal audit department shall audit the risk management performance of
each department in accordance with the applicable regulations and

legisiations.

b} Risk management procedures and protocols

i)  Risk management procedures include risk identification, risk measurement,
risk response, risk monitoring, data communication and documentation.
Moreover, integrating risk management procedures to an operational level is
helpful to reflect the impact on risk arising from changing in business

environment.

ii) BTLI establishes the relevant risk indicators for the risks in business
operations concerning the procedures, period and frequency of identification,
measurement and evaluation of risk as means of decision making. It also

includes performance evaluation and resource allocation.

iii) After the evaluation and compilation of risks, the appropriate responding

procedure from the Company shall include the followings:

1. Risk averse: to exclude any participation or terminate the operations

and activities.

2. Risk transfer: to reinsure or transfer all or partial risks to a third party.

3.  Risk control: to adopt risk controlling procedures in order to minimize

any impact.

4. Risk tolerance: to tolerate any possible impact of risk by not initiating

procedures as means of changing the probabilities of cutcome.

iv) BTLI establishes a risk monitoring system, timely scrutinize and monitor all
the risks. If a risk is higher than expected or the tolerant limit, the Company

should report and respond accordingly.

v)  The aforementioned risk monitoring and reporting system shall change along
with the adjustment of operating objectives, risk exposure and external
conditions of BTLI, including the effectiveness of the risk management

system and the appropriateness of risk elements.

¢)  Credit risk management

BTLI sets credit limits for each rating and continuous credit risk mechanism for the
credit risk management of securities investment. Performs strict credit analysis
based on the different characteristics of financial instruments in order to control the
credit risk exposure by investment instrument, issuer, counterparty, nation and
industry, and to set the credit limits for each rating. Also prepares its related reports

periodically to ensure it abides by the law.
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BTLI performs strict credit analysis before undertaking mortgage loans and
insurance loans. The mortgage loan policy not only limits the Loan to Value but
also requests the evaluation of personal financial ranking to decide whether or not
to undertake the loan. For the insurance loans, the loan amount shall be under the
policy value reserves of the insurance product.

BTLI uses the Probability of Default (“PD”) and Loss Given Default (“LGD”) to
measure the credit risk of risk related instruments, including the investments
without quoted price in active market and the held to maturity investments. Also
performs pressure tests to evaluate the effect of abnormal credit changes on
investment portfolio as a reference for making corresponding countermeasures.

Liquidity risk management

BTLI manages sufficient cash and cash equivalents so as to cope with its
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Market risk management

BTLI performs evaluations before any financial instruments investiment.
Furthermore, the Company uses VaR model, scenario analysis, stress test, back
test, position limit, risk limit, and stop loss system fo manage market risk derived
from financial investments.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from fravd, unauthorized authorities,
error, omission, inefficiency system failure or external events. BTLI manages the
risk through a control-based environment in which processes are documented,
authorization is independent and transactions are reviewed and monitored.

BTLI sets up operation regulations and internal control system for each product and
operating activity. BTLI also sets emergency management and recovery plan
(Business Continuity Plan) with respect to some events caused by nature or human,
such as the regional disasters, significant infectious diseases, employee’s strikes,
system interruptions and so on. In doing so, BTLI can ensure operations can
continue even if a material incident occurs.

The risk management department monitors the operation risk exposure periodically
and offers suggestions on topics regarding operational risk management. If a
significant operation risk event happens, the risk management department should
immediately prepare a risk management report.
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The insurance risk management

Insurance risk refers to the risk resulting from the assumption of risks transferred
from policy holders and unexpected changes in benefit claims, including product
design and pricing risk, underwriting risk, reinsurance risk, catastrophe risk, claim
risk, provision risk, etc. By implementing appropriate risk management procedures,
such as risk identification and measurement in advance, risk responding and risk
monitoring during the business process, and risk reporting thereafter, the Company
and subsidiaries can limit their potential damage to a reasonable and acceptable
level.

2)  Credit risk

As engaging in financial transactions, BTLI has exposure to credit risk, including issuer
credit risk, counterparty credit risk, and credit risk of underlying assets:

Issuer credit risk is the risk that an issuer of financial debt instruments or a bank will
default and be unable to fulfill the repayment obligation, or go into bankruptcy or
liquidation, and thereby cause BTLI to suffer a financial loss.

Counterparty credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on a transaction and
fail to pay due to price movement in the underlying securities of BTLI’s derivatives,

~ and thereby cause BTLI to suffer a financial loss.

a)

Credit risk of underlying assets is the risk that an underlying asset of an instrument
held by BTLI will have its credit quality weakened, its risk premium increased, or its
credit rating downgraded, or that the issuer will be unable to meet the contractual
obligation, and thereby cause BTLI to suffer a financial loss.

Concentration of Credit Risk

When the transaction of financial instruments is concentrated in a single industry or
region, the ability to oblige the contract would be impacted by similar factors,
thereby causing concentration of credit risk.
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BTLI maintains a diversified portfolio, limits its exposure to any one geographic
region, country or individual creditor and monitors the exposure continuously.
BTLI’s most significant concentrations of credit risk are summarized as follows:

i)  Industry
Petrochemical
liem Finance Government Industry Manofacturing  __ Eleetricity =~ Other

December 31,2019

-
Cash and cash equivalents 3 24,226,460 . . - - .
Receivables 656,567 594,333 - 56,313 21,134 1L112,071
Financial assets at fair value through 10,547,408 2,797,387 - - - -

profit or loss
Financial assets measured at fair value 1,060,207 1,134,114 - - - -

through other comprehensive income
—debt instruments

Financial assets measured at amortized 158,725,434 58,063,781 - 7,770,207 1,801,586 55,441 46]
cost— debt instruments

Other financial assets, net 3,026,800 - - - - -
Loans - - 197,000 . £07,022 8,040,711
Guarantee deposits paid 30,679 5,444,081 - . . 2,436

Petrochemical
Item Finance Government Industry Manufaciuring Electricity QOther
Dacember 31, 2018
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 19,546.772 - - . - -
Receivables 927,224 341,442 - 21,261 7,941 741727
Financial assets at fair value through 6,363,661 2,541,346 - - - -

profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value 1,565,981 373.632 - . _ 102,010
through other comprehensive income
— dedt instruments

Financial assets measared at amonized 196,546,414 35,426,083 - 3.349.879 1,198,535 24,409,278
cost —debt instruments

Orher financial asscts, net 5,655.000 - - - - -

Loans - . 1.415.938 - 20,692 7.979,461

Guarantee deposits paid . 4,446,189 . - - 2,439

ii) Region

Item Taiwan _ America Europe Asia Occania Other

December 31, 2019

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,226,460 - - - - -
Receivables 1,386,948 606,598 200,858 220,076 25,738 -
Financial assets at fair value through 10,355,491 2,797,387 - 191,917 - -

profit or loss
Financial assets measured at fair valve 1,060,207 129,304 - 1,004,810 - -

through other comprehensive income
— debt instruments

Financial assets measured at amoriized 70,129,078 106,523,799 58,160,462 35,090,522 11,902,608 -
cost —debi instruments

Other financial assets, net 3,026,800 - - - - -

Loans 9,044,733 - - - - -

Guarantee deposits paid 5.476.596 - - - - -
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Item Taiwan America Europe Asia Qceania Other

December 31, 2018
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,546,772 - - - . -
Receivables 1,240,876 323,001 375,380 79,624 26,714
Finencial assets at faic valve through 6,348,234 2,541,346 - 15,427 -

profit or loss
Financial assets measured at fair value 1,667,991 373,632 - - - -

through other comprehensive income
—debt instruments.

Financial asscts measured at amortized 70,068,539 92,322,643 43,903,876 18,694,696 £5,940,415 -
cost— debt instruments

Other financial assets, net 5,655,000 - - - - -

Loans 9,416,091 - - - - -

Guarantee deposits paid 5,449.228 - - - - -

b) Credit Quality Analysis of the subsidiary, BTLI:
i)  Categories for credit risk quality

BTLI internally categorizes the credit risk into three levels, which are low
risk, high risk and impaired risk. The definition of each level is as follows:

1.  Low risk: The issuers or the counterparties are rated as robust or above
to fulfill their obligation of the contracts. Even under various negative
news or disadvantageous economic conditions, the companies are
capable of dealing with the situations.

2. High risk: The possibility that the issuers or counterparties fulfill their
obligation is remote and mainly relies on the business environment.
Negative news or disadvantageous economic conditions will lower their
ability and willingness to fulfill their obligation.

Impaired risk: the counterparties or the target did not perform its
obligation according to the contracts, and the potential estimated loss of
BTLI has reached the standard of impairment

|¥5]
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Determination on the credit risk that has increased significantly since initial
recognition

BTLI determines whether the credit risk of financial instruments applying the
impairment requirements in I[FRS 9 increased significantly since the initial
recognition on each reporting date. For this assessment, BTLI considers the
reasonable and supportable information (including forward looking
information) which shows that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. The main considerations include:

1.

Credit business (including related interest receivables)

The main consideration for the credit business is the information
pertinent to overdue status of counterparties. If the contract
payments are overdue for more than 30 days, BTLI determines
that the credit risk of the related financial assets has significantly
increased since initial recognition.

Business Combination Definition
Current: 0 DPD Credit risk has not
significantly increased
M1:1-30/31 DPD Credit risk has
[.oan on real M2: 31-60 DPD significantly increased
cstate

M3: 61-90 DPD

D: 91 DPD/Defaulted Credit has impaired
Mark=Y

Debt investments (including related interest receivables)

If, at the reporting date, the external credit rating of financial
assets has declined equal to or over one credit rating and the
financial assets are classified as high risk, BTLI determines that
the credit risk of financial assets has significantly increased since
initial recognition.
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Details of the correlation between credit risk quality of debt
investments and external credit rating are as follows:

Credit risk quality Credit rating of domestic credit
rating agencies (Taiwan Ratings)
tWAAA

tWAA+
twAA
Low risk twAA-
twA+
twA
twA-~twBBB+
twBBB
twBBB-
wBB+~twBB
High risk twBB-~twB+
twB~twB-
twCCC
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Credit risk quality

Credit rating of international credit
rating agencies (S&P)

Low risk

AAA

AA+

AA

AA-

A+

A

A-

BBB+

BBB

High risk

BBB-

BB+

BB

BB-

B+

B

B-

CCC

All types of credit assets owned by BTLI are not applicable to the
following assumption: if the credit risk of the credit assets is low,
BTLI may consider that the credit risk of financial assets has not
significantly increased since initial recognition.

iiif} Definitions for default and credif impairment of financial assets

BTLI uses the same definitions for default and credit impairment of financial
assets. If one or more of the following conditions are met, BTLI determine
that the financial assets have been defaulted and credit impaired:

1. Quantitative indicators

When financial assets receivables are overdue for more than 90 days.
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Qualitative indicators

If there is evidence that the borrower or the issuer will be unable to pay
the contract, or show that the borrower or the issuer has significant
financial difficulties, such as:

The borrower / issuer has filed for bankruptcy or is likely to file a
bankruptcy.

- The borrower / issuer has died or the company is dissolved.

The financial instrument’ s contract of the borrower's or issuer's has
defaulted.

The financial market of the financial asset disappeared due to the
financial difficulties of the borrower or the issuer.

Due to financial or contractual reasons related to the financial
difficulties of the borrower / issuer, the creditor of the borrower /
issuer gives the borrower a concession that would not have been
considered.

Purchase or originate financial assets at a substantial discount that
reflects the credit losses have occurred.

The aforementioned definition of breach of contract and credit
impairment applies to all financial assets held by BTLI, and is
consistent with the definition used for the purpose of internal credit risk
management for financial assets, and is also applied to the relevant
impairment assessment model.

If a financial asset no longer meets the definition of default and credit
impairment for a period of time, it is deemed to return to the state of
compliance and is no longer considered defaulted and credit impaired.

Write off policy

If there is no realistic prospect of recovery for the financial assets (either
partially or in full), BTLI will write off part or full of the financial assets. The
indications of financial assets which have no realistic prospect of recovery
include:

The loan cannot be recovered in full or in part because the debtors have
dissolved, gone into hiding, reached a settlement, declared bankruptcy,
or for other reasons.
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The collateral and property of the primary/subordinate debtors have
been appraised at a very low value or become insufficient to repay the
loan after the subtraction of senior mortgages; or the execution cost
approaches or possibly exceeds the amount that BTLI might collect
from the debtors where there is no financial benefit in execution.

The primary/subordinate debtor's collateral has failed to sell at
successive auctions where the price of such collateral has been
successively lowered, and there is no financial benefit to be derived
from BTLI 's taking possession of such collateral.

More than two years have elapsed since the maturity date of the non
performing loans or non accrual loans, and the efforts of collection have
failed.

v)  Expected credit loss measurement

1.

Adopted methods and assumptions

For BTLI, if the financial assets are of low credit risk or no significant
increase in credit risk, the 12 month expected credit losses will be
recognized. If the financial assets are significantly increased in credit
risk or the credits have been impaired, the expected credit losses for a
lifetime will be recognized.

In order to measure expected credit losses, BTLI adopts Probability of
default (“PD™), and include Loss given default (“L.GD™) and Exposure
at default (“EAD™), and consider the impact of the time value of money,
to calculate the expected credit losses for 12 months and for a lifetime,
respectively.

Default probability is how likely the issuer or the counterparty breaches
the contract, and the loss given default is the rate of loss due to defauit
by the issuer or the counterparty. The defauit probability and loss given
default used by BTLI, related impairment assessments are based on
domestic credit rating agencies (Taiwan Rating) and international credit
rating agencies (“S&P”), regularly publish information on default rate
and loss given default, or internal historical information (such as credit
losses experience, efc.} and calculate based on current observable data
and forward looking general economic information (such as gross
domestic production} after adjusting historical data.

. .
BTLI uses financial assets at amortized cost to measure Exposure at
default (“EAD™).

(Continued)
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The estimation techniques or material assumptions made by BTLI to
assess expected credit losses have no significant changes during the
year.

vi) Forward looking information considerations

BTLI takes forward looking information into account when judging whether
the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition, and when the expected credit loss is measured. BTLI uses
historical data to analyze and identify the economic factors that affect the
credit risk and expected credit losses of various asset portfolios. Regarding
the economic factors and its impact on expected credit losses vary according
to the types of financial instruments.

1.

Credit business (including related interest receivables)

BTLI provides predicted information of relevant economic factors
(basic economic situation) every season. The information includes the
best estimation of future economic status within a year, and average
long term probability of default predicted by Stepwise Reversion
Method.

The relevant economic factors that BTLI identifies for credit business
in 2019 are chain linked GDP and the total value of import in Taiwan.

Debt investments (including related interest receivables)

The probability of default which BTLI utilizes to assess refated
impairment is based on the information issued by the domestic credit
rating agencies (Taiwan Rating) and international credit rating agencies
(S&P). The aforementioned information includes forward looking
macroeconomic information.

(Continued)
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TATWAN FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5.  In 2019 and 2018, BTLI does not have originated or purchased new
financial assets whose credit are impaired.

c)  Credit risk exposure

i) The gross carrying amounts of receivables with maximum credit risk
exposure are as follows:

Low risk

High risk

Gross carrying amourt
Allowance for impairment

Impairment difference
recognized in zccordance
with the Regulations
Governing the Procedures
for Institutions to Evaluate
Assets and Deal with
Nonperforming
Nonacerual Loans

Tatal

Low nisk

High risk

Gross carrying amount

Allgwance for impairment

Impairment difference
recognized in accordance
with "Regulations
Goveming the Procedures
for Institutions to Evaluate
Assets and Deal with
Nenperforming /
Nonaccrual Loans

Total

Receivables
December 31, 2019
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—aot ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impatred impaired Taotal
s 2,416,737 46 - - 2,416,783
24,044 - 17,213 - 41.257
2,440,781 46 17,213 - 2,458,040
(588) - (17,200) - (17.788)
(34) (34)
§ 2,440,193 46 13 Qadd 2,440.218
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
$ 2,016,660 13 - - 2,016,673
23420 - 17.215 - 40.635
2,046,080 13 17,215 - 2.063,308
(478) - (17,200) - (17.678)
35 (35)
s 2.045.602 13 15 (35) 2.045,595

(Continued)
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The gross carrying amounts of secured loans (including non accrual loans)
with maximum credit risk exposure are as follows:

Current 0~M1

M2~M3

Default (D}

Gross carmying amaunt
Allowance for impairment

Impainnent difference
recoghized in accordance
with "Regulations
Goveming the Procedures
for Institutions to Evaluate
Assets and Deal with
Nonperforming /
Nonaccrual Loans

Total

Curremt 0~M1

M2~M3

Default (D)

Gross camrying amount
Allgwance for impaimmert

Impairmemt difference
recognized in accordance
with "Regulations
Governing the Procedures
for Institutions to Evaluate
Assets and Deal with
Nonperforming /
Nonaccrual Loans

Tetal

Secured loans

December 31, 2019
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
N 3,251,292 - - - 3,251,892
- 14,472 - - 14,472
- - 24.280 - 24.280
3,251,892 14,472 24,280 - 3,290,644
(1,332) (173} {652) - (2,157
(49,092) (49,092)
s 3,250,560 14,299 23,628 (49.092) 3.239.395
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECl.s impaired impaired impaired Total
3 3,548,772 - - - 3,548,772
- 3,271 - - 3271
- - 27.299 - 27.299
3,548.772 3371 27,299 - 3.579.342
(392) 2% (1.002) - (1.423)
(34.274) £54.274)
S 3.548.380 3.242 26.297 (54.274) 3,523,645

1.  Collateral and other credit enhancements

BTLI adopts a series of policies and measures to mitigate credit risks in
relation to credit business, and one of the most common methods is
requesting the borrower for the collateral. BTLI sets up the scope of
collateral that can be recovered and the appraisal, as well as the
managenent and disposing procedures to ensure the credit right. The
major collateral of BTLI is real estate.

(Continued)
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On the other hand, the loan security, terms of collateral, conditions to
offset are addressed in the credit extending contract. The reduced
facility and shortened repayment period or whether or not a loan is
deemed matured are all well defined to mitigate credit risk in case that
the credit event does incur,

The collateral policies and the overall quality of collateral of BTLI do
not change significantly during 2019 and 2018.

BTLI observes the collateral value of financial instruments closely and
determines whether the credit impaired financial assets have further
impairment. The details of credit impaired financial assets and
collateral value which reduces potential losses are as follows:

December 31, 2019
Allowance
for Fair value

Exposures impairment of collateral

Impaired financial assels:

Secured loans (including  § 24,280 (652) 471,013
non-accrual loans)
Gross impaired financial ~ § 24.280 (652) 471,013
assets
December 31, 2018
Allowance
for Fair value

Exposures impairment of collateral

Impaired financial assets:

Secured loans (including  $ 27,299 {1,002) 447,727
non-accrual loans)

Gross impaired financial  § 27,299 (1,002) 447,727
assets

{Continued)
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iti) The gross carrying amounts of financial assets with maximum credit risk
exposure are as follows:

Low ridk

High risk

(3ross camying antount
Allowance for impairment
Total

Low ridk

High risk

Gross cammying amount
Allowance for impairment
Total

Debt instruments measured at amortized cost

D ber 31, 2019
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs, impaired impaired impaired Total
5 277,898,339 - - - 277,898,339
4.000.000 - - - 4.000.000
281,898,339 - - - 281,898,339
(91.870) - - - (51.870)
5 281,806,469 - - - 281,806,469
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Tatal
5 256772413 - - - 256,772,413
4.250.000 - - - 4.250.000
261,022413 . - - 261,022,413
(52.224) - - - (92.224)
§  260,930.189 - - - 260,930,189

The gross carrying amounts of financial assets with maximum credit risk
exposure are as follows:

Credit rating

Gross carrying amount
Allowance for impainnent
Fair value adjustmenis
Total

Low risk

Gross camying amount
Alopwance for impairment
Fair value adjustments
Total

Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2012
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
ECLs—not ECLs— asscts—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired imypaired Total
$ 2,112,310 - - - 2112310
2,112,310 - - - 2112310
(742) - - - {742)
82.011 82.011
5 2.193.579 - - - 2.193.579
December 31,2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financizl
ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
12 month ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
$ 2,010,948 - - - 2.010.948
2,010,948 - - - 2,010,948
(429) - - . {429)
30.675 30.675
5 2,041,194 - - - 2,041,194

(Continued)
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v)  The amount of maximum credit risk exposure of the financial instruments not
applicable to impairment requirements is as follows:

Debt instruments

Liquidity Risk

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
$ 11,218,293 8,657,031

The followings are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, inchiding estimated
interest payments but excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Derivatives settled in net

December 31, 2019
1 year 1~2 years 2~5 years Over S years Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange derivatives s (12,297) 1,680 - - (10,617)
Derivatives settled in net
December 31,2018
1 year 1~2 years 2~5 years Over 5 vears Total
Financial liabilities measured at fair
value through profit or Ioss
Foreign exchange derivatives b) (25.453) - - - (25.453)
Derivatives settled in total
December 31, 2018
1 vear 1~2 vears 2~5 vears Over 5 years Total
Financial linbilities measured a1 fair
vafue through profit or loss
—Foreign exchange outflow s (31,700,100} - - - 31,700,100}
—Foreign exchange inflow 31.425.580 - - - 31.425.580
Subtotal of outflows s (31,700,100) - - - (31.700,100)
Subtotal of inflows s 31.425,580 - - - 31.425.580
Net cash flows S (274.5200 - - - {274,520}
Maturity analysis of non-derivative:
December 31, 2019
Assets 1 year 1~2 years 2~5 years Over § years Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,234,187 - - - 24,234,187
Receivables 51,184 - - - 51,184
Non derivative financial assets measured at 577,325 543,467 2,604,118 18,259,865 21,984,775
faiy value through profit or loss
Financial assets measured at fair 962,747 48,104 144,337 2,215,526 3,370,714
value through other
comprehensive income
Financial assets measured at amortized 56,574,813 16,955,351 32,995,089 481,137,491 587,662,784
cost
Other financial assets, net 3,047,489 - - - 3,047 489
Guareniee deposits paid - - - 5.444.081 5.444.081
Total assets $ 85,447,745 17,546,962 35,743.544 507,056,963 645,795.214
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December 31, 2019
Liabilitics 1 vear 1~2 vears 2~5 vears Over § vears Total
Payables 3 760,346 - - - 760,345
Lease liabilities 7422 3.875 4225 - 15.522
Total liabilities 3 767,768 3.875 4225 - 775.868
December 31, 2018
Asscts 1 year 1-2 vears 2~5 vears Over 5 vears Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,551,550 - - - 19,551,550
Receivables 13,293 - - - 13,293
Non derivative financial assets measured at 485,072 463,705 2,762,601 12,002,713 15,714,091
fair value through profit or Joss '
Financial assets measured at fair 629217 927,165 36,941 574,158 2,167,481
value through ather
comprehensive income
Financial assets measured at amortized 34,942,576 18,948,411 16,053,286 563,454,382 633,398,655
cost
Other financial assets, net 5,682,293 - - - 5,682,293
Guarantee deposits paid - - - 5.446.789 5.446.789
Total assets 5 61,304,001 20,339.281 18,852.828 581,478,042 681,974,152
Liabilities 1 year I~ years 2~5 years Qver 5 vears Total
Payables $ 758.694 - - - 758.694
Total liabilities 5 758,694 - - - 758.694

4y  Market Risk

a)  Exchange rate risk

i)  The significant exchange rate risk exposure of the financial assets and

liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31,2018
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD currency rate NTD
Einancial assets
AUD $ 102,083 21.0150  2,145.278 248,272 21,6550 5,376,337
CAD 26,244 22 9800 603,086 25,230 22.5800 569.702
EUR 1,901 33.6400 63,964 4,963 35,1800 174,605
HKD 3 3.8510 1t 388,380 3.9230 1,523,613
usD 7,207,880 29.9900 216,164,314 6,104,321 30.7350 187,616,295
CNY 1,063,840 42950 4,569,193 1,669,776 4.4690 7462229
SGD 80,070 22.2600 1,782,363 76,733 22.4400 1,721,892
Financial liabilities
usD 864,189 29.9900 25,517,042 758,633 30.7350 23,316,597
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The concentration of the exchange rate risk is as follows:

December 31, 2019
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Usn AUD HKD EUR CAD NZD CRY JBY ZAR SGD Taotal
$ 3152264 54.291 19,077 241 31,653 . n 3259818
3.136,925 44,8587 - - - 8,170,812
LI - - - [REIR)E)
596,765 13,381 11 62,419 - 1082476
202,252,080 1067606 600,675 4475121 1782341 211,677.823
5 216,062,148 2,045,278 1 63,964 603 086 - 4569193 - - 1,782.343 228,326,043

December 31, 2019

USD AUD HKD EUR CAD NZD CNY JPY ZAR ZAR Toial
s 12852 - - - - 12,852
99,562 - - - - 99,562
25,804,618 - - - 25.801.628
S 25917042 - - . - - 15217042

Note: December 31, 2019: | USD = 29.990 NTD: | AUD =21.015 NTD: 1 HKD = 451 NTD: | EUR = 33.64 NTD; | CAD = 22,98 NTD; ) NZID = 20.20 NTD 1 CNY = 4.295 NTD; 1 JPY <0.2761 NTI); | ZAR =2.12 NTD; |

86D =122 26 NTD

Forclpn financial aysels

Cash and cash cquivalenls
Finaneial assets ot foir valoe drovgh
peofsLor loss

Financial assels meastred at fair
value through ather
comprchensive incame

Loonsand receivables

Financial assets measured a1
amwrtized ¢ost

Tuotal

Furcign financial liabilitics

Payables
Temporary Credits
Insurance lizbilities

Total

December 31, 2418

usn AUD HKD EUR CAD NZD CNY JPY ZAR SGD Total
5 1,526,182 21.219 MH,598 8,19% 2358 253088 22 L614.066
1724026 1428611 168406 9.371.043%
37602 - - 373032
366,645 247,303 4 122,114 - B6,060
176147312 5107815 567344 7317027 1721870 190.861 568
S 1372371197 §376337 15234613 174895 69,702 - 7482229 - - 1.721.8%2 204,066,175

Decenber 31, 2018

Usn AUD HKD EUR CAD KNZD CRY JPY ZAR ZAR Tatal
§ 7430 - 7430
48,200 - 482006
23.360.561 - - - 23.260.561
5 23316597 - - - - - - 23,316,557

Note: December 31, 2018: 1 USD = 30.735 NTD: 1 AUD = 21655 NTD, $ HKD = 3.923NTD; 1 EUR = 3518 NTD; | CAD = 22.58 NTD: | NZI»= 20,63 NT: 3 CNY =4469NTD, | JPY = 02T NTD; | ZAR =212

NTL ] SGD= 2244 NTI.

b)

Interest rate risk

The changes in the interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities were

addressed in the notes of liquidity risk management of BTLL

The sensitivity analysis represents the interest rate risk exposure of the derivatives
and non derivatives at the reporting date. The risk of interest rate is mainly derived
from the risk of interest reprising, The measurement of monitoring account interest
rate risk is to compute the reprising gap of risk sensitive assets/ liabilities and to
develop risk standard as the monitoring benchmark. Its measurements are to set the

interest rate, which increases or decreases 50 basis points to evaluate the risk.
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Sensitivity analysis

The subsidiary, BTLI, uses risk value analysis and sensitivity analysis to manage
the market risk. The sensitivity analysis is used as the basis for BTLI to perform
risk analysis, risk alarming and business management. The sensitivity analysis
measures the effects of changes in each risk factors on the value of the portfolios,
easier for BTLI to realize the influences of risk factors in possible extreme
variation on the portfolios.

Units: In 100 Millions of NTD

December 31, 2019
Amount Influence
Main risk Range Equity Gain or loss
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currencies / NTD 4.65 38.33
rise 5%
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currencies / NTD (4.65) (38.33)
fall 5%
[nterest rate risk [nterest rate curve rises 50BPS (29.45) -
[nterest rate risk Interest rate curve falls S50BPS 30.75 -
Price of equity stock risk |[Price of equity stock rises 10% 39.70 -
(Moenetary market funds rises 2%} (39.70) -
Price of equity stock risk [Price of equity stock falls 10%
Monetary market funds rises 2%)

Units: In 100 Millions of NTD

December 31, 2018
Amount Influence
Main risk Range Equity Gain or loss
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currencies / NTD 4.84 39.24
rise 5%
Exchange rate risk Other foreign currencies / NTD (4.84) (39.24)
fall 5%
[nterest rate risk [nterest rate curve rises 50BPS (13.15) -
[nterest rate risk [nterest rate curve falls S0BPS 16.13 -
Price of equity stock risk [Price of equity stock rises 10% 29.41 -
Monetary market funds rises 2%) (29.41 -
Price of equity stock risk [Price of equity stock falls 10%
(Monetary market funds rises 2%)
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5)

The nature and scope of the Insurance Contract Risk

a)

Information of insurance risk

i)

Sensitivity of insurance risk — Insurance contracts and financial instruments
with discretionary feature:

December 31, 2019
Changes in Changes in
Change in profit or loss  shareholder’s
assumption before tax equity |
Death rate X141 {9,413) (7,530)
Morbidity X141 (46,935) (37,548)
Contract Default Rate X0.9 (34,408) (27,256)
Expense X1.1 (275,384) (220,307)
Ratio of Return on (0.25)% (886,404) (709,123)
Investment
December 31, 2018
Changes in Changes in
Change in profit or loss  shareholder’s
assumption before tax equity

Death rate X1.1 (9.870) (7,896)
Morbidity X1.1 (47,070) {37,656)
Contract Default Rate X0.9 (35.856) (28,685)
Expense X1.1 (260,859) (208,687)
Ratio of Return on (0.25)% (830,881) {664,705)
Investment

The interpretation for the concentration of insurance risk

BTLI does not target its insurance product at any group, age or gender.
Insurance service area includes the whole Taiwan. In order to increase its
management in insurance risk, BTLI established "BankTaiwan Life [nsurance
reinsurance management plan” to further implement all sorts of risk managing
strategies. As a result, the concentration risks are minimal.

(Continued)
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1. Development trend of direct business loss
The development trends of the accumulated claims for the past ten
years on December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
2019
Occurrence Devel vear Claim
rear 1 2 3 4 5 [ 7 3 9 10 Provision
2010 152429 | 200447 207,531| 208,831 208,911| 209,021| 209039 205,070 209,093| 209,134 -
2011 157,164 | 202,797| 210,339 210,855| 210,897| 210,90¢| 210943 211,012| 211,857 211,924 &7
2012 172,033 | 2250261 228,896| 229148| 229226| 229243 229249 22930%) 229,731 | 229805 496
2013 183,057 239,642 244,851 | 245,084 245515| 246,094 | 246,)54] 246,200| 246791 | 246860 706
2014 192,357 | 239493| 247,394 | 249,777| 250,065| 250,156 | 250,193 250,254| 250,703 | 250,782 626
2015 192,869 242,805 247428 248,088 248283 | 248,431 248469 248,533 | 248977 249,057 74
2016 186,359 243,701 | 248,963 | 250,877| 250,756 250,08 250,945 251,604| 251,505 251,580 1,003
2017 200,818 | 239966 270,252 271,546 271,734 271,896 271,936| 272,001| 272,510 272,593 2,341
2018 173,367 | 226,413 | 232,.494| 233,556 233,723 | 233,866 233,903 | 233,965| 234,3%4| 234473 8,060
2019 150,586 | 195,006) 200,494 201,451 ( 201,594] 201,717| 201,745 201,782] 202,194} 202254 51,668
Provision for unreported and within Lyear unpaid claims 65,741
Add: over 1 year reported but unpaid claims 22075
Unreportted provision claims 87.816
2018
QOccurrence Development vear Claim
| year 1 1 3 4 5 [ 7 § 9 10 Provision
2009 160,616 | 2022661 207,255| 208,577| 208,657| 208,739 203,740| 208740 208,743 | 208,783 -
2010 150,536 | 2002841 207.399| 208,70C| 208,778| 205,889 208,907| 208937] 208,961 209,006 45
2011 158,363 | 205.032| 210,554 | 2Jt,065F 211,107 20E10] 211,153 211,222) 211,233 | 211,278 56
2012 174,121 224,805 | 228,749| 219,003 | 229,080| 229,096 239102| 229.140] 229,i51| 229,197 95
2013 184,487 240404 | 246,748 | 247020| 247450 248.029| 248048 | 248084| 245100 248,154 125
2014 194,819 238,026 | 245923 248279 248,542 | 248688| 248,709 | 248,749| 245.761| 248,809 267
2015 194,813 243357 248,027 248,696 248,847 248997 245.017| 249058 249.070| 249,120 424
2016 189,755 F 244369 249639 | 250,847] 251,006 251,160 251,179 251,218) 251,231 251,282 1,643
2017 202,733 | 259431 266,039 267312 267476 267636| 267658| 2677001 267.713| 267,766 2335
2018 176,786 | 235563 | 231264 232299| 232,443 | 232587 232,607f 232,647| 232,659 232,706| 355920
Provision for unreporied and within 1year unpaid claims 66,910
Add: over 1 year reported but unpaid claims _18.396
Unreported provision claims __85306
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2. Development trend of retained business loss

The development trends of the accumulated claims for the past ten
years on December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019
Oceurrence Development vear Claim

year 1 2 3 4 5 L3 7 -] 9 10 Provision
2010 144,995 | 189,570) 196,377 197,571] 197,651| 192,761 197,780 197.810 197,834 | 197,394 -

2011 151,666 | 195,551 | 202,714 203,226| 203,271| 203,274| 203,317 203,386 203,981 204,048 67
2012 164,825 | 217,019 | 220888 221,h40| 221,219 225235] 221,241| 221,301 221,699 221772 471
2013 175,908 | 229493 | 234302] 234,535| 234,966) 235,545| 235,605[ 235660 236,193 | 236,263 658
2014 189857 | 234,578 | 242475 244,862 245,150 245241 245,278 245339] 245,764 245,843 602
2015 191,275 | 239,146| 243,628 | 244,288 244,483 | 244,628] 244,666 | 244,730 245155| 245,235 752
2016 183,641 | 240983 | 246,245| 247859} 248,035| 248,186 248222| 245.28]1| 248770 248,845 986
2017 198,068 | 254915| 264,801 | 26606) | 266245| 266,404 | 266,444| 2665099 267,001} 267,084 2,283
2018 170,662{ 223,709 229688 [ 230,734 236,898| 231,040| 231,077 231,13%] 231,559 231,638 7,929
2019 149,086 | 193,136| 198579] 199,523 | 199,665 199,787| [99,815) 199,862 200260( 200320 51,234

2018
Orcurrende Development year Claim

year 1 2 3 4 B 6 7 5 9 10 Provision
2009 153,588 | 193,488 [ 198,157 199,358| 199,438 199.521| 199,521 | 199,522 199,524 | 199,565 -

2019 143,101 | 189407} 196,245 197440 197,508| 197629 197647 197.677) 192,701 197,744 43
2011 152,753 | 195,787 202,928 | 203,439 20348F| 203,484 203,527 203,596} 203.607| 203,650 5
2012 166,896 216,798 220,742 . 220,995 | 221,073] 221,08%( 221,094] 221,132 221,143} 221,187 93
2013 177338 | 230.255| 236,199 236471| 236901| 237480 237.499| 237,835 237,550 237,601 121
2044 192,319 233,110| 241.007| 243364 243,626 243,769| 243,789 243,830} 2438411 243887 261
2015 193,219 | 239,697 | 244.207| 244,896 245043 | 245,180| 245210 Z4528F) 2452621 245311 415
2016 187,037 241,651 | 246921 ] 248110| 248266 2484K8| 2485437 Z4BAT6| 245,489 248539 1.61%
2617 199,083 | 254,781 261,234 262470| 262,630 2627887 262,810 262852| 262,865| 262,917 5,136
2018 174,831 | 223.069| 228690| 229,706{ 229,848 | 229991 | 230,011| 230,051( 230,062 230708] 55277
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b)

BTLI provides claim reserve based on the expected future
payments and relevant compensation processing cost of reported
and unreported claims. In computation of such provision involves
vast uncertainty, estimates and judgments, and is highly
complicated. Any changes of estimation and judgment are
regarded as changes in accounting estimates and the amount of
changes is recognized in profit or loss. Some customers may be
delayed to inform the claims to BTLI. In addition, when
estimating the potential compensation of unreported claims, it
involves vast past experience and subjective judgment; therefore,
it is not able to confirm that the estimated reserve for claims on
the balance sheet date will be the same as the actual
compensation. The estimate of reserve for claims is based on the
information currently available; however, the final result may be
different from the original estimation due to the subsequent
development.

The above table shows the development trend of claims
(excluding the claims of which the compensation will be
confirmed in a year), The vertical shaft represents the year when
the claim event occurred, and the horizontal shaft represents the
development years. Every slash represents the accumulated
compensation at the end of each year. The compensation refers to
the claims whether they are ruled or not. It explains how BTLI
estimates the compensation of each year as time passes by. The
scenario and trend which affect the amount of reserve for claims
may not be consistent in the future; therefore, the estimated future
compensation cannot be determined by the claim development
trend revealed in the above table.

Credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk of insurance contracts

i)

Credit risk

December 31,2019

Credit rating

Name agent Credit rating Date of rating

Central Re S&P A 2013.06.10
Munich Re S&P AA- 2006.12.22
Swiss Re S&Pp AA- 2011.10.28
Cologne Re S&P AA+ 2010.02.04
Gibraltar Re S&P A+ 2015.09.17
France Re S&P AA- 2015.09.07
Dai-ichi Mutual Life S&P A 2014.11.26
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i)

December 31, 2018
Credit rating
Name agent Credit rating  Date of rating

Central Re S&P A 2013.06.10
Munich Re S&P AA- 2006.12.22
Swiss Re S&P AA- 2011.10.28
Cologne Re S&P AA+ 2010.02.04
Gibraltar Re S&P . A+ 2015.09.17
France Re S&P AA- 2015.09.07
Dai-ichi Mutual Life S&P A+ 2014.11.26

Liquidity risk

Formulating relative actuarial assumption including death rate, contract
default rate, expense, commission expense, morbidity and declared interest
rate, by the actual rate of occurrence and valid insurance contract, without
considering premium income from new contracts and beginning cash
equivalent, of Conventional Insurance Product, Universal Life Insurance
Product, Interest Sensitive Annuity Insurance Product, Participating Policy
and Foreign Cuwrrency Policy up fo December 31, 2019, the Company
estimate future cash flow of provisions found that there will be negative value
of net cash flow from assets and liabilities in next 10 years. However, after
considering premium income from mnew contracts and beginning cash
equivalent, the circumstance of cash flow from assets and liabilities
mismatching may not occur.

The maturity analysis of insurance and investment contract liabilities on
December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Units: In Millions of NTD
Undiscounted expected cash outflow (inflow) on December 31, 2019

< 12 months 1~5 years >5 years total

b (18,242) 55,113 1,090,798 % 1,127,669
Undiscounted expected cash outflow (inflow) on December 31, 2018
< 12 months 1~5 years >3 years total

$ {15,657) 41,703 965,815 § 991,861

Market risk

Market risk in insurance contracts refers to the adverse changes in the market
resulting in the returns on investment lower than the forecasted interest rate.
As a result, insurers are subjected to financial losses. Considering BTLI" s
forecasted interest rate with the return on investment for the year ended
December 31, 2019, the undertaken risk is within the acceptable level.

¢) Information regarding risk exposure for embedded insurance contracts not
measured using fair value: None.

(Continued)
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6)  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

BTLI engages in the transactions of financial instruments that meet the offsetting
conditions set forth in paragraph 42 of 1AS 32 endorsed by the FSC. Those transactions
are presented at the net amount on the balance sheet.

BTLI also engages in the transactions on repurchase agreement or reversed repurchase
agreement that do not meets the offsetting condition. Such transactions include global
master repurchase agreement, global securities lending agreement and related
agreements. If both parties agree to settle the transactions on a net basis, BTLI can settle
the transactions by netting the assets and liabilities. 1f there are no such agreements,
BTLI shall settle the transaction on a gross basis. However, one party can choose to settle
a transaction on a net basis if the other party defaults.

The offsetting information of financial assets and financial liabilities. is shown below:

December 31, 2019
Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
Recognized Net financial

financial assets
liabilities reported  Related amount not offset in
Recognized  offset in the in the the balance sheet (d)
financial balance balance Financial Cash
asscts sheet shect instruments collateral Net
Description (a) (b) (c)=(a)-(b) {Note) received (e)=(¢)-(d)
Derivative financial § 2,126,502 - 2,126,502 1.654 - 2,124.848
assets
December 31, 2019
Financial liabilities subject to offsctting, enforccable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
Recognized
financial  Nef firancial
assets offset liabilities  Related amount not offset in
Recognized in the reporied in the balance sheet (d)
financial balance the balance  Financial Cash
liabilities sheet sheet instruments collateral Net
Deseription {a) (b) (c)=(a)-(h) {Note) received {e)=(c)-(d)
Derivative financial § 58.105 - 58,105 58,105 - -
liabilities

Note: Include masler netting arrangement and non-cash collateral.

December 31, 2018
Financial assets subject to offsctting, enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
Recognized Net financial

financial assets
liabilities reported  Related amount nof offset in
Recognized  offset in the in the the balance sheet (d)
financial balance balance Financial Cash
assets sheet sheet instroments collateral Net
Description (a) (b) (c)=(a)-(h) {Note) received {e}=(c)-(d)
Derivative financial §___ 247.976 - 247,976 124,933 - 123,043

assets
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December 31, 2018
Financial liabilities subject 1o offsetting, enforceable masier netting arrangement or similar agreement
Recognized
financial  Net financial
assets offset liabilities  Related amount not offset in

Recognized in the reported in the balance sheet (d)
financizl balance the balance  Financial Cash
liabilities sheet sheet instruments collateral Net
Deseription (a) (b) (c)=(a)-(h) {Note) received (e)=(c)~(d)
Derivative financial § 148,789 - 148,789 148,789 - -

liabilities
Note: Include master netting arrangement and non-cash collateral.

The Subsidiary, BTS
1) Risk Management Strategies and Organization Structure

The risk management strategies are the highest principles for BTS’s risk management
system. The risk management strategies include the risk management principles, the
scope, the authority, the procedures and so on.

The risk management strategies are designed to measure various risks including market
risks, credit risks, liquidity risk, operational risks, legal risks, strategy risks, reputation
risks and so on. The business units are required to identify the potential risks and offer a
risk management plan to the management in the course of conducting business.

The risk management mechanism is as follows:

a)  Measure, monitor and control every risk under an affordable level in order to
achieve the goal of the risk management.

b)  Build risk indicators and precaution system to conduct proper risk monitar.

¢) Establish a communication mechanism to report the complete risk information to
the management periodically or properly, to announce to the subordinate units and
to communicate between different departments; and to disclose to the public
according to the regulations.

d)  Assessing risk and preparing paper work before creating new business or products,
changing operating process, or developing information system.

¢) Enforcing the professional knowledge and training, and hamess risk sensitivity
within the corporation culture.

BTS sets a risk management department which is directly responsible to the general
manager to ensure that the risks are well-controlled. The risk management organization
of BTS is composed of the Board of Directors, the risk management committee, the risk
management department and business units. Through a proper division of authority and
responsibility, BTS establishes a risk management culture to make sure that the risk
management system operates effectively.

(Continued)
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Financial risk management

i)  Market risk

219

Market risk is the risk that BTS will suffer losses due to the changes in

market interest rate, exchange rate or the security price fluctuation.

BTS manages its market risk through the following risk management

mechanism:

1. The content, range of transaction, and authorization of levels should be

clearly defined.

2. Risk should be identified, measured, supervised, and controlied while
operating financial instrument, the risk undertaken should be within the

risk appetite of BTS.

3,  [Establishing risk target of market, precaution system, overrunning
handling, and communication system to take proper policy of market

risk, in order to accomplish fully supervising and prevention.

4, Establishing market risk information management system, including
transaction system, operating system, and risk management system to
define the responsibility, ensure the independence of the system, and

keep the system proper and in balance.

5. Create a model of market risk to assess and express the exposure of

BTS; furthermore, to systematically manage the risk exposed.

6.  Assessing market risk and preparing paper work before creating
financial instrument, changing operating process, or developing
information system and explore new financial services and products.

7.  Enforcing the professional knowledge and training, and harness risk

sensitivity within the corporation culture.

ii)  Creditrisk

The causes of credit risk are derived from both balance sheet and off balance
sheet items. The major credit risks arise from discounts and loans,
investments, over-due receivables, risk mitigation instruments (such as
collaterals, guarantees and hedge instruments), securities financing, and

derivatives.

The subsidiary, BTS, uses the following mechanism to manage credit risks:

1.  Formulate the acceptable business and transactions and the division of

the authority and responsibility.

2. Identify, measure, monitor and control the risks in the course of

business.

{Continued)
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iii)

3.  Establish the credit risk indicators, the credit rating management, the
alarm system, the communication mechanism to improve and prevent
the risk supervision.

4. Establish a complete credit risk information system and define the
access rights to ensure that the credit risk monitoring operafes
independently.

5. Build a quantification model of credit risk to assess the exposures.

6. Assess credit risk and prepare paper work before creating financial
instrument, changing operating process, or developing information
system and new financial services and products.

7. Enforce the professional knowledge and training, and hamess risk
sensitivity within the corporation culture.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes market liquidity risk and capital liquidity risk
(financial risk). Market liquidity risk is the risk of facing market price
movement in processing or offsetting assets caused by a low-volume market.
Capital liquidity risk, on the other hand, is the risk of default at maturity due
to inability to sell assets or obtain sufficient capital.

BTS has different policies in accordance with capital demands for different
kinds of business aiming to effectively monitor market liquidity risk. The
risk management department is in charge of the overview of capital and
conducts a daily review to respond to system risk and capital demand in
abnonmal conditions.

In order to enhance the fund lquidity, BTS requests all business units to
report the cash flow status every day. In addition, BTS also maintains
sufficient cash and convertible securities consistently.

BTS’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions. 1f BTS is unavailable to meet its obligations,
the following emergency plans should be used:

1.  Ask for a loan from the financial institutions.

2.  Sell the short-term securities, government bonds or corporate bonds.
3. Adjust the financing rate and the LTV ratio.
4

Sell the stocks of listed company and funds.

(Continued)
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2)

iv)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from fraud, unofficial authorities,
error, omission, inefficiency system failure or external events. BTS manages
the risk through a control-based environment in which processes are
documented, authorization is independent and transactions are reviewed and
monitored.

If any risk loss is defined, the business umit shall report it to the risk
management department before the end of the month. The risk management
depariment shall build an operational risk loss database to summarize,
analyze and offer suggestions to the risk management committee or the Board
of Directors.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparties of the financial instruments held by BTS and
BTS's clients will default on the contracts, and thereby cause BTS to suffer a financial

loss.

The main considerations are the financial debts instruments and account

receivables.

BTS has exposure to credit risk, including issuer credit risk, counterparty credit risk, and
credit risk of underlying assets.

Issuer credit risk is the risk that an issuer of financial debt instruments or a bank will
default and be unable to fulfill the repayment obligation, or go into bankruptcy or
liquidation, and thereby cause BTS to suffer a financial loss.

Counterparty credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on a transaction and
fail to pay due to price movement in the underlying securities of BTS’ s financial
instrument derivative, and thereby cause BTS to suffer a financial loss.

Credit risk of underlying assets is the risk that an underlying asset of an instrument
held by BTS will have its credit quality weakened, its risk premium increased, or its
credit rating downgraded, or that the issuer will be unable to meet the contractual
obligation, and thereby cause BTS to suffer a financial loss.

Categories for credit risk quality

BTS internally categorizes the credit risk into three levels, which are low risk, high
risk and impaired risk. The definition of each level is as follows:

D

i)

Low risk: The issuers or the counterparties are rated as robust or above to
fulfill their obligation of the contracts. Even under various negative news or
disadvantageous economic conditions, BTS is capable of dealing with the
situations.

High risk: The possibility that the issuers or counterparties fulfill their
obligation is remote and mainly relies on the business environment. Negative
news or disadvantageous economic conditions will Jower their ability and
willingness to fulfill their obligation.

{Continued)
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{if) Impaired risk: the counterparties or the target did not perform its obligation
according to the contracts, and the potential estimated loss of the Company
has reached the standard of impairment

Determination on the credit risk that has increased significantly since initial
recognition

BTS determines whether the credit risk of financial instruments applying the
impairment requirements in IFRS 9 increased significantly since the initial
recognition on each reporting date. For this assessment, BTS considers the
reasonable and supportable information (including forward looking information)
that shows the credit risk increased significantly since initial recognition (including
forward looking information). The main considerations include: internal/external
credit rating, overdue situation, credit spreads, other marketing information relating
to the borrowers, issuers or the counterparties, and other financial instruments of
the same borrower have significantly increased their credit risk.

Definitions for default and credit impairment of financial assets

BTS uses the same definitions for defauit and credit impairment of financial assets.
If one or more of the following conditions are met, BTS determine that the
financial assets have been defaulted and credit impaired.:

i) Qualitative indicators

If there is evidence that the counterparty or the issuer will be unable to pay
the contract, or show that the borrower or the issuer has significant financial
difficulties, such as:

I.  The counterparty / issuer has filed for bankruptcy or is likely to file a
bankruptcy.

2. The financial instrument’s contract of the counterparty's or issuer's has
defaulted.

3. The financial market of the financial asset disappeared due to the
financial difficulties of the counterparty or the issuer.

4.  Purchase or originate financial assets at a substantial discount that
reflects the credit losses have occurred.

iiy If a financial asset no longer meets the definition of default and credit
impairment for a period of time, it is deemed to return to the state of
compliance and is no longer considered defaulted and credit impaired.

The aforementioned definition of breach of contract and credit impairment
applies to all financial assets held by BTS, and is consistent with the
definition used for the purpose of internal credit risk management for
financial assets, and is also applied to the relevant impairment assessment
model.

(Continued)
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d)

Expected credit loss measurement

i)

Adopted methods and assumptions

For BTS, if the financial assets are of low credit risk or no significant
increase in credit risk, the 12 month expected credit losses will be recognized.
If the financial assets are significantly increased in credit risk or the credits
have been impaired, the expected credit losses for a lifetime will be
recognized.

In order to measure expected credit losses, BTS adopts Probability of default
(“PD™), and include Loss given default (“LGD”) and Exposure at default
("EAD"), and consider the impact of the time value of money, to calculate the
expected credit losses for 12 months and for a lifetime, respectively.

Default probability is how likely the issuer or the counterparty breaches the
contract, and the loss given default is the rate of loss due to default by the
issuer or the counterparty. The default probability and loss given default used
by BTS, related impairment assessments are based on domestic credit rating
agencies (Taiwan Rating), regularly publish information on default rate and
loss given default, or internal historical information (such as credit losses
experience, etc.) and calculate based on current observable data and forward
locking general economic information (such as gross domestic production
and GDP growth rate) after adjusting historical data.

BTS measures the exposure at default ("EAD") based on the amortized cost
of financial assets.

The estimation techniques or material assumptions made by BTS to assess
expected credit losses have no significant changes during 2019 and 2018.

Forward looking information considerations

BTS takes forward looking information into account when judging whether
the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition, and when the expected credit loss is measured.

BTS related impairment assessments are based on domestic credit rating
agencies (Taiwan Rating), regularly publish information on default rate and
loss given default, and regulate based on forward looking general economic
information.

{Continued)
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Credit risk exposure

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum exposure
amount. The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents $ 99,673 80,192
Financial assets measured at fair value 601,388 448,315
through profit or loss—current
Financial assets measured at fair value 1,818,405 982,041
through other comprehensive income —
current
Financial assets measured at amortized - §9,380
cost
Loans and receivables 6,688,993 4,944,495
Other receivables (note) 321 1.427
$ 9,208,780 6,545,850

The gross carrying amounts of financial assets with maximum credit risk exposure
are based on risk rating as follows:

Debt instruments measurcd at fair value through other comprehensive income
December 31,2019

Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased

Lifetime Lifetime new financial
12 month ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
Low risk $ 1.818.405 - - - 1.818.405
Gross carrying amount 1,818,405 - - - 1,818,405
Allowance for (356) - - - (556)
impairment
Total b 1817849 - - - 1,517.849
Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
December 31, 2018
Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased
Lifetime Lifetime new financial
12 mooth ECLs--not ECLs— assets—
ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
Low risk $ 982.041 - - - 982,041
Gross cammying amount 982,041 - - - 982,041
Aliowance for (169) - - - (169)
impairment
Total 5 981,872 - - - 981.872

(Continued)
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Debt instruments measured at amortized cost

December 31, 2018

Credit
impairments
of originated
or purchased

Lifetime Lifetime new financial
12 month ECLs—not ECLs— assets—
ECLs impaired impaired impaired Total
Low risk g 89.380 - - - 89.380
Gross canrying amount 89,380 - - - 89,330
Allowance for - - - - -
impairment
Total § 89,380 - - - 82,380

The amount of maximum credit risk exposure of the financial instruments not

applicable to impairment requirements is as follows:

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

Debt instruments S 509,312

440,121

The maximum exposure amounts by regions are as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2019 2018
{Taiwan) (Taiwan)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 99,673 80,192
Financial assets measured at fair value 601,388 448,315
through profit or loss—current
Financial assets at fair value through other 1,818,405 982,041
comprehensive income— current
Financial assets measured at amortized - 89,380
cost
Loans and receivables 6,688,993 4,944 495
Other receivables (note) 321 1,427
S 9.208.780 6.545.850
The maximum exposure amounts by counterparties are as follows:
Other
Exchange Finance companics  Individuals Total
December 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ - 99,673 - - 99,673
Financial assets measured at fair - 130,886 470,502 - 601,388
value through profit or loss—
current
Financial assets at fair value - 204,192 1,614213 - 1,818,405
through other comprehensive
income— current
Lozns and receivables 14,641 775 - 6,673,577 6,688,993
Other receivables (note) - - - 321 321
5 14,641 435526 _ 2.084.715 6,673,898 9,208,750

(Continued)
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Other
Exchange Finance companies  _Individuals Total

December 31, 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ - 80,192 - - 20,192
Financial assets measured at fair - 40,533 407,782 - 448,315
value through profit or foss—
cutrent
Financial assets at fair value - - 982,041 - 982,041

through other comprehensive
income — current

Financial assets measured at - 89,380 - - : 89,380

amortized cost
Loans and receivables 546,413 141 120 4,397,821 4,944,495
Other receivables (note) - - - ) 1,427 1.427
8 546,413 210,246 1,389,943 4,399,248 6,545,850

Note: recorded in other current assets
f)  Impairment loss

Aging analysis of loans and receivables:

2019 2018
Beginning balance $ 1,094 323
Allowance 322 771
Reversal (406) -
Transferred to non-acerual (930) -
Ending balance $ 80 1,094

The allowance for bad debt of other receivables is used to record bad debt or
impairment. In the case where BTS believes the receivables cannot be collected,
the receivables will be directly offset by the allowance for bad debt previously
booked.

(Continued)
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3} Liquidity Risk

The following tables represent the expiration date of the financial liabilities. The
amounts included the estimated interest expenses but without considering the effects of
the netting agreements.

91days ~
1~30 days 31~90 days 1 year QOver 1 year Total

December 31, 2019
Non derivatives financial

liabilities ‘

Commercial paper payable § 1,024,682 - - - 1,024,682

Bonds sold under 2,100,460 832,536 - - 2,932,996
repurchase agreements

Accounts payables 3,599,321 - - - 3,599,321

Collections 9.093 - - - 9,093

Other payables 68,419 - - - 68,419

Other payables—related 81,171 - - - 81,1711
party

Guaranteed price deposits 29.653 29,653 59,306 - 118,612
received from securities
borrowers

Deposits received from 27,016 27.016 34,032 - 108,064
securities borrowers

Lease liabilities — current 890 1,752 7,960 - 10,602

Other current labilities 106 - - - 106

Lease liabilities —non- - - - 21,420 21420
current

Other non-current - - - 6.145 6.145
liabilities

$__ 6,940,811 890,957 121,298 27,565 7,980,631

{Continued)
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4

9days ~
1~30 days 31~-90 days 1 year Over 1 year Tetal
December 31,2018
Non derivatives financial
liabilities
Commercial paper payable $ 289,886 - - - 289.886
Bonds sold under 1,484,864 - - - 1,484,864
repurchase agreements
Accounts payables 2,278,325 - - - 2,278,325
Accounts payables— 2 - - - 2
related party
Collections 11,769 - - - 11,769
Other payables 64,213 - - - 64,213
Other payables—related 68,612 - - - 68,612
party
Guaranteed price deposits 37,509 37.509 75,019 - 150,037
received from securities
borrowers
Deposits received from 34,637 34,637 69,275 - 138,549
securities borrowers
Other current liabilities 106 - - - 106
Other non-current - - - 5.772 5.972
labilities
$ 4,269,923 72,146 144,294 5,772 4,492,135

BTS does not expect the occurrence of the actual cash flow

significantly different.

Market Risk

a)  Equity securities price risk

Sensitivity analysis

December 31, 2019
Price increases 10%
Price decreases 109

December 31, 2018
Price increases 1094
Price decreases 10%

will be earlier or

Units: In Million of NTD

Equity Gain or loss
6.73 121.30
(14.41) (36.61)
Equity Gain or loss
0.58 76.06
(0.34) (27.36)

(Continued)
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b) Interest rate risk

232

The overview of the financial instruments held with interest rates is as follows:

Financial instruments with fixed rate :

Convertible bonds
Corporate bonds
Financial bonds

5)  Currency Risk

Financial assets:

Monetary items:

CNY
UsD

Financial assets:

Monetary items:

CNY
USD

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
$ 509,312 440,121
1,614,213 1,071,421
204.192 -
S 2,327,917 1.511.542
December 31, 2019
Foreign
currency (in
thousand Exchange rate
dollars) (in dollars) NTD
1 4.2950 2
159 29.9900 4,781
December 31, 2018
Foreign
currency (in
thousand Exchange rate
dollars) {(in dollars) NTD
20,338 4.4690 91,116
120 30.7350 3,691

The currency risk mainly arises from the cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables,
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss-current, financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income-current, financial assefs
measured at amortized cost and short-term debt in foreign currencies. Foreign currency
difference arises from the retransiation of the report. A 1% strengthening/ weakening of
the TWD against the CNY at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit
before tax by $48 thousand and $948 thousand, respectively, in 2019 and 2018. The
analysis assumes that all other variables in particular interest rates remained constant.

(Continued)
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6} Transfer of Financial Assets— Transferred Financial Assets Without Overall
Derecognition

The transferred financial assets of BTS that are not qualified for de recognition in the
daily operation are mainly debt securities under repurchase agreements. Since the right to
receive cash flow is transferred and it reflects the associated liabilities to repurchase
transferred financial assets at fixed price in future period, BTS cannot use, sell or pledge
these transferred financial assets during the valid transaction period. However, since BTS
still bear the interest rate risk and credit risk, transferred financial assets are not
completely derecognized. Analysis of financial assets that are not completely
derecognized and the associated liabilities are as follows.

December 31,2019
Transferred
Transferred Finaneial financial Financial
finznciol assets liability book assets fair lialbility fair
Fir tal assets type book value valoe value value Net fair value
Financial asset measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Issued under repurchase S 1,818,405 1,800,316 1,818,405 1,800,316 18,089
agreement
December 31, 2018
Transferred
Transferred Financial financial Financial
financial assets liability baok assets fair liability fair
Financial assets type book value value value value Net fair value
Financial asset measured at fair
value through profit or loss
Issued under repurchase 3 27914 26,500 27,014 26,500 1,414
agreement
Financial asset measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Issued under repurchase 982,041 975,183 682,041 475183 6,858

agreement

(9) Capital Management:

(a)

The capital management objectives and processes

The Company's and subsidiaries' basic objective of capital management shall be in compliance with
the capital requirements of the FSC and achieve the minimum statutory capital adequacy ratio. The
qualified capital calculation is in accordance with regulation by competent authorities.

Maintain an optimal capital structure to respond to possible operational or economic risks, and to
sustain future development of the business. The Company and subsidiaries also make appropriate
and effective capital allocation to react the different capital portfolio and risk characteristics.

The Company and subsidiaries comply with the Regulations Governing the Consolidated Capital
Adequacy of Financial Holding Companies and the Standards Governing the Capital Adequacy
Management of Taiwan Financial Holdings and report the ratio to the authority twice a year.
However, the subsidiaries shall comply with the regulations of different industries.

The Company and subsidiaries set target ratios and alarm ratios in order to react properly if the
capital adequacy ratio is close to or lower than the alarm ratio.

(Continued)
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(b) Capital adequacy ratio

2019
Unit: %
Item| the financial
holding'_ net eligible | statutory capital
company’s capital requirement
shareholding in _
IName the subsidiary
The Company 100 % 374,487,867 399,476,056
Subsidiary BOT 100 % 297,573,020 220,690,409
Subsidiary BTS 100 % 2,915,456 919,964
Subsidiary BTLI 100 % 17,552,243 15,762,218
Deducted Amount - (407,787,377} (399,387,377)
Subtotal 284,741,209 237,461,270
The Company's and subsidiaries' Capital Adequacy Ratio 119.91
2018
Unit: %
Item| the financial
holding' net eligible statutory capital
company’s, capital requirement
shareholding in
Name the subsidiary
The Company 100 %] 305,180,349 330,666,302
Subsidiary BOT 100 % 250,482,752 197,062,535
Subsidiary BTS 100 % 2,913,777 632,695
Subsidiary BTLI 100 % 17,997,060 13,926,914
Deducted Amount - (341,528,290 (330,628,290)
Subtotal _ 235,045,648 211,660,156
The Company's and subsidiaries' Capital Adequacy Ratio 111.05

Explain: 1. The numbers are accordance with the Regulations Governing the Consolidated Capital
Adequacy of Financial Holding Companies.
2. The term "capital adequacy ratio of a financial holding company calculated on a
consolidated basis" shall mean the Company's and subsidiaries’ net eligible capital

divided by the Company's and subsidiaries' statutory capital requirement.

3. Do not need to prepare the format for the first and third quarters.

(Continued)
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(¢) Financial holding company's eligible capital

December 31, 2019
Item Amount
Common stock 103,125,000
Capital instruments with Tier 1 capital -
Other preferred stock and subordinated bonds -
\Advance receipts for common stock -
Capital surpluses 140,260,227
Legal reserve 7,840,566
Special reserve 47,637,691
Cumulative gain or loss 15,640,140
(Other equity 59,984,243

Reduce + Goodwill and other intangible assets

Reduce : Deferred assets

Reduce : Treasury stocks

Total qualifying capital 374,487,867
December 31, 2018
Item Amount
Comman stock 90,000,000

Capital instruments with Tier 1 capital

Other preferred stock and subordinated bonds

Advance receipts for common stock

Capital surpluses

111,385,226

Legal reserve 7,419,683
Special reserve 45,115,538
Cumulative gain or loss 11,950,770
Other equity 39,184,174
Reduce : Goodwill and other intangible assets -
Reduce : Deferred assets -
Reduce : Treasury stocks -
Total qualifying capital 305,055,391

Explain: 1. The numbers are accordance with the Regulations Governing the Consolidated Capital

Adequacy of Financial Holding Companies.

2. No need to prepare the format for the first and third quarters.
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(10) Related-party Transactions:

(a) Name of related party and relationship

Name Relationship

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd.  Investee company of BOT and BTLI under the equity

and its subsidiaries method

Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd. Investee company of BOT under the equity method

Tai Yi Real Estate Management Co., Ltd.Investee company of BOT under the equity method

Taiwan Business Bank Co., Ltd Related-Party

Land Bank Of Taiwan Related-Party

The Export-Import Bank of the Republic Related-Party

of China

Cathy United Bank Related-Party

Deutsche Bank Taipei Branch Directors, supervisors, managers and their relatives up to the
second degree, affiliates and so on (no longer a related
party since September 2nd, 2019)

Chang Hwa Comunercial Bank Related-Party

Others Directors, supervisors, managers and their relatives up to the

second degree, affiliates and so on

(b) Key management personnel compensation

(i) The related information about the salaries and bonus for the key management personnel in
2019 and 2018 were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Short-term employee benefits b 51,834 54,319
Retired benefits 838 11.310

A 52,672 65,629

(cy Other related-party transactions
(i) Placement with banks
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amount balance Amount balance
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., $__ 287,698 0.21 54,571 0.04

Lid.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2819 December 31, 2018
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amount balance Amount balance
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., §__ 291,259 0.58 228.890 0.48
Lid.
(iii) Call loans to banks
December 31, 2019
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) income
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,  $ 18,372,412 _ 2.,023490 0.17~3.25 ___ 59275
Ltd.
December 31, 2018
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) income
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,  $ 19,663,275 _ 1,299,175 0.178~5.08 __ 46.634
Ltd.
(iv) Call loans from banks (recognized as deposit of central bank and other bank)

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd.

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd.

December 31, 2019
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) income
$ 20,909,960 - 0.17~3.10 ___22.093
December 31, 2018
Interest
Highest Ending raterange  Interest
balance balance (%) income

¥ 10,670,305 245,880  0.09~4.40

The lending rates for the related party have no difference with the others.

8.693
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(v) Deposits

(vi)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Pereentage of FPercentage of
account account
Name Amount bhalance Amount balance
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. $ 366,176 0.01 371.497 0.01

The deposits rates for the above related parties are calculated using the board rates and the
conditions are not different from the others.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss/Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

December 31, December 31,
Name Summary 2019 2018
Hua Nan Financial Financial bonds (recordedin  § 2,000,000 800,000
Holdings Co., Ltd. the Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss)
Financial bonds (recorded in 900,000 900,000

the Financial assets

measured at fair value

through other

comprehensive income)

Valuation adjustment 65.913 59.235
Carrying amount h 2,965,913 1,759,235
Interest receivable 5 24,206 12.475

The interest income for the year ended 2019 and 2018 derived from the BTLI's financial bond
investment on related party are $52,219 thousand and $33,136 thousand.

(vii) Loans

December 31, 2019
House holder Highest Ending Status of performance Differences in
Category amount or name of [ balancein balance  |Performing] Non- Type of collateral | transaction terms
related party current period loans  [performing benween related and
loans non related parties
Consumer loans 24 households 12,193 9,172 9,172 - Nane None
House mortgages 200 households 883,375 720,660 720,660 - Land and buildings None
kCall oans to banks  iLand Bank of 8,000,000 4,498,500 | 4,498,500 - None None
Taiwan Co., Lid.
ICall icans to banks  [Hua Nan Financial 15,000,000 - - None None
Holdings Co.,
Lid.
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December 31, 2019
House holder Highest Ending Status of performance Differences in
Category amount or name of |  balance in bzlance  |Performing| Non- Type of collateral | transaction terms
related party current period Ipans  |performing between related and
loans non related parties
[Call loans to banks ~ [Taiwan Business 1,220,200 599,800 599,800 - Naone Nene
Barnk Ce., Ltd.
ICall loans to banks  [Cathy United Bank 11,500,000 - - - None None
Co., Ltd.
[Call loans to banks ~ [The Export Import 2,200,000 - - - None None
Bank of the
Republic of China
ICall loans to banks ~ [Chang Hwa 8,000,000 - - - None None
Commercial Bank
Co., Lud.
[Secured overdrafts  [Tang Eng iron 88,431 41,119 41,119 - [Land and factory None
loans Works Co., Lid.
[Short term secured  [Tang Eng Iron 100,000 100,000 100,000 - Land and factory None
loans Works Co,, Lid.
Short term secured  [Tang Eng Iron 1,500,000 900,000 400,000 - Land and factory None
loans Works Co., Lid,
Medium term [Tang Eng Iron 1,800,000 1,200,600 | 1,200,000 - Land and factory Nong
secured loans Works Co., Ltd.
December 31, 2018
House holder Highest Ending Status of performance Differences in
Category amount or name of | balance in halance Performing Non- Type of collateral | transaction terms
related party current period loans  [performing between related and
leans non related parties
iConsumer Ioans 30 houselolds 15,070 5374 5,374 - None None
House mortgages 191 households 721,580 622,246 622,246 - Land and buildinps None
(Call loans to banks  [Land Bank of 19,500,000 - - - None None
Taiwan Co., L1d.
Call loans to banks  [Hua Nan Financial 15,000,000 - - - None None
Holdings Ce.,
Lid.
Cabl loans 1o banks  [Taiwan Business 2,000,000 - - - None None
Bank Co., Ltd.
[Call loans 10 banks  [Cathy United Bank 11,000.000 - - - None None
Co., Ltd.
[Call loans to banks  [The Export luport 2,300,000 1.050.000 | 1,050,000 - None None
Bank of the
Republic of China
ICall icans to banks  [Deutsche Bank 3,500.000 - - - None None
Taipei Branch
[Secured overdrafis  [Tang Eng Iron 67,405 67,405 67,405 - i.and and factory None
Joans Works Co., Lid.
[Short term secured  [Tany Eng Iron 100,000 100,000 100,000 - i.and and factory None
loans Waorks Co., Lid.
[Short term secured  [Tang Eng Iron 1,882.989 1,200,000 1,200,000 - Land and faclory None
Ypans Waorks Co., Ltd.
IMedium term [Tany Eng Iron 1,800,000 1,800,000| 1,800.000 - Land and factory None
secured loans Works Co., Lid.
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Note 1: The consumer loans to staff and mortgage loans 10 siaff ave lumped together for disclosure. The disclosure of other Joans is sorted by

respective related parties,

Note2: Collateral is classified by real estate, short term notes, government bonds, secured or non secured bonds, TSEC and GTSM stocks, non TSEC

and non GTSM stocks, and others.

(viii) Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2019
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) expense
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., § 960,000 - 0300 ____ 120
Ltd.
December 31, 2018
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) expense
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co., $ 1,000,000 ____- 0.300 137
Ltd.
(ix) Payables
December 31, December 31,
Name Summary 2019 2018
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Agent fee $ 143 123
Co., Ltd.
Hua Nan Financial Holdings  Interest expense - 2
Co., Ltd.
$ ' 143 125
(x) Commission expenses
Name Nature 2019 2018
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Agent fee $ 6,427 4,681
Co., Ltd.
(xi) Service charges
Name Nature 2019 2018
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Remittance fee and b 465 63
Co., Ltd. insurance agent fee
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(xii) Other operating expenses

Name Nature 2019 2018

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Sales charge $ - 12
Co., Ltd.

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Business expense 0946 961
Co., Ltd.

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Service charge - 16
Co., Ltd.

Total b} 946 989

(xiii) The Company and subsidiaries have no different in transaction price between related party and

non-related party.

Information on related party transactions amounting to more than $100,000 thousand:

Since the related-party transactions had been offset when the Company prepared the consolidated
financial statements, only one of the consolidated parties needs to disclose its related-party

transaction.

The company and subsidiaries have no different in transaction price between related party and non-

related party.
(i)  The subsidiary, BOT

1} Name of related party and relationship

Name

Relationship

Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

BankTaiwan Life Insurance Co.,
Ltd.

BankTaiwan Securities Co., Ltd.

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,
Ltd. and its subsidiaries

Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.

Tai Yi Real Estate Management
Co., Ltd.

Taiwan Business Bank Co., Ltd
Land Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd

The Export-Import Bank of The
ROC Co., Ltd

Cathy United Bank

Holding company of BOT

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Financial
Holdings

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Financial
Holdings

Investee company of BOT under the equity
method

Investee company of BOT under the equity
method

Investee company of BOT under the equity
method

Related- Party
Related- Party
Related- Party

Related- Party
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Name Relationship
Chang Hwa Commercial Bank Related- Party
Deutsche Bank Taipei Branch Holiding company's directors, supervisors,

managers and their relatives up to the second
degree, affiliates and so on (no longer a related
party since September 2nd, 2019)

Others Directors, supervisors, managers and their
relatives up to the second degree, affiliates and so
- on
2)  Other related party transactions
a) Call loans to banks
December 31, 2019
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) income
Hua Nan Financial $ 18,372,412 _2.023490 ¢.17~3.25 ___ 59275
Holdings Co., Ltd.
December 31, 2018
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) income
Hua Nan Financial $ 19,663,275 __1.299.175 (.18~5.08 __ 46.434
Holdings Co., Ltd.
b)  Deposits of banks
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amount balance Amount balance
Hua Nan Financial Holdings  $___ 291,259 0.58 228,890 0.48
Co., Ltd.
c¢)  Call loans from banks (recorded in Deposit of Central Bank and Other Bank)

December 31, 2019
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) income
Hua Nan Financia} $20909960 -  0.17~3.10 ___ 22,093

Holdings Co., Ltd.
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December 31, 2018
Interest
Highest Ending rate range Interest
balance balance (%) income
Hua Nan Financial $ 10,670,305 245,880  (0.09~4.40 8.693
Holdings Co., L1d.
Deposits
December 31,2019 December 31, 2018
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amonnt balance Amount balance
Taiwan Financial Holding $ 198,724 0.01 291,908 0.01
Co., Ltd.
BankTaiwan Life Insurance 6,335,035 0.16 2,485,748 0.06
Co., Ltd.
BankTaiwan Securities Co., 252,990 0.01 263,988 0.01
Ltd.
Hua Nan Financial Holdings 366,176 0.01 371,497 0.01
Co., Ltd.
Tang Eng Iron Works Co., 674 - - -
Lid.
Total $_ 7,153,599 0.19 _ 3,413,141 0.09
Interest income
2019 2018
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amount balance Amount balance
Taiwan Financial Holding § 207,025 0.31 170,324 0.27
Co., Lad.
BankTaiwan Securities Co., 573 - 657 -
Ltd.
Total $_ 207,598 0.31 170,981 0.27
Service fee income
2019 2018
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amount balance Amount balance
BankTaiwan Life Insurance $ 618,722 10.55 609,563 10.23
Co., Ltd.
BankTaiwan Securities Co., 3,366 0.06 3,643 0.06
Lid.
Total $_ 622,088 10.61 613,206 10.29
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Gain (loss) on financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss

2019 20138
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amount balance Amount balance
BankTaiwan Life Insurance $ 1,134,250 232 697,995 (15.438)
Co., Ltd.
BankTaiwan Securities Co., (3,400) (0.01) (6,614) 0.15
Ltd.
Total $ 1.130.850 2.31 691.381 (15.33)
Other non-interest income (loss)
2019 2018
Percentage Percentage
of account of account
Name Amount balance Amount balance
Taiwan Financial Holding $ 26,623 (0.06) 28,177 1.68
Co., Ltd.
BankTaiwan Life Insurance 38,329 {0.08) 43,634 2.59
Co., Ltd.
BankTaiwan Securities Co., 30.582 (0.07) 30.915 1.84
Ltd.
Total by 95,534 (0.21) 102,726 6.11
Loans
December 31. 2009
House holder Highest Ending Status of performance Differences in
Category amount or pame of | balance in balance Performing Non- Type of collateral | transaction terms
related party curvent loans performing between related
period Toans and non related
partics
IConsumer loans 24 houscholds 12,193 9172 9172 - None None
House morigages 211 househalds 883375 720,660 720,660 . [Land and buildings None
ICall loans to banks Land Bank of Taiwan 8,000,000 4,498 500 4,498,500 - None None
Co., Ltd.
ICall loans to banks [Huza Nan Financial 15,000,000 - - - None None
Holdings Co., L1d.
ICall leans to banks Taiwan Business Bank 1,220,200 599,800 599,800 - None None
Co.. Ltd.
Kall loans to banks ICathy United Bank Co.. 11,500,600 . - - Nene None
Lid.
ICall loans 1o banks [The Export Import 3,754,000 - - - None None
Bank of the Republic
of China
ICall [oans 1o banks Chang Bwa 8,000,000 - - - Nong None
Commercial Bank
Co, Ltd.
[Short term Joans [Taiwan Financial 25,200,000 25,200,000 25,200,000 - None None
Holdings Co., Ltd.
[Short term secured |Bank Taiwan Securities 500,000 - - - {Govemmeni {or None
loans Co., Ltd. financial
institutions)
guarantee
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December 31. 2019
A House holder Highest Ending Status of performance Diffevences in
Category aipunt or ngme of | balaoge i balance | Performing Non- Type of collateral | fransaction terms
related party current loans performing between related
period loans and non related
parties
[Secured overdrafts ang Eng lron Works 88,431 41,119 41,119 - [Land and factory None
loans Ca., Lid
IShor term secared jTang Eng Iron Works 100,000 160,000 100,000 - [Land and factory Nene
loans Co., Lté.
[Shari term secured [Tang Eng Iron Works 1,500,000 900,000 900,000 - [Land and factory None
loans Co., Lid
IMedium term secared  [Tang Eng Iron Works 1,800,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 - [Land and factory None
loans Co., Lad,
December 31, 2018
House holder Highest Ending Stams of performance Dilferences in
Category amount or name of | balance in halance Performing Non- Type of collateral | transaction terms
related party current loans performing between refated
period loans and nen related
parties
loans 30 househelds 15,070 9,374 93714 . None Nene
[House mortgages 191 houssholds 721,580 622,246 622,246 - Land and busldings None
ICall loans to banks [Land Bank of Taiwan 19,500,000 - - - None Nene
Ca., Ltd.
ICall loans to banks Huoa Nan Financial 15.000,000 - - - None None
Holdings Co., Lid.
[Call loans to banks [Taiwzan Business Bank 2,000,000 - - - None None
Co, L1d.
ICall loans ta banks [Cathy United Bank Co., 11,000,000 - - . None Nene
Ltd.
[Call loans to banks The Expert import 2.300,000 1,050,000 1,050,000 - None None
Bank of the Republic
of China
[Call loans to banks Dzutsche Bank Taipe 3,500,000 - - - None None
Bran¢h Co., Lid.
IShor term secured Bank Taiwan Securities 500,000 - - - |Government (or None
loans Co., L1d. fimvangial
institutions)
puarantge
[Secured overdrafis [Tang Eng lron Works 67,405 67,405 67,405 - Land and factory None
loans Cao., Ltd.
IShort term secured [Tang Eng Iton Works 100,000 100,000 100,000 - Land and factory None
loans Co., L1d.
IShort term secured [Tang Eng [ron Works 1,882,984 1,200,000 1,200,000 - L.and and faciory None
leans Co., Lid.
PMedium term secured  [Tany Eng lron Works 1,800,000 1,800,000 1,800,000 - Land and factory Nene
loans Co., Lid.
IShed tenm loans Bank Taiwan Securities 25800000 | 25%200,000{ 25800,000 - None Nene
Co., Ltd.

Note 1: The consumer Joans to staff and mortgage loans to staff are lumped together for disclosure. The disclosure of other loans is sorted by interested

parties,

Note 2: Collateral is classified by real esiate. short texm notes, povernment bonds, secured or non secured bonds, TSEC and GTSM stocks, non TSEC and
non GTSM stocks, and cthers.
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i)  Derivative instruments

(ii) The subsidiary, BTLI

1)

2)

December 31, 2019
Name of relative Agreement National Current Balance sheet
valuation Account name Amount
party Subject period amounts adjustment
BankTaiwan Life Swap apreement  [2010.08.20~ 43,656,372 138,905 |Valuation adjustment of (722419
Insurance Co., Ltd. [2020.12.1) financial assets measured
a fair value through profit
or 1oss - swap
December 31,2018
Name of relative Agreement Notional Current Balance sheet
valuation Account name Amount
party Subject period amounts adjustment
[BankTaiwan Life [Swap agrecment  [2010.08.20~ 23,100,280 54,467 |Valuation adjustment of 21,138
[nsurance Co., Ltd. 2019,03.20 [financial assets measured
at fair value through profit
or loss = swap
(Valuation adjustment of (29,327
financial liabilities
measured at fair value
through profit or loss -
Iswap
Name of related party and relationship
Name Relationship

Taiwan Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

Bank of Taiwan Co., Ltd.

BankTaiwan Securities Co., Ltd.

BankTaiwan Insurance Brokers

Co., Ltd

Hua Nan Financial Holdings Co.,

I.td. and its subsidiaries

Others

Other related party transactions

a) Secured loans

Holding company of BTLI

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Financial
Holdings

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Financial
Holdings

Wholly-owned subsidiary of BOT

Investee company of BOT and BTLI under the
equity method
Directors, supervisors, managers and their

relatives up to the second degree, affiliates and so
on

The real estate secured loans to the directors, supervisors, general manager, vice
general manger, employees with credit amounts, their spouses and their first or

second degree relatives on December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Name 201¢ 2018
Real estate secured loans h) 144,802 187.427
Interest receivables $ 76 138
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b)

c)

d)
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All interest rate collars on December 31, 2019 and 2018 are 0.820%~1.657% and
0.820%~2.280%, respectively.

Bank deposits

The bank deposits in the related banks and the relevant interest revenues on
Dece